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CORPORATE PROFILE

Q hina Everbright Greentech Limited (“Everbright Greentech” or the “Company” or together with its subsidiaries,
ﬁ—l the “Group”) is a professional environmental protection service provider, with its businesses focusing on

- integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment, environmental remediation and solar
Faﬁ energy and wind power, it listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
jl\ Exchange”) on 8 May 2017 (stock code: 1257). Upholding its philosophy of leading the way through business

innovations, Everbright Greentech took a pioneer role to introduce integrated urban and rural waste treatment
project in the Mainland China. Currently, the Company has its business coverage spanning across 14 provinces and
municipalities in China, and in Germany.

With strong supports from China Everbright Group Limited (“Everbright Group”) and the controlling shareholder, China

Everbright International Limited (“CEIL”), and leveraging on its own extensive experience in the development and

operation of diversified project portfolio as well as its unparalleled market expansion capability, the Group will continue

to follow the instruction to be “Prudent, Proactive and Practical”, bearing in mind its initial commitment and mission as
it strives incessantly to become a leader in China’s environmental business sector.
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DIRECTORS

WANG Tianyi** (Chairman)

QIAN Xiaodong* (Chief Executive Officer)
YANG Zhigiang* (Vice President)
WANG Yungang* (Vice President)
GUO Ying**

TANG Xianging**

CHOW Siu Lui***

Philip TSAO***

YAN Houmin***

* Executive Director

** Non-Executive Director
*** Independent Non-Executive Director

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHOW Wing Man

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 3602, 36/F.

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Limited, Shenzhen Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

China Citic Bank International Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Development Bank Corporation
China Everbright Bank Company Limited
China Merchants Bank (Shenzhen Branch)
Far Eastern International Bank Co., Ltd.
Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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SOLICITORS

Grandall Law Firm (Beijing)
Zhonglun W&D Law Firm (Shenzhen)
Li & Partners

AUDITORS
KPMG

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Guotai Junan Capital Limited
27th Floor, Low Block

Grand Millennium Plaza

181 Queen’s Road, Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.ebgreentech.com

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Citigate Dewe Rogerson

SHARE INFORMATION
Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 1257
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEE

RESULTS
Revenue
EBITDA®M

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Return on shareholders’ equity (%)

Basic earnings per share® (HK cents)

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Net asset value per share
attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company (HK$)

Cash and bank balances

Gearing ratio® (%)

Current ratio (%)

ES

Yo

BRAE IR ELE
H A & O

R At AR R B A 2 A

RERE 2B (%)
BREARRFNGEAL)

Bt #E AR
BERE
BERRE
ZNNGIE: S 3 T e

RRE RSB RES R
BEFE
(B%T)
Be RBTHES
BEEABELEO(%)
MENELE (%)

2018
—B-N\f
HK$°000
BT T

7,001,820

2,161,227

1,324,871

14.65
64.12

18,602,802
9,171,728

9,338,852

4.52
2,260,833
49

155

2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000
BT T

4,681,352

1,517,788

958,823

14.75
51.70

14,431,617
5,665,571

8,748,052

4.23
3,343,411
39

216

Percentage

Change
B
1)

53%

42%

39%
-0.1 ppt
24%

29%
62%

7%

7%
-32%
10 ppt
-61 ppt

(1) EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation.

2) The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of

approximately HK$1,324,871,000 (2017: HK$953,823,000) and the weighted average of 2,066,078,000 (2017:
1,844,979,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(3) Gearing ratio is calculated by total liabilities over total assets.

(1)  EBITDARIRRFE ~ BiIE - E LB HATEF) -

(2 BREARBFTIRERA AR ENRENLE1,324,871,00070 (ZF —+F « #%0953,823,00070) R FA B ETE B
f% 2 I T £ ik 88 2,066,078,000% (= F —+ 4 : 1,844,979,000/% ) FimARst & -
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Financial Highlights
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CORPORATE MILESTONES
TRAEHE
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01/2018

02/2018

03/2018

05/2018

06/2018

Sichuan Mianzhu Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Biomass) was
completed and commenced operation
)l EYE R RBEE -8R (EDE) BRKRE

Jiangsu Changzhou Hazardous Waste Incineration Project was completed and commenced
operation, being the first foreign joint venture hazardous waste treatment project
established by the Company in joint venture with SUEZ NWS Group
ARHEBFFLHAREEARLEXN VYN EEAREREINI NS EEE — ITHEMEER
BRIE B ERIRE

Jiangsu Xinyi Animal Carcass Harmless Treatment Project was completed and commenced
operation

TEFOTRLBMEEZ(CRER R ZRIE

Everbright Greentech announces its 2017 annual results, posting a 69.4% growth in profit
attributable to equity shareholders
RREERRAM017TF2FXE - BRRREIEBNEIF69.4%E K

Guanyun Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project was completed and commenced
operation, being the first urban-rural integration project in Jiangsu Province; Jiangsu
Lianyungang Hazardous Waste Incineration Project (Phase Il) was completed and
commenced operation

IHEEEMB—8IEE — EEEVMERNREST —BIEARNKRE  IHETE
EREREERE —HaKRE

Acquisition of Gansu Lintao Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-
Energy) and Jiangsu Binhai Hazardous Waste Incineration Project, the former of which
being the Group’s first project in Gansu Province
BRISHBRAEWE R REE—8(LEB (WIREE) MIHEEREERERE - KIHE
REBEEEERNHREK

NDRC central budget funding in the amount of RMB37.63 million is granted
BHRHBRENEZFREENES AR 7638 T

Acquisition of Liaoning Linghai Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project and Fujian
Gutian Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-Energy), marking
entries into the environmental markets of Liaoning Province and Fujian Province,
respectively

PISEEZGEYERTHHEBENBRELIHEYE R RFE—1BILIEE (WREE) -
BHEFRER REREERRT S

Sichuan Mianzhu Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-Energy) was
completed and commenced operation

BT EMERAREE—BRE (UREE) BRERE
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07/2018

08/2018

11/2018

12/2018

Everbright Greentech acquires 2 environmental remediation projects to realise breakthrough
in new business field

RAFERRIG2ERREERR - BREBREORE

Everbright Greentech announces its 2018 interim results, underpinned by a 41% growth
in profit attributable to equity shareholders
RRGERRAM0IBFERHAES  BaREEBHRBNEENRER

Inclusion in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
BWABERIREERMEEERY

Anhui Yu’an Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project was completed and
commenced operation
ZRBREYE BRI B ERIRE

Anhui Yeji Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project, Huaiyuan Integrated Biomass
and Waste-to-Energy Project (Waste-to-Energy) and Shandong Linshu Hazardous Waste
Incineration Project (Phase |) were completed and commenced operation
THEEEMERTHMIAR  BEREVE RNREE—BIIER R EE) RILUREIT
EREREEE —HgKIRE

Awarded “Sustainability and Social Responsibility Reporting Awards — Special Mention —
Non-Hang Seng Index Category (Medium Market Capitalisation)” in the “Best Corporate
Governance Awards 2018” presented by Hong Kong Institute Of Certified Public
Accountants
BEAEFMASTAIREREERRNR018] A BEERRPEMEREAMERE —
AR — SEERAO R (FHE)ER

Named “Listed Company with Best Investment Value” at the 8th China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Awards
BENEFPRESFSEARTIRFRAREEBELTAA

Entering into share transfer agreements to acquire Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (T#R{EFRBERBEEEBMR A F) (90% interest) and Suntime
Environmental Remediation Co., Ltd (HIRZEER KD BR A F]) (88.88% interest).
BERBEEEHHAARBIRERREANEAR A F0%KE N FARFEERNDAERA
788.88% % ##

Corporate Milestones

TEAEHE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Endogenous growth
with innovative

ADVANCEMENT
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In 2018, a series of environmental
announced successively after the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China (“19th CPC National Congress”) and
Conference on Ecological

protection policies were

the National and Environmental
Protection had been held. The environmental protection industry
in China has been vigorously fostered by national policies, and
environmental protection enterprises have welcomed an
unprecedented period with strategic opportunities. During the
year, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment has been
coordinating with local governments in all regions to promote
quality economic development and ecological environmental
protection, full-scale battle for the protection of blue sky, clear
water and clean land has been unveiled. Significant progress was
made in the critical battle for the prevention and treatment of
pollution. At the end of 2018, implementing guidelines of the Paris
Agreement was passed at the United Nations Climate Change
Conference, representing that the transformation into a green and

low-carbon globe is irreversible.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

Benefiting from vigorous growth in ecological environmental
protection in China, Everbright Greentech has amply demonstrated
its strong ability in market penetration with expansion into 5
provinces during the year. Breakthrough was achieved as the
environmental remediation and integrated hazardous and solid
waste utilisation businesses won their first contracts. As of 31
December 2018, the Group had 96 environmental protection
projects and 9 environmental remediation projects, while the
volumes of power generation, heat supply and hazardous waste
treatment increased significantly as compared with that in 2017.
In 2018, the Group had 22 integrated biomass utilisation projects
and 12 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects in
operation, with an increase in on-grid power generation and steam
supply by 84% and 112%, respectively, while the volume of
hazardous waste treatment increased by 12%, as compared to
2017. In steady development and growth, the Group has reached
the threshold of “100” in 3 aspects: the total number of projects
held exceeded 100, the aggregate designed capacity of biomass
power generation exceeded 1,000,000 kw, and the aggregate
designed capacity of hazardous waste processing exceeding
1,000,000 tonnes. Everbright Greentech secured 24 new projects
during the year, including 8 integrated biomass utilisation projects,
7 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects and 9
environmental remediation projects, as well as 2 environmental
protection companies acquired by way of equity transfer. We have
made additional investments amounting to approximately RMB5.13
billion, while new environmental remediation contracts acquired
during the year amounted to approximately RMB187 million.
During the year under review, the Group was granted special
subsidies with a total amount of RMB97.01 million. Moreover, we
participated
programmes and received a ministry-level award for outstanding

in two national-level research and development

achievements.

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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Looking around the world in 2019, global uncertainties and
instability will be escalating, as Everbright Greentech faces “a
scene of major changes unseen in the past century”. The
economic outlook of China may not be optimistic under sustained
downside pressure. The Central Economic Work Conference
emphasised “counter-cyclical adjustments” and “stable aggregate
demand”. Meanwhile, the political drive and urgent need in global
nations for responding to climate change and pursuing better
environmental quality remain unchanged, while China’s
progressing ecological

civilisation construction, strengthening ecological protection as well

determination and persistence for
as preventing and controlling environmental pollution stay
unaltered. Everbright Greentech will act in tandem with the trends
with sustained efforts to seize the rare opportunities in the
environmental market, braving the wind and the billows against
challenges and difficulties.

Last but not the least, |, on behalf of the Group and the board of
directors of the Company, would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and cooperation partners. |
would also like to express my appreciation to all members of the
Board, management team and all staff members for their
dedication and efforts to lead Everbright Greentech to greater

SuccCess.

WANG Tianyi

Chairman
Hong Kong, 6 March 2019

Chairman’s Statement
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEERN®RDN

OPERATING RESULTS

2018 China’s full
implementation of the principles of the 19th CPC National

Year is the commencing year for

Congress and a year of exceptional significance in the
development of China’s ecological civilisation. The report of the
19th CPC National Congress has laid down new requirements for
the protection of the ecological environment. Ecological civilisation
was included in the master planning for “balanced economic,
political, cultural, social and ecological progress” with green
development as one of the five major tenets for national
development, as ecological civilisation assumed an increasingly

important role and status in the national governance regime.

At the National Conference on Ecological and Environmental
Protection held in 2018, convened in the highest order ever seen
for meetings of its kind, the development of ecological civilisation
was characterised as a “fundamental blueprint” holding the key to
the sustainable development of the Chinese race in a further
emphasis on its importance. Action plans and implementation
proposals such as “Opinions on Strengthening the Protection of
the Ecological Environment in All Aspects and Firmly Winning the
Battle of Preventing and Controlling Environmental Pollution” (&8
N B E N AE IR RERRIT I 5 2T EREMER)) and
“Three-year Action Plan for Winning the Battle of Blue Sky
Protection” ({§TmEXIREE = F178)518/)) were announced
successively to unveil the full-scale battle for the protection of
blue sky, clear water and clean land. Significant progress was
made in the critical battle for the prevention and treatment of
pollution, as the environmental protection industry thrived in a
larger context where opportunities as well as challenges existed.

“E-N\FREBEZEEH T AKIBEORB
ZF ERBEAERNARRERETERIELN—
FoltAhRIBEHLERRRERERLETHZ
Ko EERNAERAAT IR —BIRERM
B BRedRERAAERESZ — E—F
Rt T AR AERAERZUSIE R R P a8
(S5

—T-N\F L EARERNEBEERRR RE
REAR  BEERXARRNGEELE-—FREAR
BEPERKKEEROIBRAKG ] (ERE
D058 A RRIR IR R BORIT )5 R N B B/
BER) (TREXRBER=F1THHE)EZE
EEFBIMERDRERELS - BEX - BK %
TREBEERR SR RBEHISERE
B BRITEERBEIBRALFHARETED
BE -

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED G PEAXGBRRARAT —T\FFH



As a provider of specialised environmental protection services in
China, the Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste
treatment, environmental remediation and solar energy and wind
As of 31 2018, the Group had 96

environmental protection projects with a total

power. December
investment of
approximately RMB24.468 billion (including Anging Solid Waste
Integrated Treatment Project, in which 49% interest held by the
Group, with an investment amount of approximately RMB576
million); and independently undertook 9 environmental remediation
projects, with a total contract amount of approximately RMB187

million.

In view of a marketplace underpinned by rapid changes and
favourable government policies, the Group adopted a business
philosophy of “Integrity, Efficiency, Pragmatism and Innovation”
and sought prudent and determined progress in 2018, as it made
steady advances in market development, project construction,
operating
corporate management and industry participation and reported

results, technology research and development,
further improvements in business scale and profitability on the

back of efforts guided by technology and innovation.

In terms of market development, the Group reported strong

momentum and encouraging results in business expansion.
During the year under review, a record-high number of new
projects were launched, as the Group secured 24 new projects
and entered into 2 share transfer agreements for the acquisition
of 2 environmental protection companies, involving an additional
total investment of approximately RMB5.13 billion (including
approximately RMB576 million in Anging Solid Waste Integrated
Treatment Project, in which the Group held 49% interest), and an
additional environmental remediation contract amount of RMB187
million (acquisitions excluded). In terms of project scale, our
aggregate power generation designed capacity was increased by
122MW, while our designed capacity for biomass processing was
increased by approximately 600,000 tonnes per year. Our
designed capacities for household waste processing and
hazardous and solid waste treatment were increased by
approximately 3,100 tonnes daily and 547,000 tonnes per year,

respectively.

T \FFR PEAKGERRRERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBHRR DN

The new projects included 6 integrated biomass and waste-to-
energy projects, 2 biomass electricity and heat cogeneration
projects, 7 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects and 9
environmental remediation projects. For acquisitions, the Group
entered into 2 share transfer agreements to acquire a 90% equity
interest in Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.
CIEERR BRI AR AR) (*Jiangsu Jiayuan”) at a consideration
of RMB180 million, increasing the Group’s annual hazardous
waste treatment designed capacity by 183,000 tonnes, and an
88.88% equity interest in Suntime Environmental Remediation Co.,
Ltd. (FARBEERMDERDF) (“Suntime Environmental
Remediation”) at a consideration of RMB222.2 million, further
enhancing the qualification and platform of the environmental
remediation sector.

Meanwhile, the Group has achieved a double breakthrough in
terms of both geographic coverage and business sector. During
the year under review, the Group further broadened the scope of
its business by successfully tapping the environmental remediation
business with a sound momentum for development. In hazardous
and solid waste treatment sector, we continued to extend our
business chain by making inroads into the sub-segment of
integrated utilisation of hazardous and solid wastes through
acquisition. In the meantime, the Group entered 5 new provincial
markets for its environmental protection business, namely, Gansu
Province, Zhejiang Province, Shaanxi Province, Fujian Province
and Liaoning Province, expanding its presence in China to 14
provinces and municipalities in further enhancement of its position
in the industry.

In January to February 2019, the Group secured Anhui Huaiyuan

Hazardous Waste Landfill Project with an investment of
approximately RMB174 million and an annual processing designed
capacity of 40,000 tonnes for industrial solid wastes. Also, the
Group secured Jiangsu Feng County Household Waste
Emergency Landfill Site and Leachate Regulating Pool
Construction Project with a contract value of approximately
RMB30.32 million,
remediation project that was independently undertaken by the

Group.

which marks the 10th environmental
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In terms of project construction, the Group upheld the principle of
“Excellence in Quality, Standard, Technology and Efficiency” in its
engineering operations in steady advancement of its project
construction. Record-high numbers were reported during the year
under review with 283 projects starting construction and 14
projects being completed and commencing operation. As of 31
December 2018, the Group had 24 projects under construction
or implementation, which are scheduled to be completed or
in 2019.
raised the

commence operation In addition, the Group has

substantially level of refined and standardised
management in respect of its construction works by further
amending and improving its engineering management systems

and regulations.

In connection with technology research and development, the
Group successfully applied for 2 projects under the 2018 key
research programme of the Ministry of Science and Technology
during the year under review. They included the “Integrated
demonstration of pollution control technologies and zone-based
systems for synchronised solid waste treatment” undertaken by
the Group as part of the ‘“Integrated demonstration and
development of technologies for zone-based synchronised solid
wastes treatment in Zhangjiagang”, a key project under the
category of “Solid waste recycling”, as well as the “Research and
development of in-situ testing equipment for membrane interface
probe of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) at polluted sites”
undertaken by the Group as part of a key project titled “New
technologies and equipments for in-situ sampling of soil and
underground water at polluted sites” under the category of
“Causes of soil pollution at sites and treatment technologies”. In
addition, the Group participated
Technology and Application of Recycling and Controlling Pollution
of Typical Hazardous Waste” led by Tongji University, and the
results of the project received the Higher Education Outstanding
(second-class award in

into the project of “Key

Scientific Research Output Awards
Scientific and Technological
Education in 2018.

Progress) from the Ministry of
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The key research and development projects of Everbright
Greentech Research Institute (¢ A&k B IRIRHTFLFT) continued to
progress in a systematic manner. Our biomass power generation
projects achieved ultra-low emission (concentration level of NOx
emissions below 50mg/m?) through the research, investigation
and adoption of technologies such as low-nitrogen combustion,
flue gas recirculation, optimisation of the denitrification technology
based on selective non-catalytic reduction (SNCR) and oxidation
of active molecule. Everbright Greentech Research Institute has
also built the Group’s first hyperactive thionyl chloride (SOCI,)
processing line of commercial scale to facilitate urgent treatment
of SOCI,. It was the first large-scale facility for the processing of
hazardous wastes containing SOCI, in China and elsewhere,
providing a solid foundation for the Group’s ongoing effort to
drive development through technological innovation. As of 31
December 2018,
copyrights.

the Group held 25 patents and software

During the year under review, the Group completed the full
implementation of the environmental, safety, health and social
responsibility (“‘ESHS”) management system (“ESHS Management
System”) and risk management system with a higher level of
specialisation. The Group has formulated and issued regulations
such as the “Safety Management Manual” (& & &I FM)),
“Safety Management Standard System” ((ZZ2EIBIZAE X))
and “Implementation Rules on Production Safety Accountability”
(KLZ2HESEHIEMAMA)) to stipulate the requirements for
various safety management tasks. Meanwhile, a safety
management structure comprising the “Safety Committee — Safety
Sub-Committee — Safety Branch Committee” was set up to
enhance our safety management structure, while the assignment
of dedicated safety management personnel was also
strengthened, with the number of our Certified Safety Engineers
increasing by more than 80% as compared to 2017. During the
year under review, several of our projects were awarded the
honorary titles of “Exemplary Enterprise for the Development of
Safety Culture” (£ 2 X/t # & /R # %) and “Advanced Entity in
Production Safety” (% & 4 = 5L i & #8), indicating local
government authorities’ strong recognition for the Group’s ESHS
management standards.
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In terms of risk management, the Group has established a three-
tier risk management system to implement effective tier-based
management. Risk awareness in all projects and departments
was further enhanced, as the practice of “dual accountability for
the same job position” was introduced. The risk management
system guided by the principle of “joint actions by senior and
interconnectedness of vertical and

subordinate levels and

horizontal dimensions” was further improved, while the

organisational structure and management process for risk
management were functioning with growing effectiveness. During
the year under review, the Group conducted 3 major risk
inspection exercises, following which deficiencies and omissions
were identified and rectified. Our key risk management measures

have been robustly enforced with notable effect.

As a result of the staff's concerted efforts and diligence, the
Group was included in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Benchmark Index during the year under review, awarded
“Sustainability and Social
Special

Market Capitalisation)”

Responsibility Reporting Awards -
Index Category) (Medium
“Best Corporate Governance

Mention (Non-Hang Seng
in the
Awards 2018” presented by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and named “Listed Company with Best
Investment Value” at the 8th China Securities Golden Bauhinia
Awards, which acknowledge the outstanding performance of the
Group

corporate governance.

in environmental protection, social responsibility and

As the convenor of China Industry Development Promotion
Association Biomass Energy Branch, the Group worked in tandem
with the BEIPA to produce a number of reports with analysis on
the current status, economics and existing issues of the biomass
power generation and tariff-related policies as well as proposals
for driving development of the industry during the year under
review, in a bid to contribute to the ongoing positive development
of the biomass industry. In the meantime, we were actively
hosting domestic and international forums aimed at coordinating
and driving the formulation of industry policies, promoting self-
discipline and regulated development among industry players, as
well as striving for the designation of the industry engaged in
integrated utilisation of agricultural and forest wastes as a

government-led social welfare business.
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Furthermore, to increase public understanding of the

environmental protection industry, the Group was vigorously
engaged in initiatives to open its environmental protection facilities
to the public. 5 projects were made open in 2018 during the first
phase, while 15 more projects are expected to be made open
from 2019 to 2020. The initiative to open up to the public has
obliged the projects to improve their environmental protection

facilities, while further enhancing the Corporate’s positive image.

The Group strives to build long-lasting and close relationships
with our customers and suppliers. Through maintaining stable
operations of projects and complying with environmental
discharge standards, the Group has, over the years, assisted
various local governments to improve local living environments,
created job opportunities, and earned acknowledgement and
approval from governmental departments of different levels by
taking targeted measures in poverty alleviation and organising
philanthropic events. As for suppliers, during the year under
review, the Group arranged for numerous visits to our major
suppliers, and paid return visits to some of our projects in light of
the service conditions of major suppliers, so as to further refine
the list of suppliers.

In terms of operating results, the Group reported encouraging
growth in revenue and profitability for 2018. The Group’s revenue
from construction services reached a historical high as compared
to the same periods of previous years, thanks to enhanced
project management at the preparatory stage and steady
progress of project construction. In connection with project
operation services, revenues from the operation service segment
continued to grow in line with the sustained increase in the
volume of projects processed. For the year under review, the
Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$7,001,820,000,
an increase of 53% over HK$4,581,352,000 for 2017. EBITDA
amounted to approximately HK$2,161,227,000, an increase of
42% over HK$1,517,788,000 for 2017. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for the year was
approximately HK$1,324,871,000, 39% more than
HK$953,823,000 recorded for 2017. Basic earnings per share for
2018 amounted to HKB64.12 cents, HK12.42 cents more than
HK51.70 cents for 2017. The Group had ample cash flow and
ready access to various financing options, reporting sound
financial indicators across the board.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS (¥BEBELRRE
For the year under review, revenue generated from the integrated @Eﬁirﬁ N EMEFRENA BB REER
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste treatment, CIRBEERNNREENRAE D BN AET

environmental remediation and solar energy and wind power i,%@%%?,OOLSZ0,000E HrpdE RSB EL
segments amounted to approximately HK$7,001,820,000 in & #4,127,440,0007T ° ?_Eé—tﬁz/’é?ﬁ%
aggregate, comprising approximately HK$4,127,440,000 from  2,952,979,000 T MM40% @ ERIEL RS W L
construction services, representing a 40% growth compared to /A&7 #2,733,532,0007C @ 8 — T — +F 7 H#E
HK$2,952,979,000 for 2017, and approximately 1,548,618,0007C3EN77% - KUz E A @ 1
HK$2,733,532,000 from operation services representing a 77% & RIE1559% - & & IR 75 15 39% M B 75 g A {h
growth compared to HK$1,548,618,000 for 2017. Analysed by 2% °

the nature of revenue, construction services, operation services

and finance income accounted for 59%, 39% and 2%,

respectively, of our total revenue.

Major financial data of integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous —Z— N \FEMEHEAEFE CEMEEEREE
and solid waste treatment, environmental remediation and solar IRBEEMNKRBEELAETER 2 TEMEE8E
energy and wind power projects for 2018 are set out as follows:  Z1T :

2018 2017
“E-N\% —T-t%
Hazardous Solar Hazardous Solar
Integrated and energy and Integrated and energy and
biomass solid waste Environmental wind biomass solid waste Environmental wind

utilisation ~ treatment  remediation power utlisation  treatment  remediation power
projects projects projects  projects Total projects projects projects prOJects Total
ENERE REREE BE AREER e R IR B5
FRER RE®EA BEEE HEEEA &  FPEE REER BEER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EBTR BETR B%Tn B%Tx AT A%Trn  BETn BB A%ETn

Revenue Wiz
— construction - BERS
services 3,763,446 363,994 - - 4127440 2892944 60,035 = - 2,952,979
— operation services  — ERRHE 1,967,199 409,146 117,672 239,515 2,733,532 1,030,719 308,785 - 209,114 1,548,618
— finance income — BIBRA 131,638 9,210 - - 140,848 70,021 9,734 = - 79,75
5,862,283 782,350 117,672 239,515 7,001,820 3,993,684 378,554 - 209,114 4,581,352
ERITDA BHS BE-
RERE A
B 1,631,932 370,246 24515 225605 2,252,298 1,143,235 241,454 (2,603) 195,827 1,577,913

Benefiting from favourable national policies, the Group received a S ERBEESHE  —T— N\F  KEEHEHK
total of approximately RMB97,005,000 in government grants and  fiF & 28 B 49 A R #97,005,000 7T M & [EF iR F
approximately RMB50,239,000 in value-added tax refunds in %3 AR#50,239,0007C °

2018.
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The Group remains committed to enhancing value for the

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). To reward
Shareholders for their support while taking into account the
Group’s the Board has
proposed to pay a final dividend of HK6.5 cents per share to the

Shareholders (2017: HK9.0 cents).

long-term sustainable development,

Integrated biomass utilisation

The Group mainly utilises biomass raw materials to generate both
electricity and heat. Biomass raw materials are categorised into
yellow culms and grey culms. Yellow culms consist of agricultural
residues, such as wheat straw, rice straw, corn straw, rice husks,
peanut husks, etc; while grey culms consist of forestry residues
such as branches, barks and other manufacturing wood wastes,
etc. In addition, the Group has developed a unique business
model of urban-rural integration combining integrated biomass
utilisation projects and waste-to-energy projects to provide one-
stop services for integrated treatment of agricultural/forestry
residues and rural household wastes in a pioneering attempt at

treatment of the ecological environment in county areas.

While our comprehensive biomass raw material collection and
conveyance system has safeguarded adequate fuel supply and
the stable operation of our integrated biomass utilisation projects,
we have also acquired biomass raw materials from nearby
locations through regional coordination to lower our transportation
costs. The combined effect of technical measures such as the
optimisation of our in-furnance temperature field, anti-corrosion
cladding and refined management of flue equipment has
contributed to long cycles of stable operation of our biomass
power generation projects in a major boost of the operational
standards and economic benefits of our projects. Moreover, the
Group’s urban-rural integration business model, with unique
advantages, has not only contributed to project cost reduction
and stronger competitiveness in the industry, but has also further

facilitated the expansion of the Group’s business footprint.
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As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 51 integrated
biomass utilisation projects, located variously in 12 provinces and
in China,
Jiangsu Province, Shandong Province, Hubei Province and Henan

municipalities including mainly in Anhui Province,
Province. During the year under review, our geographical reach
was further extended to Gansu Province, Liaoning Province,
Fujian Province and Shaanxi Province. Such projects commanded
a total investment of approximately RMB15.424 billion and
provided aggregate power generation designed capacity of
1,073MW, aggregate biomass processing designed capacity of
approximately 8,699,800 tonnes per annum, and aggregate
household waste processing designed capacity of approximately
9,350 tonnes per day. During the year under review, the Group
had 22

generating approximately 2,557,059,000 kWh of on-grid electricity

integrated biomass utilisation projects in operation,
which represented an increase of 84% over 2017. Meanwhile, the
Group processed approximately 3,159,990 tonnes of biomass raw
materials and approximately 881,254 tonnes of household waste,
representing increases of 88% and 254% over 2017, respectively.
During the year under review, the Group supplied approximately
363,391 tonnes of steam, representing an increase of 112% over
2017. As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 14 integrated
biomass utilisation projects under construction, with an aggregate
power generation designed capacity of 354MW, an annual
biomass processing designed capacity of approximately
2,800,000 tonnes and a daily household waste processing
designed capacity of approximately 2,150 tonnes.

During the year under review, EBITDA of the Group’s integrated
biomass utilisation projects was approximately HK$1,631,932,000,
an increase of 43% over 2017. The integrated biomass utilisation
projects contributed net profit of approximately
HK$1,041,932,000, an increase of 38% over 2017.

The increase in profit was mainly attributable to the steady
progress of a number of projects under construction during the
year under review, resulting in the increase in the revenue from
construction services. In addition, the aggregate volume of on-grid
electricity of projects in operation continued to rise, contributing
to a significant increase in revenue from the operation services.
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Major operating and financial data of the integrated biomass
utilisation segment in 2018 are summarised in the table below:

—T - NEANERA A
BEEBEMT -

DHEBz T EE L HE

Integrated biomass utilisation projects EYEHRERNAER
On-grid electricity (MWh) FHEESE OKRK) 2,557,059 1,393,204
Biomass raw materials processing volume EVMERMEEEE (B8)

(tonne) 3,159,990 1,684,691
Waste processing volume (tonne) Wik EEE (W) 881,254 249,212
Volume of steam generation (tonne) #ZREE (W) 363,391 171,027
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRFE - BiIE - TERE

sHAT &N GBS T7T) 1,631,932 1,143,235
Hazardous and solid waste treatment EEREREE

The Group is principally engaged in the safe treatment and
integrated utilisation of wastes including general industrial solid
wastes, hazardous wastes and infectious animal carcasses.
Currently, the Group conducts the disposal by way of
incineration, landfill, physicochemical treatment and integrated
utilisation.

The Group is capable of safely disposing of 43 out of 46
categories of hazardous wastes listed in the National Catalog of
Hazardous Wastes. During the year under review, we further
diversified our business to integrated hazardous waste utilisation,
giving us the ability to fully meet customers’ requirements on the
back of our solid technical strengths and ability to provide one-
stop services.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 36 hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects, located variously in 5
provinces in China, including mainly in Jiangsu Province and
Shandong Province. During the year under review, our geographic
reach was further extended to Zhejiang Province. Such projects
commanded a total investment of approximately RMB7.65 billion
(including approximately RMB576 million in Anging Solid Waste
Integrated Treatment Project, in which the Group held 49%
interest) and an aggregate annual processing designed capacity of
approximately 1,181,030 tonnes. During the year under review,
there were 12 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects in
operation, completing safe treatment of approximately 127,052
tonnes of hazardous wastes, an increase of 12% over 2017.
There were 4 hazardous and solid waste treatment projects under
construction with an aggregate annual processing designed
capacity of 93,000 tonnes.
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During the year under review, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement to acquire a 90% equity interest in Jiangsu
Jiayuan at a consideration of RMB180 million. Located in Suzhou
and Wuxi area, Jiangsu Jiayuan is an environmental protection
company that focuses on resource recycling. Its core business
covers the treatment and reuse of industrial hazardous waste,
such as copper-containing sludge and etching waste liquid that
are generated from printed circuit board. Jiangsu Jiayuan has two
subsidiaries, namely Jiangyin Zhongxin Resource Recycling
Company Limited (LR EZEZERBEERAA) (“Jiangyin
Zhongxin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, and Kunshan Zhonghuan
Industrial Company Limited (EILFREEHGR A A
Zhonghuan”),

) (“Kunshan
in which Jiangsu Jiayuan holds a 68% equity
interest. In terms of hazardous waste processing capacity,
Jiangsu Jiayuan is capable of processing 65,000 tonnes of
10,000 tonnes of tin-

stripping waste liquid, 12,000 tonnes of nickel-containing etching

copper-containing etching waste liquid,

waste liquid and 60,000 tonnes of heavy metal-containing sludge,
which suspended production as it is in the process of replacing
its license for operation of hazardous waste disposal. Jiangyin
Zhongxin, which is currently in operation, has an annual copper-
containing etching waste liquid processing capacity of 10,000
tonnes. Kunshan Zhonghuan is also in operation with processing
capacity of 23,000 tonnes of copper-containing etching waste

liquid and 3,000 tonnes of tin-stripping waste liquid annually.

During the year under review, the Group’s hazardous and solid
waste treatment projects contributed EBITDA of approximately
HK$370,246,000, an increase of 53% over 2017. Hazardous and
solid waste treatment projects contributed net profit of
approximately HK$245,373,000, an increase of 48% over 2017.
The increase in profit was mainly attributable to stable business
development and sustained increase in the aggregate processing
capacity of projects in operation.
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Major operating and financial data of the hazardous and solid
waste treatment segment in 2018 are summarised in the table
below:

—N\FrE;BEREEN TR ELEY
ﬁ%%‘(ﬁ%‘?ﬁ%gﬁﬂ"l— :

Hazardous and solid waste treatment EEREREEEER
projects
Hazardous and solid waste processing volume  f& & % [E 5 iz 32 = (8)
(tonne) 127,052 113,031
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRAE - BIR - TE R
SHAT & A (B¥ T T) 370,246 241,454
Environmental Remediation RIB 1

The Group’s environmental remediation businesses covers mainly
the restoration of industrial contaminated sites, restoration of
contaminated farmland, restoration of mines and landfills,
treatment of industrial gas emission, integrated treatment of oil
sludge, treatment of river/lake sediments and industrial sludge,
construction and operation of wetland parks, environmental
stewardship services and anti-seepage at landfill sites.

Since the establishment of the Environmental Remediation
Management Centre in August 2017, the Group has been making
vigorous efforts to develop the environmental remediation
business as a key task, delivering fruitful results in the building of
the environmental remediation business team, qualification
enhancements and market development. The environmental
remediation segment has been growing in size. With an
increasing number of employees, over 85% of them hold certified
qualifications, senior professional titles and advanced academic
background. The high-calibre team has provided a strong
assurance for the further development of our business.

In connection with qualifications, the Group continued to enhance
the qualifications of Everbright Environmental Repairing (Jiangsu)
Limited (Jt RIRIREE (L) BR2AAF) (“Environmental
Remediation Co.”). As of 31 December 2018, Environmental
Remediation Co. was qualified as a Class Il contractor for
specialised environmental engineering and Class C operator of
environmental pollution treatment work in Jiangsu Province. It had
also obtained a safe production permit, an “AAA” corporate credit
rating and an “AA” credit rating given by a credit rating agency
and China Construction Bank, respectively, as well as ISO9001,
OHSAS18001 and 1ISO14001 management system accreditations.
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During the year under review, the Group independently undertook
9 environmental remediation projects, which were located mainly
in Jiangsu Province, Tianjin, Shanghai and Jiangxi Province. They
included 2 completed projects, 6 projects under implementation
and 1 project in preparation with a total contract amount of
approximately RMB187 million.

In addition, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement to
acquire an 88.88% equity interest in Suntime Environmental
Remediation at a consideration of RMB222.2 million. Suntime
Environmental Remediation’s principal business includes technical
services and design, consultation and construction in relation to
environmental remediation. It is a national high-tech enterprise
with the following licenses: the First-grade Professional
Contracting Qualification for Environmental Protection Projects,
Environmental Engineering EPO License (Class B) (for pollution
remediation and prevention of water pollution), the Third-Grade
General Contractor for Municipal Public Works, Jiangsu
Environmental Pollution Control License (Class A) (contaminated
soil, groundwater and water body remediation) and the General
Contractor for Jiangsu Environmental Pollution Control License
(1st Class). Suntime Environmental Remediation holds 96 national
patents, 19 of which are invention patents, as well as 10
registered trademarks. Changzhou Suntime Environmental Testing
and Technology Company Limited (&N _E HIRE B F AR A
Al) is the inspection and testing arm of Suntime Environmental
Remediation with China Metrology Accreditation which qualifies it
to issue valid data and results with proof. As of 31 December
2018, the contract value of the projects under implementation of
Suntime Environmental Remediation was approximately RMB432
million.

During the year under review, environmental remediation projects
contributed EBITDA and net profit of approximately
HK$24,515,000 and HK$19,867,000 respectively.

Major financial data of the environmental remediation segment for
2018 are summarised as follows:
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Environmental remediation projects REBEEER

EBITDA (HK$’000)
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24,515 (2,603)
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Solar energy and wind power

The Group has 7 solar energy projects and 2 wind power
projects in operation located in Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province,
Shanxi Province and Germany respectively, involving a total
investment of approximately RMB1.395 billion and providing an
aggregate power generation designed capacity of 125.9MW. The
Group is responsible for building, managing and operating these
projects and selling electricity generated by such projects to local

power grid companies.

During the year under review, the Group’s solar energy and wind
power projects sold approximately 316,811,000 kWh of electricity,
contributing EBITDA of approximately HK$225,605,000,
representing an increase of 15% over 2017. Solar energy and
wind power projects contributed net profit of approximately
HK$110,047,000, representing an increase of 14% over 2017
mainly in tandem with the increase in the volume of on-grid
electricity supply by the wind power projects.

Major operating and financial data of the solar energy and wind
power segment in 2018 are summarised in the table below:
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$’El#\ﬁ7ﬂ@%mtﬁ( HEIEBARMEES

MWEEEE - DRIDMNITESE - RRE - IUA

aLREE ﬁ&%@?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi%’ﬂ)\ﬁﬁﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ ' 48
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REBFEA  ~EENEREERRAETERED
EENH316,811,000 T L - ERIRAE - Bt
18 - JTE R AT R I8 % 225,605,000 *
—EFIEIN15% o HRBEERREEIER TR
FEFHER110,047,00070 - BT —HFHEN
14%  TZHRFAREEREMEBES -
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Solar energy and wind power projects XRBERBEEER
On-grid electricity (MWh) FHREE OLRE) 316,811 274,299
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRFE - BIE - TE R
$H AT & A (B ¥ T 1) 225,605 195,827
The Group strives to realise sustainable development for the ATEMENUSHAFERE  KNEHESFE

corporation and the community by making vigorous efforts to
drive energy conservation and emission reduction, in persistent
fulfilment of the mission and undertaking of being “Devoted to
Ecology and Environment for a Beautiful China.” During the year
under review, the Group generated approximately 2,873,870,000
kWh of green electricity, which was sufficient for the annual
electricity consumption of 2,394,892 households,
standard coal consumption by 1,149,548 tonnes and carbon
dioxide (CO,) emissions by 2,480,117 tonnes, while saving
373,603,100 trees. The Group also treated 143,676 m3 of
leachate in its waste-to-energy power plants and hazardous
waste landfills.

reducing

BARIRE ZEEIBPEINFEDERES &
BB EEREE - REEFER - AEE KRS
4 8 E ) #)2,873,870,000F F B - ]
2,394,802 RpE—FFE A - HEREBHLHZK
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E/\"
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Business prospects

In 2019, we will be celebrating the 70th anniversary of the
founding of new China. This will also be a crucial year for
achieving success in the realisation of a moderately prosperous
society and winning the critical battle for the prevention and
treatment of pollution. With resolute determination, the PRC
government will continue to thoroughly fulfill the requirements put
forth at the National Conference on Ecological and Environmental
Protection and seek to win the critical battle for the prevention
and treatment of pollution, such that the quality of our ecological
environment will be further improved. In the meantime, a new
cycle of environmental inspection will be commenced in full scale,
and ongoing demand for environmental treatment services is
expected as the environmental protection authorities under the
central government continue to roll out “repeat inspection”.

Meanwhile, as China’s environmental protection industry continues
to grow with optimisation in the industry mix, enterprises in the
environmental protection business are facing more stringent
requirements and China’s environmental protection market is
entering a stage of consolidation where companies with poor
quality will be eliminated. In view of the challenges as well as
opportunities in the environmental industry, the Group will
continue to drive innovations in technology, business and
management and persist in seeking developments in “three
dimensions”; in length as we seek to extend the industry chain, in
depth as we try to penetrate for more market shares, and in
breadth as we look to widen our business scope, with a view to
procuring sustainable development in various businesses.

To further optimise its business structure, the Group will advance
its integrated biomass utilisation business in a steady pace to
cement its position in the industry, edge up our effort in the
development of the hazardous and solid waste treatment
business to enhance its position in the industry and increase its
weighting among our principal businesses, we will commence the
environmental remediation business with full force. In terms of
business types, the Group will drive the development of its
biomass integrated utilisation business from direct combustion
power generation to electricity and heat cogeneration, urban-rural
integration and bio-gas. In connection with hazardous and solid
waste treatment, an end-to-end change in the industry chain from
the “incineration + landfill” model to the model of “integrated
utilisation + physio-chemical processing + incineration + landfill”
will be implemented. Our environmental remediation business will
diversify into integrated environmental services, as opposed to
restoring individual sites only.
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Looking to the future, with the solid backing of Everbright Group
and strong support of CEIL, our controlling shareholder, and on
the back of its extensive experience in the development and
operation of diversified project portfolios and strong ability in
market development, the Group will continue to persist in the
rationale of being “Prudent, Proactive and Practical”, bearing in
mind its initial commitment and mission as it strives incessantly to
become a leader in China’s environmental business sector.

Subsequent events

The Group completed the acquisitions of Suntime Environmental
Remediation and Jiangsu Jiayuan in January 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial position

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$18,602,802,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$14,431,617,000) with net assets amounting to approximately
HK$9,431,074,000 (31 December 2017: HK$8,766,046,000). Net
asset value per share attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$4.52 per share, an increase of 7% compared
to net asset per share of HK$4.23 as at the end of 2017. As at
31 December 2018, gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets)
of the Group was 49%, an increase of 10 percentage points as
compared to that 39% as at the end of 2017. Current ratio of the
Group was 155%, a decrease of 61 percentage points as
compared to that of 216% as at the end of 2017.
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Financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent approach to cash and financial
management to ensure proper risk control and lower the costs of
funds. It finances its operations primarily with the proceeds from
the global offering, internally generated cash flow and bank loans.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$2,260,833,000, a decrease of
approximately HK$1,082,578,000 as compared to
HK$3,343,411,000 as at the end of 2017. Most of the Group’s
cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi.

Indebtedness

The Group endeavours to develop a diverse range of financing
options and increasing banking facilities to reserve funds for the
development of its environmental protection business. As at 31
December 2018,
approximately HK$6,006,559,000, an increase of approximately
HK$2,511,856,000 as compared to HK$3,494,703,000 as at the
end of 2017. The borrowings included secured interest-bearing
borrowings of approximately HK$4,026,843,000 (31 December
2017: HK$2,759,637,000) and unsecured
borrowings of approximately HK$1,979,716,000 (31 December
2017: HK$735,066,000). The borrowings of the Group were
mainly denominated in Renminbi, representing approximately 83%

the Group had outstanding borrowings of

interest-bearing

of the total, and the remainder is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All of the borrowings were at floating rates. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$11,261,010,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$7,057,275,000), of which approximately HK$5,254,451,000
(31 December 2017: HK$3,562,572,000) was unutilised. The tenor
of banking facilities ranged from 1 year to 16 years.

In June 2018, the Company entered into a comprehensive
strategic cooperation agreement with Bank of China Limited,
Shenzhen Branch (“BOC”) to deepen the two parties’ strategic
cooperation in energy conservation and environmental protection.
BOC will provide RMB4 billion
funding to the Group in the coming 3 vyears, which will offer

Pursuant to the agreement,
strong financial backup for its development. The RMB4 billion

funding is subject to definitive agreements to be entered into by
the Group and BOC.
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Foreign exchange risks

The Company’s financial statements are denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company. The Group’s investments made outside Hong Kong
(including Mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks. The
Group’s operations are predominantly based in Mainland China,
which makes up over 95% of its total investments and revenue.
Most of the Group’s assets, borrowings and major transactions
are denominated in Renminbi, basically forming a natural hedging
effect. The Group closely manages its foreign exchange risk
through an optimal allocation of borrowings in different currencies,
controlling borrowings in non-base currencies at a moderate level,

and the adoption of appropriate financial instruments.

Pledge of assets

Certain banking facilities at the Group were secured by revenue,
contract assets and receivables in connection with the Group’s
service concession arrangements, bank deposits, property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
net book value of assets pledged amounted to approximately
HK$7,597,951,000 (31 December 2017: HK$6,582,527,000).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding purchase
commitments of approximately HK$1,578,260,000 (31 December
2017: HK$1,470,949,000) under the construction contracts and
capital commitments relating to the capital injection to an
associate of approximately HK$56,216,000 (31 December 2017:
Nil) and a joint venture of Nil (31 December 2017: HK$9,500,000)
and acquisition of subsidiaries of approximately HK$406,380,000
(81 December 2017: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (31 December 2017: Nil).
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Tax relief and exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

Use of proceeds

The net proceeds from the global offering on 8 May 2017 after
deducting share issuance expenses and listing expenses (“Net
Proceeds”) was approximately HK$3,234,510,000. As of 31
December 2018, the Company had used approximately
HK$3,104,211,000 (31 December 2017: HK$1,013,030,000) of
the Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 21 April 2017, representing 96% of the
Net Proceeds.
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Movements

HK$’'000
BT

Net Proceeds FT1S 5018 )% 58 3,234,510
Less: Proceeds utilised W BEEREHRIE
Including: Hrh
Investments in integrated biomass KEREME GRS NAER
utilisation projects (2,069,048)
Investments in hazardous and solid waste KENEEKEREEEIEE
treatment projects (658,987)
Working capital and other general BEESREM—MEERSE
corporate purposes (310,000)
Research and development and ot 75 Ko A 25 % B 5 o AT
acquisition of advanced technologies (66,176)
Proceeds unused as of 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—N\F+=ZA=+—H
= A A ) S 58 P15 50IE 130,299

The remaining unused proceeds will be used for the purposes as
set out in the prospectus.

R R ERBEMBFAR I BRERERS
R e
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Service concession arrangement

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) and Build-
Operate-Own (“BOQ”) arrangements in respect of its projects.

The Group concluded that all the BOT arrangements and certain
BOO arrangements are service concession arrangements under
HK(IFRIC)
regulates the services that the Group must provide with the

12, because the local government controls and
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In respect of
BOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession right agreement,
the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government at
nil consideration. Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is used in
the service concession arrangements for its entire or substantial

useful life.

RS REERZH
AEEREBEREAIIRE — &2 — 88
(IBOT)) Kz — &E& — #HA([BOO)H %
B

AEBRRAAEBOTE # k& TBOOZ #1198
(BB (BRMBHRERBZES) RB)FE125%T
BERF SRR SR TE - R E MR 12 I3 B
ERBRY  MAKRELBERBTEREEREE
BERR - ABOTRHEM 5 - R AT LW H D
HR BRERIESBEERREWRFHRA -
FLBOOR M T + RIS FFE LI TAE
Rz ERRENEEEKIAR ERERERFH
EF -

Remediation works on contaminated site in Jiangsu
TERS ARG HEETRE

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ FEAXGBRRERAT -/ \FFH



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRR D

TREBIRBEBFAMEREENE RBFEIFLE
BLRIFRB TR ERLTIETEREZ
ME :

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
> R4 B A R

The following chart sets forth a summary of the accounting
treatment for service concession arrangements and non-service
concession arrangements under HKFRS:

Projects with

guaranteed Construction phase Operation phase

revenue stream BEREER EERER

ARER R

=] Statement of profit — construction revenue recognised — operation revenue (service fee received/

or loss BRREE RS receivables less partial settlement of the
Bamk — construction costs charged service concession assets recognised during
EEiC3 35902 the construction phase) recognised
- finance income recognised B FERR AT & Ui 2 (R R AR P B B M/ FE WK AR 75 B
BERERTBRA ARG AT SR EEBHENR)
Projects fulfling all of (1), — finance income recognised
) and (3 * B HER B B
E;ig) s @ REAE Statement of - the consideration receivable for the — service concession assets will be settled by

financial position

construction service is recognised as service

allocation of service fees received during the

SRR & concession assets, which is an interest  operation phase
bearing contract asset FIR 795 o ST A 4 4 K 7 G R OE T R IR B PR
REERBHEELERRRFLANEE BEAHEN
NIRBRHATREREE
CRITERIA &% — finance income receivable is classified as
) service concession assets
() e @etier @ i oralei FIRE IS A D ARSI S
controls or regulates what
services we must provide with Cash flows — payment for construction costs is classified — service fee received is classified under
the infrastructure, to whom we ReRE under operating activities operating activities

must provide the service, and

at what price

B HRFEAZE B HEE RN
RARERREMHZ RS - R

HRUARRBER

(2) The grantor of the project
controls, through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or
otherwise, any significant
residual interest in the

infrastructure at the end of the

-

Projects with
non-guaranteed
revenue stream
BRE YRR
BAE

BERAXNRASBRELEEHET
— no cash flow effect for construction revenue
and finance income

HizERaRPBRAL KRS REY

BUBRBEASEELEEHAT

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
B A% 45 R AT & R 2 B

Construction phase

BB

Statement of profit — construction revenue recognised

Operation phase

BEERR

— operation revenue (service fee received/

service concession or loss BRREE R receivable) recognised

arrangement or the B — construction costs charged B HERR AR 4 I 25 (B Ui/ e W AR 75 2 FR)
infrastructure is used in the EMKRZER A — amortisation charge of intangible assets
service concession ERAERFEER

arrangement for its entire
useful life
BHEMREAERBITFLEE
G R A R - IR AT
Bk BamEa i Aig
B3 2 o] B A FIEAF 25 -
W EEE W RIS R TR
PR EERAFHAER

(3) The infrastructure is

constructed or acquired from
a third party for the purpose
of the service concession
arrangement or is an existing
infrastructure of the grantor of
the project to which we are
given access for the purpose
of the service concession
arrangement.

A RIS R AT R
ZHE B MRRIBE=TTK
B AR AR MIEEREA
ME AR BRI RS
HERTAR SRR B B B R

%A

D

Other projects
HAtIEA

- the consideration receivable for the —
construction service is recognised as

Statement of
financial position

intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life

BRI & intangible assets B EEUTEERAFRIZESE R
HRERBHEKKEERRELEE

Cash flows — payment for construction costs is classified — service fee received is classified under

ReRE under investing activities operating activities

BEKAXNTESBREREESET
no cash flow effect for construction revenue
HEERRTEREREVE

NON-SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT
I PR A5 45 R AT & R R B

Construction phase Operation phase

BEURBERSEELEEHAT

BRMER EERBR
Statement of profit — nil — operation revenue (service fee received/
or loss = receivable) recognised
BER B MR AL & W an (B W/ e R 5 B 1)
— depreciation charge of property, plant and
equipment

¥ BERREHEER

Statement of
financial position

BRI R

Cash flows
REeRE

— construction costs are capitalised as
construction in progress and classified under
property, plant and equipment
BERAERMERERIBISREME
B RSB BET

— payment for construction costs is classified
under investing activities

BEKAXNFRADBEERAEHRT

— upon completion of the construction,
construction in progress is reclassified to the
relevant categories under property, plant and
equipment
BERTRER  CEREEFDOEENE K
B RRENEBERRT

— cost of the infrastructure is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful

life
EREAARHERFREERELRE

— service fee received is classified under
operating activities

BEUWRBERSBEELEEHAT
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As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 45 projects in
in which 34
integrated biomass utilisation projects and 7 hazardous and solid

operation and 24 projects under construction,

waste treatment projects are accounted for as service concession
arrangements. Most of the integrated biomass utilisation projects
and some of the hazardous and solid waste treatment projects
are accounted for as service concession arrangements. The
construction contracts for the biomass portion of our integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects and some of our
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects are recorded under
“intangible assets,” while the construction contracts for the
waste-to-energy portion of our integrated biomass and waste-to-
energy projects and some of our hazardous and solid waste
“service concession

treatment projects are recorded under

assets”.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the construction
revenue recorded under intangible assets and service concession
assets for projects accounted for as service concession
arrangements during the year ended 31 December 2018 and

2017.

Construction revenue recorded as additions to:

BE_T—)\F+-_A=1+—8 AEEHEH4
E#ER B k24 EERAR - Hp - 34@4EME
REMBEE kTERE;EERESRB AR
ERGEFFRERLZHFEDNIERE - HANKS
BEMERENAEE kb ferE Mk EREEE R
BABRIIERBSFE SRR - £ME R R
HE-RICEBLEYE RN ME TR MERER
ERENEEAORIBEEIDR MAEWE
KR T —48(C IR B IR E IO RBHERE
KERERERBNEES IR REFFREEREE
EE NI -

TR EEZZFE-N\F+A=+—HEKZZE
—tF+_A=+—BIEFE  ARIMERGEH
R ETHNEENEREE RRBREITEE
BEEE M REHEERZMBEMA -

$19F B T B A U3 ¢

2018 2017

- N\E —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Intangible assets mVEE 2,858,572 2,014,369
Service concession assets G EEEERE 1,268,868 938,610
Total F 4,127,440 2,952,979
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

Strengthen corporate  management and risk control is the
cornerstone that ensures the efficient, healthy and sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has always upheld a
“People-oriented, Pragmatic, Creative and Systematic”
management philosophy, as it continues to develop and improve
its management system and mechanism with a special emphasis
on fostering a corporate management culture that encourages
participation by all employees, so as to enhance management
awareness and effectively raise its management standards. During
the year under review, the Group further enhanced the
standardised operation of its end-to-end business processes with
the aim of controlling operational risks through the
standardisation of processes. Improvements have also been made
to the risk management regime, following initiatives to strengthen
know-how training and practical drills in relation to the ESHS
management system and risk management system. Professional
safety training agencies were engaged to enhance risk
identification, while a comprehensive risk inspection with collective
involvement across different departments was organised,
procuring closed-loop rectification wherever problems were
identified. To complement efforts of the Internal Audit Department,
“Risk management -oriented auditing” was incorporated into our
audit process, whereby reviews on the operating conditions and
viability of our risk management system were conducted from an
audit point of view to ensure all management systems were
effectively implemented with stringent execution.

During the year under review, the Company held the management
committee meeting on a monthly basis to conduct reviews on
project investment, project preparation, project construction and
project operation. It plays the roles of the Investment Project Risk
Review Committee and the Engineering Technology Committee to
review the investment and construction of projects according to
stringent standards. Moreover, the Company has always been
highly concerned with legal compliance of project construction.
We have rigorously implemented requirements for work progress
to ensure that the commencement and construction of all projects
are compliant with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
has consistently adhered to the operating principle of “Maintaining
Safe and Stable Operations in compliance with Discharge
standards”. We put a strong emphasis on production safety and
emission compliance and management for projects in operation,
and we have been increasing our efforts in these areas.
Competitions in terms of four indicators, namely, “Expenditure
Reduction, Efficiency Enhancement, Energy Saving and Cost
Control” were organized, on the basis that no significant safety or
environmental incidents will occur. Moreover, a “Five Minors
Innovative Award” was introduced to encourage staff creativity
and facilitate quality development through innovation.

T \FFR PEAKGERRRERAT
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group has always attached great importance to human
resource management and mapped out the structure of its
human resource requirements according to its business
development trends to provide an ongoing drive force for its rapid
development. During the year under review, the Group continued
to actively promote and attract talents through, among others,
internal training, open recruitment and on-campus recruitment.
We seek to improve staff quality through different approaches,
such as collective external training, internal associations, technical
exchange sessions and personal learning programmes. The Group
has also provided different types of trainings designed to explore
the potentials of employees, with a view to achieving co-
development and sharing of fruitful results between employees

and the Company.

To enhance technical exchanges and capitalise on its technical
resources, the Group made active efforts to build an internal
team of lecturers during the year under review and improve their
teaching through selection examination, training and education, so
that they could pass on their expertise to upgrade the skills of
other employees. To facilitate new employees’ integration, the
Company enrolled more than 300 staff members in 4 team
execution training sessions organised by CEIL, on top of
induction training. Elsewhere, 19 key personnel enrolled in the 8th
session of the CEO Course organised by Tsinghua University for
effective  enhancements in management and organisational
efficiency. Moreover, the Group also arranged special training in
human resources during the year to increase the efficiency of
human resource management. Management training sessions in
internal risk control, safety and finance were also arranged to
enhance the risk awareness, safety awareness and financial
management standards of management personnel.

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED
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To further enhance its talent pool, the Group has organised, in

addition to on-campus recruitment, competitive internal
appointment and selection to identify talents and strengthen the
selection and training of back-up personnel, such that staff with
the right caliber and ambition can undertake more appropriate
positions to play to their strengths and enhance efficiency. During
the year, the Group formulated the “Everbright Greentech
Measures for the Administration of Back-up Officers” ({Jt K4k &
RIRBEHIEEIE)) to further enhance the management of
its talent pool for back-up officers, whereby back-up talents are
trained according to the principle of “Fairness, Openness and
Merit-based selection”. In addition, the “Administrative Measures
for the Assessment and Appointment of Positions Requiring
Specialised Expertise” ((FEEHMBFTEETEMRE)) and
“Administrative Measures for Professional Qualifications and Titles
for Specialised Expertise” ((BiEERMBERMBBEIRIE))
were formulated to facilitate development for specialised technical
staff and reinforce the Company’s foundation in specialised
expertise.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had over 2,000 employees
in total in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As of 31 December
2018, our total staff cost was approximately HK$446,230,000 (As
of 31 December 2017: HK$293,376,000).
remunerated according to their qualifications, experiences, job

Employees are

nature and performance, with reference to market conditions.
Apart from the discretionary performance bonus, the Group also
provides other benefits such as medical insurance and mandatory
provident fund.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has always held risk management in high regard.
During the year under review, the Group continued to refine its
internal control and risk management systems and identify and
assess its critical risk exposures. Key risks associated with the
development of the Group’s environmental business included
changes in environmental policies, environmental and social
responsibilities, safety liability, peers competition, technology and

innovation, as well as legal and internal policy compliance.
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The risk associated with changing environmental policies refers to
the failure to respond to the changes in national policies and
business models in a timely and effective manner resulting in an
adverse impact to the business of the Group. The Group has
stayed alert on the changes in China’s environmental policies and
has adjusted its development path accordingly in response to
such changes in a timely manner. We has also sought to
understand relevant policy changes through public outlets, such
as industry associations and policy promulgation training which
our staff would attend. We maintain smooth communication with
authorities governing national/industry standards and industry
associations and take part in the formulation of relevant national
policies and standards. In response to national policies such as
the “Belt and Road Initiative” and “Targeted Poverty Alleviation”,
the Group has made reasonable planning and employed
innovative business models in tandem with national strategies to
seize opportunities for development and achieve stated goals in

sustainable growth.

The risk of environmental and social responsibility refers mainly to

the potential breach of environmental emission limits, safety
incidents and adverse external conditions which have a negative
impact on project construction and operation. The Group has
persisted in work design optimisation, stringent quality control
over project construction and efficiency upgrade for equipment
and the enhancement of project management standards. We have
also exercised stringent control over emission indicators to ensure
the compliance with discharge standards. During the year under
review, the Group continued to introduce improvements to its
ESHS Management System and thoroughly implemented the
“Standard Operating Procedures” (“SOP”). Contingency plans for
emergencies were formulated and effective rectification was
carried out in respect of issues identified. The Group continued to
disclose environmental emission data of its waste-to-energy
projects in a proactive move to subject itself to the general
public’s supervision, demonstrating its determination to fulfill its

environmental and social responsibilities on all fronts.
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The risk of safety liability refer to the risk of the occurrence of
incidents involving safety liability as a result of deficiencies and
imperfections in the safety management regime and system and
ineffective safety management measures. In persistent adherence
to the principle of “Life above all else and safe development”, the
Group engaged professional safety management agencies in 2018
to improve the Company’s existing safety management regime
and implement safety management responsibilities. Meanwhile, a
number of specialised major safety inspection were conducted
throughout the system in 2018 to identify and eliminate any
safety hazards, with a view to preventing the occurrence of safety
liability incidents. In 2018, a safety incident occurred due to an
employee’s non-compliance with safety regulations in the course
of operation. In view of that, the Company carried out an
inspection into potential safety hazards so as to eradicate the
recurrence of similar cases. The Company also launched several
sessions of safety training in relation to the entire system to
educate employees in safety management and increase their
awareness for safety risks such that risks would be eliminated at
a premature stage and the Company’s safety management
standards would be enhanced.

The risk of keen
competition among industry peers affecting the Group’s business

risk of peers competition refers to the

development capabilities and the investment returns of its

projects. The Group’s major business segments, including

integrated biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste
treatment, environmental remediation and solar energy and wind
power, are subject to intense market competition. The Group
seeks to develop new business opportunities by tracking national
macro-economic strategies and establishing itself in advantageous
sectors on the back of its inherent strengths. In 2018, the Group
placed a special emphasis on the development and expansion of
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects and noted the
impact of new technologies and business models on the
hazardous and solid waste treatment industry. Through
acquisitions, we achieved rapid growth in the hazardous and solid
waste treatment business, while exploring new categories in this
sector to complete its strategic deployment of hazardous and
solid waste treatment projects. In the environmental remediation
sector, the Group also reported breakthroughs during the year to
lay a solid foundation for future development. The Group is
committed to quality in project construction and supreme
standards in operational management, as it seeks to increase
profitability by enhancing the overall quality of its projects and

achieving cost reductions.
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The risk associated with technology and innovation refers mainly
to the failure to effectively develop or introduce new technologies
required by business development affecting the Group’s
profitability. During the year, the Group stepped up with
investigation into new segments of the environmental protection
business, such as soil remediation, air remediation and the
treatment of new hazardous waste types, and eyed opportunities
in the international market on the back of its domestic presence
“Belt and Road

attaches great importance to the recruitment of talents with

in line with the Initiative”. The Group also
specialised expertise and the introduction of deliverables from the
research and development of advanced technologies in other
countries, with a special emphasis on the improvement and
application of technologies. Internally developed as well as
imported technologies have been successfully applied in projects,
resulting in increasing technological advances in project operation.
The research programme designated for the year was also
focused on practical aspects that were issue-specific and
conducive to better efficiency, such as sustained stable operation,
safety benchmarks and efficiency enhancement. Such initiatives
underlined how technological innovation effectively supported the

Company’s operations.

Operations in compliance with laws and regulations represent a
minimum standard for the Company. The Company implements a
two-pronged control over legal risks with our internal legal staff
working closely with our retained external legal advisor. In 2018,
3 major risk inspection exercises were organised to conduct key
inspections on legal compliance of the Company’s operations.
Deficiencies and omissions were identified and rectified to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations by all project companies.
As a Hong Kong-listed enterprise, the Company has complied
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in its day-to-day operations with
improving management standards.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Group has continued to make improvements to its ESHS
Management System, driving ongoing upgrades in the external as
well as internal management of environment, safety, occupational
health and social responsibility and gradually realising systematic
and standardised management throughout the Group to maximise
control over relevant risks and minimise management deficiencies.

In 2018, the Group continued to enhance its ESHS systems and
regimes with the publication of amended versions of the “Safety
Management Manual” ((ZZ2EEF)), “Safety Management
Standard Regime” (&2 EBIZXEEE X)), “Implementation Rules
on Production Safety Accountability for Typical Positions at
Project Companies” ((JBH QA RBA M L2 EESTH ErMA
8])) and “Standards for the Installation of Safety Facilities” ({(Z %
R AL EIZ¥)). Our organisational regime has also been
optimised through the establishment of a safety management
structure comprising the “Safety Committee — Safety Sub-
Committee — Safety Branch Committee” to facilitate the effective
implementation of safety management responsibilities at all levels.
The ESHS assessment standards have been revised to
emphasise target-specific nature of safety management tasks. The
management of safety hazards has been enhanced with the
launch of major ESHS inspections for projects on a quarterly
basis and prior to major festive days and timely closed-loop
rectifications to remove any hazards identified. Various types of
process technologies, such as oxidation of active molecule, low-
nitrogen combustion, flue gas recirculation, SNCR optimisation
and submerged combustion, have been employed to ensure
compliance of our projects with more stringent standards for flue
emission and waste water discharge. Environmental supervision
over third-party manufacturers has been enhanced, while
improvements have been made to our environmental information
system by connecting with the national automatic monitoring and
basic database system for major pollution sources to exercise
effective regulation over pollutant discharge at various projects.
We have subjected ourselves to public supervision by gradually
opening our environmental facilities for various business
segments.

The ESHS management system (functional modules) have been
swiftly established, comprising features such as targeted
inspection of safety hazards, safety management records, safety
training and education with assessment tests, processes and
methods for safety contingency plans, e-operation permissions
and others. The flue emission data system has been completed
and connected to the Guofa platform for flue data on a weekly
basis, while supervision over various projects has been generally
enhanced with timely reporting of irregularities to competent
environmental authorities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBHRR DN

The performance of the operations and environmental services of
the Group’s projects are gauged in strict adherence to relevant
standards and requirements of their respective environmental
impact assessment reports, taking into account expectations of
the neighboring communities. Key regulations and standards
applicable to the Group’s business include the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the Standard for
Pollution Control on Municipal Solid Waste Incineration
(GB18485—2014), Directive 2010/75/EU and its relevant Annexes/
Amendments (for waste-to-energy projects of urban-rural
integration projects), the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
(GB13223-2011)
generation projects), the Standard for Pollution Control on the
Security Landfill Site for Hazardous Waste (GB18598-2001) and
the Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Wastes Incineration
(GB18484—-2001), among others. No breach of the said laws and
regulations and environmental standards resulting in significant
loss for and impact to the Group was recorded in 2018.

Thermal Power Plants (for biomass power

HIGHLIGHTS OF OUR ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT FOR THE YEAR

The Group has been awarded the following accolades in
recognition of the high standards and compliance with stringent
requirements of its operations and construction projects:

—  Dangshan Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project

was named “Exemplary Enterprise for
Province 2017”
Enterprise for Production Safety of Dangshan County
20177

Safety Culture

Development of Anhui and “Advanced

— Hanshan Biomass Direct Combustion Project was named
“Exemplary Enterprise for Safety Culture Development of
Anhui Province 20177;

— Rugao Biomass Direct Combustion Project was named
“Advanced Entity for Production Safety of Rugao City
20177,

— Guanyun Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project
was named “Advanced Enterprise for Production Safety of
Guanyun County 2017” and “Exemplary Enterprise for

Occupational Health Management of Lianyungang 2017”:
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— Sugian Biomass Heat Supply Project was named “Exemplary
Enterprise for Production Safety Management of Sucheng
District 2017” and “Green Enterprise with Environmental
Credit Assessment of Sugian City 20177

— Guanyun Hazardous Waste Landfill Project was named
“Exemplary Enterprise for Occupational Health Management
of Lianyungang 2017”; and

—  Guixi Biomass Electricity and Heat Cogeneration Project was
named an Exemplary Site for Standardisation of Production
Safety in Construction Work of Yingtan City 2018”.

Public disclosure of environmental information and
facilities

All of the Group’s projects in operation have completed
comparisons in online monitoring systems for flue and waste
water discharge, etc, and have linked up with the government’s
regulatory/public announcement platforms to facilitate uploading of
real-time discharge data for governmental and public supervision.
The Group has also developed an environmental information
system with real-time connection with the national automatic
monitoring and basic database system for major pollution sources
(the Guofa platform) to exercise regulation over supervision over
pollutant discharge by project companies, whether or not they are
connected to the Guofa platform. As required by the government,
the Group has also published environmental monitoring data,
inspection/testing data for occupational health factors and other
information via various media to facilitate public supervision.

The Group has been vigorously engaged in initiatives to open its
environmental facilities to the public. 5 projects were made open
this year during the first phase, followed by 15 more projects in
2019 and 2020. The initiative to open up to the public has
effectively secured the public the right to knowledge, the right of
participation and the right of supervision, while further boosting
the Corporate’s positive image.
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This is an abstract of our Sustainability Report 2018. Everbright
Greentech’s Sustainability Report 2018 was prepared in
accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”) Standards:
Comprehensive option, its Electric Utilities Sector Disclosures
document, as well as the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide published by the Stock Exchange. The
Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) of the United Nations
were fully integrated into the Company’s environmental and social
management strategies to reflect our commitment to tackling the
world’s most pressing issues.

The full report, in both Chinese and English versions, is available
for download via the websites of Everbright Greentech
(www.ebgreentech.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkex.com.hk) within three months after the publish of our
annual report.

ENVIRONMENT

Our business model stresses on environmental friendliness,
delivering cleaner energy, better environment, health and well-
being to our stakeholders. Our biomass projects convert biomass
raw materials such as agricultural and forestry residues into
electricity and heat, which avoids open burning of such materials
and helps alleviate the serious air pollution and smog problem in
China. We have also developed a unique business model
combining biomass utilisation and waste-to-energy operations,
providing a one-stop holistic solution for integrated treatment of
agricultural and forestry residues and household wastes, thus
reducing the adverse per capita environmental impact in the rural
areas. Together with our solar energy and wind power projects,
the green energy generated by Everbright Greentech provides
electricity support to various regions, and increases the share of
renewable energy in the regional energy mix, demonstrating
Everbright Greentech’s dedication to the green energy era in
China.

During the reporting period, our power generation projects
supplied approximately 2,873,870,000
kWh of on-grid green electricity, which
can meet the annual electricity
consumption of 2,394,892 households,
and reduced standard coal
consumption by 1,149,548 tonnes. In
addition to the substantial increase in
electricity supply of about 72.35%
compared with 2017, approximately
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2,480,116.54 tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emissions
were avoided, equivalent to approximately 373,603,100 trees
saved.

We accord top priority to environmental performance of our
projects, and effectively minimise public health hazard through
clean production. Hence, we strictly control stack emissions such
as particulate matter, sulphur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxides
(NO)) in all combustion operations. We have further implemented
stringent operational procedures with frequent inspection and
extensive supervision, aiming at effectively controlling fugitive
emissions of our projects. All of our biomass combustion
operations meet the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-2011), and our waste-to-energy
operations fully comply with the Standard for Pollution Control on
the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration (GB18485-2014) as well as
the relevant standards promulgated under the European Union
Industrial Emissions Directive (2010/75/EU) (“Euro 2010”).

We have been adopting calculation methodologies of Clean
Development Mechanism (“CDM”) under the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change to estimate the
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions of our operating projects as it
is standardised, accurate, and internationally recognised. During
the reporting period, we extended the use of the CDM
methodologies to calculate the carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent
emissions offset by our operations for the first time. The revised
calculation protocol takes into account the GHG emissions of the
baseline scenario as if our integrated biomass utilisation projects
do not exist, including the fugitive methane emissions released
from the decomposition of waste at landfill sites and the use of
electricity generated from non-renewable sources. This
methodology accurately reflects our contributions to GHG
offsetting in a scientific manner.

During the reporting period, the low-nitrogen combustion and flue
gas recirculation technologies developed by Everbright Greentech
Research Institute were fully applied in our integrated biomass
utilisation projects. The emissions concentrations of nitrogen
oxides (NO,) and sulphur dioxide (SO,) of the biomass power
generation projects were both reduced to below 100mg/mé, in
line with our emissions targets. We will continuously enhance
scientific research and strive to lead the development of the green
technology sector in China at large.
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On the other hand, our hazardous waste treatment projects
process over 90% of hazardous waste types listed in the National
Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes by ways of incineration, landfill,
physico-chemical processing and integrated utilisation, ensuring
that hazardous chemicals are properly detoxified before disposal.
During the reporting period, we safely handled approximately
127,052 tonnes of hazardous waste.

PEOPLE
Priority SDGs:

Facing the rapidly growing environmental
industry, we are driven to innovate. One of the key ways to

protection service

achieve this is to attract the brightest talents to enhance our
competitiveness. Hence, we adopt a “People-Oriented”
development strategy and further refine our human resources
management system to provide attractive remuneration and
benefits, high-quality trainings, as well as equal and safe working
environment to all employees.

Welfare and Safeguards

We provide comprehensive welfare packages to our full-time
employees, including insurance, medical care, and disability and
invalidity coverage. The Company has established human
resources policies and procedures to ensure that our employees
are not subject to any forms of discrimination in the working
environment due to gender, age, race, nationality, marital status,
religion, etc., and strives to provide employees with a diversified
and harmonious working environment.

Also, most of our projects are equipped with various recreational
facilities such as gymnasiums, libraries, basketball and badminton
courts, so that our employees can establish a healthy lifestyle and
achieve work-life balance. We also actively communicate with
employees through company intranet, questionnaires, annual
appraisals and departmental meetings, in which employees could

express their opinions on the Company’s operations and policies.

Training and Development

We offer comprehensive training programmes which cover topics
such as business development, integrated engineering, industry
development, safe production, and other key areas related to our
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business. Also, we regularly organise competitions, seminars, and
exchange programmes for the employees to broaden their
horizon. During the reporting period, the average training hours
per employee was 104.38, which is 19.37% higher than that in
2017.

In order to facilitate technology sharing and fully utilise our
resources, we are also actively building up a team of internal
lecturers through selection examination, training and education, so
as to keep improving our employees’ technical and teaching
skills.

Health and Safety

We have established an ESHS Management System, a set of
standardised management procedures, to oversee health and
safety risks with clear guidance. We also regularly organise health
and safety trainings and knowledge competitions, ensuring that
our employees are well aware of safety at work. With our
relentless efforts, the injury rate of the Company’s employees was
kept at 0.20 in 2018, which is 10% lower than that in 2017.*

During the reporting period, specialised staff were enlisted to draft
the System of Safety Management Standards, in which 34
standards were released. Multiple special ESHS inspections
headed by external as well as internal experts were also held. A
“Safety Production Month” campaign featuring a variety of
activities was also organised, aiming to identify and remove safety
hazards in a timely manner, while enhancing staff awareness of
workplace safety.

*Injury rate (IR) = (Total number of work-related injuries/total
working hours) x 200,000; figures are rounded to two decimal
places

COMMUNITY
Priority SDGs:

8

il
H
v n

4=
L[]

Dedicated to developing a close, long-term relationship with the

Tt

i

local communities, the Company integrates the promotion the
social and economic inclusion of all into our planning and
operations. We actively promote poverty alleviation works in
various places, and foster the sustainable development of the

wc e 10 beene (A a— 17 7

THABTHBLE W eMRAEIUFHE
HPIMmESE - RN - A88UE8 ITHFHE
IS A104.38/ N\ - BT — L FMHALL EFAT
19.37% °

BIEEMRZREEDFMAER » BIVBEER
ZH  BIHE ST AERRRAFEEDRME -
SRR TRRMMBERAKE -

EREZZ

BAMCHBETESHSEE R R UIRELWER
BFREEELE2TENRRREREHEE - &
I8 E MR FERRT 2RI MMABHRE - IR
BIRND TRRZETFENERME - ERMANTE
BAT ZF—NF ARFABEINIBXR
020 BT —HFAELTETI0% -~

DESA AAREAREEASRUEZLE
EEERER) B TABEESE - LB
BRI B ERIES RESHS Y H RS - A%
FRF RSN 22 55 B L EBIERERA
BRE2EE RANRSETINTASHZEE
-

T R(R)=(THBERERA TR/ E)X
200,000 : BIF FHBEHKF LA/ BEEMUK
~

o'
BEANURHAZXRER

FORBEHREYRE BYWNEER > AREA
HBHEMEEABACHE  BERSHHERER
BT MEBRFRUELEBHRGHED LR

T \FFER PEAKGERRARAS @ CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED Annual Report 2018



community through environmental education and voluntary works.
Our work substantially helped the integrated development of the
communities to become a society that is inclusive, resource
efficient, and climate and hazard resilient.

Promoting Targeted Poverty Alleviation

Through our biomass business, we have built a targeted poverty
alleviation industry chain which brings decent work and economic
growth to China’s rural dwellers, developed a “Government-Led,
Industry-Operated, and Market-Steered” poverty alleviation
mechanism. The government arranges underprivileged households
to collect and sell biomass materials to our operating projects,
providing extra income to the needed while helping to address
the local waste treatment problem. The collaboration model
breaks new ground to create an environmental,

economic win-win-win situation. In 2018, our integrated biomass

social and

utilisation projects directly and/or indirectly created over 20,000
jobs, and increased farmers’ income by RMB1.1 billion, benefiting
over 3.4 million farmers.

In addition, we have set up EB Greentech (Huaiyuan) Cleaning
Service Limited in Huaiyuan, and engaged over a hundred of
cleaners from underprivileged households. This action not only
promoted the rural environmental protection in Huaiyuan County,
but also brought in income and improved the living conditions of
local residents. Also, the Sugian Hazardous Waste Landfill Project
company signs the Household Waste Removal Agreement with
the local village committee every year, outsourcing the cleaning
and greening works within the plant area to local villagers to
provide them with extra income.

As a socially conscious enterprise, we aim to build resilience of
the underprivileged and those who faced hardships, so as to
reduce their vulnerability to health- and climate-related extreme
events. During the reporting period, our Binhai Hazardous Solid
Waste Landfill Project company participated in the “Tackling
Poverty Alleviation and Developing Portfolio for Childhood lliness
ilness and
accident disability insurance for a hundred of underprivileged

Assistance” charitable event, purchasing critical

AREER - RPN ITEAKREETHROES

BR O FHEAKS—EERDT EREMEMN
AR BRNEBREEZEMAALENHLE -

By hREERE

BRI EMEER  BOUTET —ERBEN
REEXE  ATENENADRETEENT
EFMEEERKE  EYTIBRFEE XS
B MBETINEKRIIEHS - BUTEBILE
NEAHERFREEDMERHEE FRMNES
BEH - AtMREEMNANREEBEEEH
WEEYEERME  FAILERE e MEERE
ZBWNHERE . —E—N\F  BANEYER
AEFABEEEER LHEEREIEEMLS
20,0001@ - FERRIBKHARE1ETL <@

0 BAERERY T ARG ERRE (BE)F
BRBARAR REMBETBARERNPE
REB - WETEFREBEEFNENRERER
T EREMERGREERA HELFK
- mEEREEREARESFEEMNTE
FAIKCER B E W Z) - KR ENETELRE
EBERSCEREBETENREERNR - LAIE
R AFIEYULA

EA—MEErENEE  RMEEILRERA
SEEEEEE M EIME - DURE R B AN SRR AR B /O A% o
EHEMBMNTE - LESRA - BEEEEERE
BEARIZHET[HERBRELRFLRBRER
BB OBEIEE - A1008EN0-16 AR AKE
WREBELANEIMEERE - BEREVER

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ FEAXGBIRRARAT —Z—/\FFR



children within 0-16 years old. At the beginning of the year, our
Huaiyuan Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-Energy Project also
sent relief supplies such as rice and oil to 34 underprivileged
households in Wonan Village who were affected by snowstorm,
sending warmth to the elderly and injured people amid heavy
SNOW.

Achieving “Village-Enterprise Zero Distance”

The Company adopts a responsible, inclusive, participatory, and
representative decision-making approach when our projects might
potentially affect local villagers, and implements short- and long-
term measures to resolve conflicts between the enterprise and
villagers. These measures include standardised operation, detailed
management, compliant emissions, public visits, etc. In particular,
we invite the public to visit our facilities in collaboration with local
officials through multiple channels including social media platforms
and local government’s websites, so as to ensure the public’s
information, right on
participation, and right on supervision. These measures effectively

environmental right on access to
enabled us achieve “Village-Enterprise Zero Distance”, allowing
villagers to fully comprehend our operations.

We also leverage our resources to provide the public with
education opportunities for sustainable development and green
lifestyles, as well as to promote green tourism in local
communities. Our Binhai Hazardous Solid Waste Landfill Project
has become the base for science education, environmental
education and industrial tourism. In 2018, our projects received
over 8,000 local and overseas visitors through visits, study tours

and exchange tours.

Promoting Public Health through Cooperation with
Local Governments

The Company consistently encourages and promotes effective
public and civil society partnerships to improve the community’s
health and environment. During the reporting period, our Zibo
Integrated Hazardous Waste Treatment Project company
cooperated with the Qingdao Food and Drug Administration and
destroyed about 50 tonnes of expired drugs in our hazardous
waste incineration facilities. Apart from providing technical
assistance, this activity has demonstrated our strong emphasis on
public and community education. We are committed to working
with the government in tackling the handling of expired drugs,
reducing their safety hazards to the environment and public
health, and facilitating the safe use of medicine.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group believes that maintaining sound and high standards of
corporate governance is not only a key element in safeguarding
the interest of the shareholders, but also a way to enhance the
corporate value and strengthen the accountability and
transparency of the Group.

Echoing the Company’s theme of “Laying a Solid Foundation and
Keeping Pace with Times”, the Group has constantly reinforced its
internal control, risk prevention and management, corporate
governance through a set of rules and regulations. The Group
strive to inculcate the risk management and sustainable
development concept into the Company’s operation and business
for cultivating the strong backup to the breakthrough
development of the Company’s business.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has been adopted by the Board
as the gquidelines of corporate governance practices of the
Company. The Company has fully complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the year of 2018.

Key practices adopted by the Company on corporate governance
are as follows:

— Develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance

— Develop and implement the Company’s inside information
policy

— Review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management

— Review and monitor the Company’s internal and external
whistleblowing policy

— Develop and implement the Company’s risk management
policy

— Develop and implement the board diversity policy and
nomination policy

— Review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
Specific
enquiries have been made with all directors of the Company

conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code and all
directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with
the provisions of the Model Code for the year ended 31

December 2018.

Written guidelines were established for the relevant employees,
including certain employees of the Company, certain directors or
employees of its subsidiaries (the “Relevant Employees”), in
respect of their dealing in the Company’s securities. The Board
has also formally adopted the inside information policy which
contains the guidelines to the Directors and the Relevant
Employees of the Company to ensure that the inside information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in an equal
and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations.

During 2018,
procedures of handling inside information and the importance of

to enhance the awareness of the specified

compliance with the regulations of insider dealing, the inside
information policy together with the enforcement actions taken by
the Securities and Futures Commission relating to insider dealing
were circulated to the Relevant Employees before the beginning
of black out period.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for formulating business policies and
strategies, directing and supervising management of the Group,
adopting and monitoring internal business and management
control, approving and monitoring annual budgets and business
plans, reviewing operational and financial performance, reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s systems of corporate governance,
internal control and risk management. It oversees the task of
making decisions in the best interest of the Company and
maximising the financial performance of the Company. The Board
has delegated the daily operations and the execution of Board
policies and strategies by formulating and implementing of annual
work plans and medium-term development plans for the Group to
the management committee of the Company (“Management

Committee”).
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Management Committee holds meeting every single month for
discussing and reviewing the investment proposal, key personnel
matters and appraisals, project schedules, budget executions,
etc.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consists of nine members,
including:
Mr. WANG Tianyi (Non-Executive Director and Chairman)
Mr. QIAN Xiaodong (Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer)
YANG Zhigiang (Executive Director and Vice President)
WANG Yungang (Executive Director and Vice President)
GUOQO Ying (Non-Executive Director)
TANG Xianging (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. CHOW Siu Lui (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Philip TSAO (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Prof. YAN Houmin (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.

All
directors have entered

non-executive directors and
letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term. Under the Memorandum and
(the
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint any person as

independent non-executive
into
Articles of Association of the Company “Articles of
a director to fill the casual vacancy on or as an additional
director of the Board. According to the board diversity policy, the
Board considers a candidate’s gender, experience, skill and
knowledge and competency and ability to fulfill duty of care and
diligence and fiduciary duties and recommendation by the
nomination committee (if any).

Mr. QIAN Xiaodong, Mr. YANG Zhigiang and Mr. WANG
Yungang, the executive directors of the Company, are subject to
re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company
and retirement by rotation in accordance with articles 108(a) and
(b) of the Articles of Association.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive directors, one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his independence and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and nature
of office held in Hong Kong and overseas listed companies and
organisations, and their other significant commitments.
Biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 90 to

93 of this report.

The Company has maintained an updated list of its directors
identifying their roles and functions on websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Independent non-executive directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose
the names of directors of the Company.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against directors arising out of corporate activities. The directors
may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses in carrying out their duties and responsibilities.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Group’s businesses and affairs as well as
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who is responsible for providing directors with board
papers and related materials. The Company provides monthly
updates to the Board members on the Company’s performance
and position to enable them to make a balanced and
understandable assessments on the Company’s performance,
position and prospect.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board believes that the ratio between executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group. Conforming to the international trend on board diversity, a
female director was appointed. The Board also believes that the
views and participations of the independent non-executive
directors in the Board and committee meetings provides

independent judgment on the issues relating to strategy,
performance, conflict of interest and management process to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders are considered and

safeguarded.
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As at 31 December 2018, the diversity of the Board is as below: WRZZE—NF+-ZA=+—H EF€Zxlkn

HIERAT
o —~0
GENDER % CATEGORY
% {5l — LWl
Executive
Directors
Female )
. Non-executive
i e
non-executive
direct W2 ZZZ 22\
B RO EE °

I“E"m BOARD TENURE (YEARS)
I=> | exsmuass

46-50 2 o0
51-55 024
2-4

61-65
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The directors come from diverse background with varied expertise
in finance, legal and business fields. All directors, including
independent non-executive directors, have given sufficient time
and effort to the affairs of the Group. Independent non-executive
directors have provided professional advices to the Board with
their diversified expertise and experience. To succeed in the
changing environment and meet the Company’s theme of “Laying
a Solid Foundation and Keeping Pace with Times”, nomination
committee has identified skills and experiences being the
measurable objectives that should be contained in the Board and

the relevant assessment was conducted during 2018:

WANG
Measurable objectives to EPN
the Board
EEQUHRER

Qualities required

FABHRERR

Leadership skill and Outstanding leadership qualities and the ability (4
experience to identify and develop the talents of
BAETREELR other employees. Hands-on understanding

of organisation, projects, strategies and
risk management, as well as know-how in
driving reform and growth.

AEBEANBERE  UREBFIFBEREAM
BTeAae - HAK - HE  BEANER
EEAERIER - W AEN A REMN
K-

Marketing-related The success of the Company as a provider of
technology environmental services that prides itself on
experience innovation is dependent on the

EIHEBRHRER development of and investment in new

technologies to facilitate innovation.
ER—RETRAFHIRERBIEMEE - AR A
BB DD BRUR B 5 B R 4% B 07 B i LA SE A
o
Financial skill and As the Company measures its operational and
experience

MR R R R

strategic performance by reference to
financial benchmarks, it is essential to
understand finance and the financial
reporting process, and accurate financial
reporting is of paramount importance to
the Company’s success.
ERARNRE2EHBERRGBLFEME
BE AR B RAI SR S R ORI R IE R
EE VA EROUBREHNARIA

MK EMEBE -
Industry experience Leadership in the environmental industry. v
TEER ERRITEERRGHAL -

QIAN
Tianyi Xiaodong Zhigiang Yungang
B#BRR BIER
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Directors
S
\'Z\\[c] QIAN YANG WANG (c]V]o] TANG CHOW  Philip YAN

Tianyi Xiaodong Zhigiang Yungang Ying Xianging Siu Lui TSAO Houmin
Measurable objectives to EPS 8#8BRE BER IER HE EBE IR BERE RBRER

the Board
EEZRTRER

Marketing experience

Government experience

Corporate governance
experience
BEERLER

Knowledge on
sustainability and
corporate
responsibility

HAHEBRACER

FEH) R

Risk management
experience

R ER LR

Talent management

AT ER
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Qualities required

FABHNBEAR

Achieving the Company’s business growth
through product optimisation and the
development of new businesses. Paying
special attention to the development of
overseas markets in order to diversify
future development.

BABCERMAEFEBRERAQAEL
MR - RERRKRSHELER  FHIE
JEBINTIBHBR ©

Experience in liaison with the government. The
environmental business is subject to
stringent regulation and under the direct
impact of governmental behaviour and
socio-economic trends.

AL ERHERR - RREBIIHEEE
E TEHERIBRTAMLSLBEBY
MFE -

Supporting and providing recommendations on
the system of Board and management
accountability to enhance transparency,
with the ultimate aim of safeguarding
shareholders’ interests.

SERHEESMEREMESIRMEZHE 8
MERE  RERRASERELAR -

Enhancing Board supervision over sustainable
development and ensuring the
achievement of strategies and delivery of
long-term shareholders’ value under a
sustainable business model.

MEEFFHARERENER  ITRRER
BEEMAHEEBEA D ERBREMN DMK
REERDEE-

Supervising risk exposures of the Company
from the perspective of the Board.

EEFENAZNE  EEADREBNRR

Conducive to the Company'’s effort to attract,
motivate and retain valuable and talented
staff.

EHRAARRS - HBHMNEEFEERES
BLRMIR T ©




BOARD MEETINGS

During the year of 2018, the Board held 4 meetings. In addition
to Board meetings, the Chairman held 1 meeting with
independent non-executive directors annually without the
presence of executive directors. Up to the date of this report, the
Board has considered, approved, reviewed and/or formulated the
matters summarized below, including but not limited to:

° Financial results of the Company;

° Reports and recommendations from the board committees;

° Announcements/reports for publication, including release of
interim and annual report and sustainability report;

° Dividend policy and declaration of interim and final dividends;

° Nomination policy;

° The effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems for the year of 2018;

° Issuance of domestic corporate bonds;

° The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

° Any possible improprieties raised out through the
whistleblowing policy; and

° Training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management.

The valuable recommendations contributed by each committee
are highly respected by the Board and the Board takes proactive
actions to put the recommendations in place.
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At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of regular Board
meetings is given to all directors and an agenda together with
Board papers are sent to all directors no less than 3 days before
the date of meeting. All directors are given opportunity to include
in the agenda any other matter that they would like to discuss in
the meeting. With respect to the Board committee meetings,
reasonable prior notice is given to all committee members. All
directors and committee members of the Board committee are
urged to attend the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings in person. For the directors and committee members,
who are unable to attend the meeting, participation through
electronic means will be arranged and available.

Should a director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he/she will be abstained
from voting. Independent non-executive directors with no conflict
of interest will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict
of interest issues.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 board committees, namely audit and
risk management committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, to oversee the particular aspect of the
Company’s affairs. The board committees are provided with

sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The audit and risk management committee, currently comprises
all 3 independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. CHOW Siu
Lui (chairman), Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin. Details of
the committee’s membership and members’ attendance records
during 2018 are set out on page 71 of this Annual Report.

It is primarily responsible for, including but not limited to,
providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process, reviewing the
completeness, accuracy, clarity and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements, considering the scope, approach and nature
of both internal and external audits and reviewing and monitoring
connected transactions and performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to

time, etc.
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The terms of reference of the audit and risk management
committee are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The audit and risk management committee held 3 meetings in
2018 and all minutes were kept by the Company Secretary. The
audit and risk management committee has reviewed with the
management and the external auditor of the Company, including
but not limited to the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group,
accounting estimates and judgmental areas and external auditor’s

significant audit matters such as significant

audit plan; and has reviewed and discussed the Group’s financial
reporting matters, including review of the audited financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the unaudited interim
financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2018. In order
to ensure the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control functions of the Company, the committee reviewed,
discussed and monitored the works of risk management in Year
2018, the risk management plan for year 2019 and the work
done in 2018 according to the 3-year internal audit plan of the
Company. Further, it has reviewed the compliance of continuing
staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of

connected transaction, the adequacy of resources,
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function and the
engagement of external auditor of the Company. The audit and
risk management committee reported that there was no material
uncertainty that cast doubt on the Company’s going concern

ability. The aforesaid reviews were recommended to the Board.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, KPMG, the external
auditors, received the following remuneration from the Group in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to

the Group:

BE_ZT-N\F+_A=T—"HBLLFE IEX
BUED 2 55 B & R = A P L A AR SR B AR (B AT I
FEEART > MAEBERRTIIME -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EF—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Annual audit services FEETRE 2,100 1,700
Audit services for global offering AR EIREE 2B RG - 780
Interim review services Fh HA R B AR 7S 350 350
Other services, includes tax service, etc HEi R BB REE 400 200
2,850 3,030

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee currently comprises Mr. Philip TSAO
(chairman), an independent non-executive director, Mr. QIAN
Xiaodong, the executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company, and 2 other independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. CHOW Siu Lui and Prof. YAN Houmin. Details of the
committee’s membership and members’

attendance records

during 2018 are set out on page 71 of this Annual Report.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee, which are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, setting out the duties of the Remuneration Committee,
including determining, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and
senior management, etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 2 remuneration
committee meetings were held. It has reviewed the proposal on
meeting allowances for the Board and each of the Board
committees and reviewed the
remuneration packages of executive directors and members of

senior management with reference to the goals and objectives of

remuneration policy and

the Company. The aforesaid approved matters and reviews were
reported and recommended to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee currently comprises Mr. WANG Tianyi
(chairman), the Chairman of the Board, and all 3 independent
CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip

Details of the committee’s

non-executive directors, namely Mr.
TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin.
membership and members’ attendance records during 2018 are
set out on page 71 of this Annual Report.

Its primary responsibilities include reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; considering the need for identifying suitable persons to
become directors and made recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, etc. The
terms of reference of the nomination committee are published on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 1 nomination committee
meeting was held. Up to the date of this report, it has reviewed
the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and the qualification and experience
of each of directors according to the board diversity policy and
the nomination policy. It has reviewed the nomination policy of the
Company. It has also considered the independence of each of the
independent non-executive director and assessed the qualification
and experience of directors to be retired and entitled to be re-
elected in the forthcoming general meeting. The aforesaid reviews
were recommended to the Board.

The board diversity policy was adopted. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, or professional experience. Other than the
above factors, the Company will also consider factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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In consideration with the strategies and objectives of the
Company, nomination committee takes a prime role on board
recruitment, including the appointment, re-appointment or/and re-
designation of the director(s), to ensure the Board having a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the business of the Company.
When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a
director’s proposed re-appointment, the nomination committee will
have regard to certain selection criteria, such as potential time
commitment for the Board/committees responsibilities, reputation
for integrity, accomplishment and experience in environmental
industry, independence of the candidate and governmental or
geopolitical expertise. Nomination committee will annually review
the structure, size and diversity of the Board, external agencies
for collecting impartial opinion in the nomination procedure may
be engaged
responsibility for selection and appointment of director(s), will

if necessary. The Board, having the ultimate

contemplate the recommendations from the nomination committee
when considering candidate(s) to be appointed or re-appointed as
director(s) of the Company.

The Company recognizes the importance of Board succession
planning to ensure optimal continuity and that the Board is
composed of people with proper and relevant expertise and skills
to govern and strengthen the Company effectively. To empower
the basis of talent pool of potential candidates, the Company
of skilled and
experienced employees and that, in time, their skills will prepare

develops a broader and more diverse pool

them for senior management and Board positions, by a series of
training courses.
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DIRECTORS’ TIME COMMITMENT TO THE - N/NETE SN o=

COMPANY

Attendance of Meetings and Trainings of Directors of
the Company in 2018

CE-N\ERQARAESHESBRREINC
%

Board Committee Meetings Attendance

HEESZEE883
Audit and Risk GLIE]
Board Management Remuneration Nomination General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors Attendance’ Meeting' Meeting' Meeting' Attendance’
Exges EORAKRER FHEES REZER KRB F
EEpE H fE R 8 ZEEEH 25 2R ASHERH
WANG Tianyi 4/4 C 1/1 C
X% v
QIAN Xiaodong 4/4 M 2/2 M v
BHER
YANG Zhigiang 4/4 M v
15558
WANG Yungang 3/4 M v
FEM
GUO Ying 4/4 M '/
5
TANG Xianging 3/4 M
EEE
CHOW Siu Lui 4/4 M 3/3 C 2/2 M 11 M
55 v
Philip TSAO 4/4 M 3/3 M 2/2 C 11 M v
BERE
YAN Houmin 2/4 M 3/3 M 1/2 M 11 M
BER
Remarks: et
Board and Board Committees Membership: EFEREFZEEKE
C - Chairman C-*R®
M — Member M- K8
Note: Bt 5
1. Meetings attended/ Number of meeting held 1. HEgH®H BOEIRE

Arranged by the Company Secretary, directors joined an integrity ARMELZHEBEEZXNERAETIRNICES

training under the “Corporate Governance: Compliance and
Beyond Ethics Promotion Programme for Listed Companies”
conducted by Independent Commission Against Corruption. Other
than the above, the directors participated or spoke on seminars/
talks/director training programme 2018 and directors e-trainings
launched by the Stock Exchange and/or reading regulatory/legal
updates and other materials pertinent to directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

BRI — ETARREEEREEE W
EEdl -l b EN ERE2ERL T EHRE
G/ MRARL - \FEEEIIRE
FREEEFHEIRIBEFHEERBEREBE
MEE EERTNER REMM K -
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During the meetings, independent non-executive directors, based
on their respective expertise and experience, actively brought out
valuable opinions and queries in order to let the Board has
comprehensive analysis on each issue.

Time commitments outside the formal meetings

Other than attending the Board meetings, committee meetings
and annual general meeting, the directors take an active interest
in the Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of its
business. The executive directors visited the project companies
frequently to personally monitor and scrutinize the operation and
internal in July 2018 for
providing full and concrete trainings to the senior and middle

control. A study week was held
managements of which Prof. Yan Houmin, the independent non-
executive director of the Company be one of the lecturers to
teach the subject of enterprise risk management.

In November 2018, all the independent non-executive directors
together with Mr. YANG Zhigiang, the executive director of the
Company visited Fengyang Integrated Biomass and Waste-to-
Energy Project and Changzhou Hazardous Waste Incineration
Project. During the visits, independent non-executive directors
were briefed on the management and operation of each project.
They met with the project general managers and non-managerial
workers of the sites and understand the working environment and
needs of the local staffs. Independent non-executive directors
have expressed their views to the Chief Executive Officer
afterward.

Under the assessment of nomination committee, even though

some of the directors are sitting on multiple boards or having
significant commitments at works in university, they devoted
sufficient time and effort to discharge their duties and

responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. WANG Tianyi is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. QIAN
Xiaodong is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
divisions of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly divided to ensure a
reinforce their

balance of power and authority and to

independence and accountability.

Mr. WANG Tianyi,
providing leadership to the Board and ensuring that the Board

being the Chairman, is responsible for

functions effectively; that directors receive in timely manner
adequate information which is complete and reliable and that all
directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings.
The Chairman also encourages directors to participate actively in
and to make a full contribution to the Board so that the Board

acts in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. QIAN Xiaodong,
responsible for the daily operations of the Company, execution of

being the Chief Executive Officer, is

business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as formulated
and adopted by the Board and leading the management of
Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and Board
committee meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations regarding the Board meetings are followed. She also
acts as the secretary to the 3 Board committees. She prepares
and keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and Board
committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes are circulated to all directors or committee
members for comments and the final and approved version of
minutes are sent to all directors or committee members for their
records. Board committees, including the audit and risk
management committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee, all follow the applicable principles, practices and
procedures used in Board meetings. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for organizing the Board training for all the
directors and circulating to all directors the material relating to the

directors’ jobs and duties for their review.
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Ms. CHOW has professional
experience in discharging her duties as the Company Secretary of

qualification and extensive

the Company and she is an employee of the Company and
directly report to Chief Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2018,
Company has undertaken 15 hours of relevant professional

the Company Secretary of the

training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As a
key adviser on corporate governance and other regulatory
compliance matters, Ms. Chow keeps up-to-date with the
regulatory and legal developments relevant to the Company that
she serves and takes the initiative to start the postgraduate

training on enterprise risk management.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FMEE (B T)

ANMARBERITARFARMEBREMFNERE
ERMEELR YRARAREE  BEEAITK
M TESR

RZBE-NF+_A=+—8B ARARAWE
EER EMRANEI 2006 BX16/)RWEREE
X - FREEERARAEMEESREHNHET
ZEER - ANMAZEEARREBNES RAZ
EEMRNER YEBEGRAROXRARERR
I

EENEREEEN T

HE-Z—\F+ZA=T—HLFE a4fE
BEKE OIS NT

Number
of persons

AE

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 751,500,001 7T & 7 # 2,000,000 7T 3
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 75 2,000,001 7T &= /B # 2,500,000 7T 3
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 78 #2 500,001 7T & 7B % 3,000,0007T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the 5
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at that date and of the Group’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly
prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

RIFBLETRAUMETNATRENEZRSER
SEHESFMEMFE - D RERNIERERME
819 -

EERMBHMRARKEZEE

EETH MAEARRREBE—_T-N\F+-A
T RLMBEENMBRERAERL  ZF
MBHRAEBER TR - KRR R AKE R
Z AR EBRR  WERAEEREZALFE
MEENRESRE  URBERZEZEERLES

EH BBRKEEELRRE -

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED e FEAXGBRRERAT -/ \FFH



The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” contained in this Annual
Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Adhered to the principle of sharing the fruit of our success with
our shareholders, the Board adopted a dividend policy. Subject to
certain factors including but not limited to general business
conditions and strategies of the Company and the Company’s
financial results and capital requirements, the dividend payout
ratio is approximately 20%.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group always places high emphasis on risk management and
internal control. The main features of risk management measures
adopted by the Group are as follows:

A. Risk Management Structure

The risk management structure of the Group is based on
the following “Three Lines of Defense” model:
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE/THE BOARD

ERREAREEZEE] EET

= o= o=

First Line of Defense Second Line of Defense Third Line of Defense
F—ERR EZEER EZEER
Operational Management Risk Management Internal Audit
(Risk Ownership) Functionalities (Risk Control) (Risk Assurance)
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Board

The Board shall be responsible for the evaluation and
determination of the nature and level of risk it is willing to
undertake in order to achieve the strategic targets of the
Group. It shall also ensure the establishment and
maintenance of proper and effective risk management and
internal control system by the Group.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The audit and risk management committee shall assume the
role of supervising the overall management structure of the
Group and provide advice to the Board on any risk-related
matter of the Group.

The First Line of Defense

In respect of the first line of defense, each of the business
center, the project companies, command authority and
project departments of the Group, being the officers for risk
management, shall ensure effective implementation of risk
control measures based on the risk management system
and requirements of the Company, supervise any risk which
involve in the overall business operation and collect details
of, and report any risk-related incident.

The Second Line of Defense

The department of risk management, being the second line
of defense, shall, based on the Board’s appetite, identify
and assess relevant risks and conduct necessary monitoring
in this regard, execute appropriate supervision to ensure
effective control of all activities of all departments internally
or between different departments, as well as evaluate and
provide regular report to the audit and risk management
committee. Each functional departments at headquarters
jointly deal with the risk-related incidents reported from the
first line of defense and the comments from the audit and
risk management committee with the risk management
department.

The Third Line of Defense

For the third line of defense, the department of internal
audit shall carry out internal audit on a yearly basis and
ensure the effectiveness of the first and the second lines of
defense. The department of internal audit shall provide to
the audit and risk management committee and the Board
an independent assurance as to the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.
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Risk Management Process

The Board cautiously prepares the risk management system
policy and risk tolerance through the audit and risk
management committee, and the management identifies and
classifies the major risks in accordance with source of risks,
its sphere of influence, events involved and its potential
influence. The risks will be ranked by the Group in
accordance with its influence and the possibility of
occurrence, while the rankings shall be based on the level
of remaining risk. The level of remaining risk is the score
value of the existing risk after taking into account all the
current monitoring measures. Assessment on the risk
analysis result aims at determining whether the risk
identified is within the defaulted risk appetite and risk
tolerance level, and accordingly, the risk could be
transferred, eliminated or effectively controlled through
contemplated risk mitigation measures.

Summary Table of Principal Risks

Principal risks Description Potential impact

Safety liability The risk of the Reputation,
risks occurrence of incidents compliance and
involving safety liability finance.

as a result of
deficiencies and
imperfections in the
safety management
regime and system and
ineffective safety
management measures.

ZEEERR BERe2EEBANE
2 Z2ERHETT
- RREEERBETE
UERREHBELLE
BEFEHMER -

)

Eol
o IR
o>
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Major change in

risk profile

(Increased/stable/
Key mitigations decreased)

TERREZL
(EH #E/
ERFRER TF)

1. Engagement of professional Decreased
safety management agencies to

build a safety management regime.

2. Multiple sessions of safety

training have been conducted. 3.

Multiple rounds of safety inspection

have been conducted.
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Major change in
risk profile
(Increased/stable/
decreased)

TERREME
(b#/ ®E/

Principal risks Description Potential impact Key mitigations

EEmMBE

Changing
environmental
policies

BRRBEE(

Legal compliance

The risk of failure to
respond to the changes
in national policies and
business models in a
timely and effective
manner resulting in
adverse impact on the
business of the Group.

AR BE TR A R 21
FHRBERBHEER
B{emH A RBEES
REEZENRR

The risk of failure to run
our operations in
compliance with laws
and regulations resulting
in adverse impact on the
business of the Group.
RERBEEERNE
KRREEMHAEE

FEERABTENR

Impact in terms of
compliance,
operations and
finance. Extent of
impact: might
result in increasing
operating costs,
increasing
pressure in
discharge, or
increasing
pressure in
operations as a
result of failure to
obtain new energy
allowance in a
timely manner.

B BB RS
FEGFESE ¥
BRE AR
EERAR T B
BN - SR
B I B R4S T RO
AL - EEE M
X o

Compliance,

operations, finance
and integrity.

Al &% BB
RBRR o

ETRTREH T B)

1. Staying alert on new laws and Stable
regulations, policies and standards

and formulating relevant regulations

and standards in accordance with
requirements in a timely manner. 2.
Maintaining smooth communication

with authorities governing national/

industry standards and industry

associations, taking part in the

formulation of relevant national

policies and standards.

1 BUEMRER  BR BEE K
R 42 PR 2 5 B R 6 SE AR PR AR/

BE- 2 HEAKR (TERETER

FI - TEBEERFEENEAR

B 2EBEFHEBRE - RE

HERE

1. Legal training. 2. Two-pronged Decreased
control over legal risks involving

internal legal staff and external legal

advisor. 3. Internal supervision and

inspection.

1 k@2 REEBARE TR
ST ERE B AR AR -
3 AHEERRS -
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Principal risks

Environmental
and social
responsibility

Description

The risk of potential

emission limits, safety
incidents and adverse
external conditions

having a negative impact

on project construction
and operations.

EREVFHER 22
FH - PRINPREE
HIEBAMERNELS
REEFEMNER -

breach of environmental

Potential impact

The worst-case
scenario for the
impact of emission
in excess of
standards or
non-compliant
operations could
involve
administrative
penalties, impact
on tax refunds or
forced suspension,
which would affect
the Company’s
reputation.

BEFRIERE
ENREEFER
RERITRE

2 FERPRW

HEE - FEAR
L

I
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Key mitigations

ERFTRENR

1. Ensuring legal compliance of
work construction and project
operations, carrying out checks on
legal compliance from time to time
as a key annual task. 2. Enhancing
ESHS management by improving
our ESHS organisational structure
to strengthen organizational
protection. 3. Amending ESHS-
related regulations to accommodate
present control requirements. 4.
Preparing for clarification and
implementation of the accountability
system this year to include
semi-annual and annual ESHS
appraisal. 5. Enhancing safety
training and promotion to reduce
the probability of environmental
incidents occurring. 6. Enhancing
property insurance management to
conduct necessary risk transfer in
relation to major risks involved in
projects under construction and in
operation.

1 BRTEERKARELBREA
EEH ERFEERTEAR

BEREREAREN -2 MR

ESHSEIE - 3B EESHSA MR
& MSRAERIRIE - 3 BFTESHS
HEGE  @EENEERE 4.
EFHSFREREEHREMZEL
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5 MARERIESE » RERR
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BER  HERR FEENEEHE
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Major change in
risk profile
(Increased/stable/

decreased)

TERBREML
(E# #HE/
T )

Stable
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Major change in

risk profile
(Increased/stable/
Principal risks Description Potential impact Key mitigations decreased)
TERRBEL
(EH/ ®F/
TEEE = TEHERIE TH)
Peers The risk of keen Business 1. Control through exchanges with Decreased
competition competition among development and peers: enhancing friendly
industry peers affecting finance. exchanges with industry
the Group’s business competitors and joint venture
development capabilities partners to facilitate real-time
and the investment understanding of peers’ actions and
returns of its projects. development strategies. 2. Control

through market analysis: completion
of regular market development
information reports on a monthly
basis; completion of internal
information such as industry
analysis reports and national market
investment guidelines on an annual
basis, as well as formulation of
competitive strategies according to
market trends on a regular basis.
3. Control through internal
exchanges: meetings among
management of various project
companies for the sharing and
consolidation of ideas were
regularly organised and contents
were recorded in the form of
summaries, documentations and
special publications for the learning
of relevant departments and to
provide reference for management

decisions.

BEHF BEXAEFHRIH EBERRI - 1 TERACENRERER M TR
FT wEREENE BEITENBRFHF RNBBHE
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Principal risks

Technology and
innovation

R RAIH

Receivables

FE e Bk

Description

The risk of failure to
effectively develop or
introduce new
technologies required by
business development
affecting the Group’s
profitability.

RS - 3l
HRITAR R EBER
B2 MYSAREA
FEEN DR

Failure to collect
receivables in a timely
manner resulting in bad
debt losses which would
affect the Company’s
profit and solvency.

AR B M RR T BE B
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Potential impact

Business
development,
operations and
finance.

S

T

Delay in customer
payments resulting
in the increase in
the project
companies’
receivables
(excluding national
power tariff
subsidies).

EPHAXNES
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B U BR SR A0
(T RRBEREE

G
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Key mitigations

ERFTRENR

Emphasis on the improvement and
application of technologies.
Successful application of internally
developed as well as imported
technologies increasing
technological advances in project
operation. Designation of research
programmes focused on practical
aspects that were issue-specific
and conducive to better efficiency,
such as sustained stable operation,
safety benchmarks and efficiency
enhancement.

SRR BCE RERER - 51T
FREMBENBINIMRAR B
BIRNERERE £ THRES
REEZNMREE - BT
KB B RN ERERDRTE
BT RE2ER RARXERH
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Customer service departments
enhancing calls on receivables
according to receivable call plans
formulated, whereby calls are made
through telephone calls, facsimile
transmissions or personal visits,
while a flexible credit policy varying
from customer to customer is
adopted under which instant
adjustments can be made. In
connection with receivables relating
to national subsidies, the project
companies are currently pending
entry into the list.
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TEERBRSE

Major change in
risk profile
(Increased/stable/

decreased)

TERBREML
(L#/ #B®/
T )

Decreased

T

Stable

5
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Major change in

risk profile
(Increased/stable/
Principal risks Description Potential impact Key mitigations decreased)
TERRBEL
(b#/ ®E/
TERR TEGBEN TH#)
Staff Ineffective human Business Conduct of human resource review  Decreased
management resource regime of the development, and related research on a regular
Company or adverse finance and basis to keep informed about staff
implementation of operations. movement; formulating,
relevant regulations implementing and maintaining
resulting in a negative relevant regulations for staff
impact on the administration. Enhancing and
Company. maintaining staff relations and
improving staff quality through
training; enhancing corporate
culture and strengthening team
unity.
BIEH EBARARRAANER  #BEER 8K TEEETAS BE RIBB AL TFE
BEATMEZSIERBR REZ- 1E ZERABNEESR  FF - &
EAT AR T E AR A M AR E TERE - BB
EXNEETE - il RA#ES TR REE
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= EREZERKRE
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C. Risk Control and Report

A report, which contains the implementation of risk control

measures and the results of risk management, as well as
details of the risk-related incidents, shall be submitted to the
risk management department by each risk bearing unit on a
quarterly basis. Based on which, the risk management
department will prepare “Risk and Internal Control Report”
and submit the same to the management of the Company,
who will understand the status of risk management and
optimise the relevant measures. The audit and risk
management committee provides assistance to the Board
for maintaining and monitoring the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of Everbright
Greentech. The department of risk management and
department of internal audit will semiannually provide
conclusive report to the audit and risk management
committee in respect of the risk management and internal
control aspects, and receive the risk management and
internal control plan for the next year. In addition, the Board
reviews principal risks taken by Everbright Greentech. Since
the fourth quarter of 2018, the department of risk
management of the Company submits a quarterly report on
risk management and internal control to the audit and risk
management committee.
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The Board and the audit and risk management committee
have conducted reviews on the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the
financial reporting functions, and they considered all of the

issuer’'s accounting, internal audit and

above were adequate.

Internal Audit

Everbright Greentech has established the department of
internal audit which shall directly report to the audit and risk
management committee. Undertaking a key role to provide
assurance to the Board of proper maintenance and

operation of the internal control system by the
management, the department of internal audit prepares
internal audit report to the audit and risk management
committee and the Board for the review of the sufficiency
and effectiveness of the internal audit functionalities. The
audit shall be in collaboration with member(s) of the finance
department, member(s) of risk management department,
member(s) of internal audit department and safety
specialist(s) to ensure full coverage of the audit. Any matter
proposed in the internal audit report shall be dealt with by
the management. The audit and
committee and the Board are satisfied with the sufficiency
of the risk management and internal control system of the

Group.

risk management

Risks Management Culture

Sound communication and ongoing education are among
some of the effective means adopted by the Group to cope
with material risk and internal control issues existing.
Members of the audit and risk management committee
actively furnish specific opinions to the management in
relation to the development and operation of the Company’s
risk management system and the building of a risk
management culture, while the management carried out the
tasks of implementing the risk management system and
promoting the risk management culture with pragmatic
efforts to strengthen the risk management awareness of

frontline staff.
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During the year, Everbright Greentech organised training
sessions on risk management and internal audit hosted by
the general manager of the department of risk management
and the general manager of the department of internal
audit, respectively, who briefed the project general
managers and directors of construction work on how to
foster awareness for the risk management accountability
regime as well as overall risk awareness, while also
investigating issues identified in the current stage of the
Company’s internal audit and related proposals. Through
this training session, front-desk personnel gained a clear
understanding of issues faced by other projects. While
reflecting on the problems of their own projects, they also
developed a sense of solidarity by sharing experiences with
the staff of other projects. When issues similar to those
discussed during training were identified in actual business
operations, the officers-in-charge of some project company
officers would contact and discuss with the department of
internal audit in a proactive manner to reduce preventable
risks. Our staff are involved in the co-management of risks
as working partners of the Company.

To foster stronger corporate risk management awareness
among the Company’s management, Prof. YAN Houmin,
independent non-executive director of the Company and
Dean of the College of Business of the City University of
Hong Kong came to the Company in person to give
lectures to the Company’s management, officers-in-charge
of the functional departments, project general managers and
directors of construction work on concepts in corporate risk
management, with a special emphasis on the importance of
risk prevention in corporate business management.

A safe workplace is of particular importance to the
environmental industry. Apart from the organisation of
several internal safety risk overhauls, the Group also
engaged third-party professional agencies to conduct three
safety risk overhauls during the year. The agencies carried
out site inspections at the project companies in the
capacity of independent advisors and furnished risk
inspection reports to the management. Our executive
director conducted interviews with the third-party
professional agencies in person and worked actively in
support of the third-party professional agencies’ efforts to
build a safety management regime for the Group. Everbright
Greentech also organised safety management training
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hosted by external as well as internal experts, who provided
profound interpretations and analyses regarding the current
macro-landscape. Meanwhile, the department of operations
and environmental management and relevant officers-in-
charge of our collaborating units provided, respectively,
detailed clarifications and explanations on the key aspects
and work processes of environmental management,
outcomes and analyses of the “safety overhauls”, as well as
methods and documentations of insurance claims to the
project general managers and directors of construction
work. The Company has set up an ESHS Management
System to exercise systematic control over risks relating to
its operations. For details, please refer to the section
headed “ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT” in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 45 to
47 of this annual report.

The environmental industry is inherently subject to an array
of SOP. Experienced staff would prefer viable and effective
methods to yet more restrictive policies and rules when they
address difficulties and risks in day-to-day work.

External Audit

External auditor carries out an assessment of the financial
reporting, relevant risk management procedures and the
control of the Company, and reports the issues of risks and
control identified in the process of the audit to the audit
and risk management committee.

Annual Confirmation

The risk management and internal control system of the
Group is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, as well as
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The system takes up an important role
in risk management when progressing towards business
Through the audit and
committee, the Board has reviewed the risk management

objectives. risk management

and internal control of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2018, and considered that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and sufficient.
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The management has provided confirmation as to the
ended 31
risk management

effectiveness of the system for the vyear
December 2018 to the audit and
committee and the Board.

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

In order to enhance the transparency, integrity and accountability
of the Group and to retain a consistently high standard of
corporate governance, the Company has adopted the internal and
external whistleblowing policy. This policy applies to the

employees/the related persons (including but not limited to
investors, lenders, suppliers, customers, services providers and
government etc.) of the Group. It is designed to provide the
employees/the related persons with the confidential
whistleblowing channels to report to the Group the actual or
suspected illegal activities and misconducts in corporate financial
reporting, internal control or other areas in which the Company’s
attention should be drawn and investigation should be initiated.
The valid whistleblowing method is posted in the Company’s
website. During the year under review, there is no case reported

through the whistleblowing channels.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining effective
mutual communication with its shareholders and values every
opportunity to communicate with them. The Company has
adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant information to
shareholders through various channels in a timely manner. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. The
Company has also complied with the Listing Rules by posting
announcements, notices, annual report, interim report,
sustainability report and shareholders’ circular(s) on the websites
the the

(http://www.ebgreentech.com/en/global/home.php)

of Stock Exchange and Company

the
designated period. Apart from these documents, press releases

for

are posted on the Company’s website to enhance its
transparency. Being constantly updated in a timely manner, the
website also contains a wide range of additional information on
the Company’s business activities. The corporate communications
can be accessed by clicking “Investor Relations” section on the
home page of the Company’s website.
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In addition to publication of information, the annual general
meeting and regular project site visits arranged by the Company
provides a forum for communication between investors,
shareholders and directors. The annual general meeting and site
visit proceedings have well prepared to ensure that the Company
will follow corporate governance practices and shareholders’

rights are preserved.

The first annual general meeting of the Company was held on 15
May 2018, the chairman of the Board personally chaired the
annual

general meeting and the chairman of each Board

committee attended the meeting in person to ensure

shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. Auditor of

any queries that

the Company was available to answer
shareholders may raise.

" |

NEREBEAD

<018 Annual General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“EGM Requisitionists”) shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2)
requisition.

months after the deposit of such
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The EGM Requisitionists can deposit the written request at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (“Principal
Office”), which is presently situated at Room 3602, 36/F., Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The EGM
Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects of the
EGM, and such
Requisitionists, any may consist of several documents in like

request must be signed by all the EGM

form, each signed by one or more of the EGM Requisitionists.

The share registrar will verify the EGM Requisitionists’ particulars
in the EGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation
from the share registrar that the EGM Requisitionists’ request is in
order; the Company Secretary will arrange the Board to convene
registered
shareholders in accordance with all the relevant statutory and
if the EGM
the EGM
Requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,

an EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the

regulatory requirements. On the contrary,

Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order,

an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the EGM Requisitionists’
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the EGM Requisitionists by
reason of the Board’s failure to duly convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law. However, shareholders are requested to follow
Article 64 of the Articles of Association for including a resolution
at an EGM. The requirements and procedures are set out above.
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person
other than a director retiring at a meeting, shall, unless
recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for election
as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a
Member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to

attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of
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his intention to propose such person for election and also a
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notices(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7)
days and that (if the notices are submitted after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election) the
period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to
the date of such general meeting. The written notice must state
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is posted
on the Company’s website.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations department
which contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Everbright Greentech Limited

Room 3602, 36/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2433 6546

Email: ir@ebgreentech.com

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the

constitutional documents of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEAE

Mr. WANG Tianyi

aged 56, is a Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
WANG currently serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He is currently a part-time professor of Tsinghua
University and a Co-Director of the Center for PPP of Tsinghua
University. He is also a member of the UNECE PPP Business
Advisory Board, a member of the China Council for International
Cooperation on Environment and Development, a vice chairman of
Industrial and Academic Union of Ecological Environment of the
China Association for Science and Technology and a member of
China Business Research Centre Advisory Council of National
University of Singapore. He holds a Doctorate degree in
Economics, a Master’s degree in Management and a Bachelor’s
degree in Electronics from Tsinghua University. He had pursued
advanced studies at Harvard University and University of California
in the United States. Mr. WANG is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer and member of nomination committee of
CEIL. He is also a non-executive director and chairman of the
Board of China Everbright Water Limited, the CEIL’s subsidiary
listed in Singapore, stock code: U9E.SG. Prior to joining the
Company, he was the Dean of Shandong Academy of Sciences.
He was formerly the Deputy Mayor of Jinan City of Shandong
Province. He had been the Vice President, the Dean and
Professor of the School of Economics and Management of Yantai
University of Shandong Province. Mr. WANG joined the Board in
January 2018.

Mr. QIAN Xiaodong

aged 46, is an Executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and
a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. QIAN
currently serves as a director of numerous subsidiaries of the
Group. Prior to his position in the Company, Mr. QIAN served as
the general manager of the investment development department
of CEIL and the general manager of Everbright Environmental
Protection Venture Capital (Shenzhen) Ltd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEIL. He is also the Executive Director and Deputy
General Manager and the member of the disclosure committee of
CEIL. Mr. QIAN obtained a bachelor’'s degree in thermal
engineering from Dalian University of Technology in the PRC and
a master’s degree in environment engineering from the Southeast
University in the PRC. He has comprehensive experience and
knowledge in market development of environmental protection
industry, national environmental policies and industrial trend. As at
the date of this annual report, he beneficially owns 182,000
shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong. Mr. QIAN joined the Board in October 2015.

ITRERE

REO ARRIFATEEREFTERRERE
BEgxXF IN4ABRECARESETHEAR
EE - WRATFEABRBHENBEEAR
PPPEREHR LA AR MEBBMNEEEZE
EPPPERZBEZE PERFHEZRERAS
FREEZRE  TEMBERRRESH S ES
EF AR B S A B BB ST 5T L
AREEZB BRAFEABKAESEL B
BERTMNEFRELTH WAABAEXEREAX
BRMMMABEERE - THRERBIEKRERHR
TEERTHAEHRNERZEENE - RITAT
B Yt RKOKIS AR 2 7] (L R BIER 7 #7 pn £ Y
MEAR - RENSE - UIE.SG) HIFEMITE E5#
EER-EMAKRRAR - BALURER Sl
R-BAGELRABEEMEAITR - WEEILR
EEAARBEIRE KEBRREEERHE - X
ER-_T-N\F-AMAE=ZE -

BBERLAE

BRF465%  ARAMITEERITHAE - W AH
MEZEGZKE - ERERAEEARAEEZRHN
BRARZES - BALEARBERA - GHEME
RRBEREREZERDELENARERENEZE
B A R ARFRAIZRE ORI BR AR
IR IR ABERRITEETRABEE R
BZEENE BAELREPEAEET KNSR
ERIRSETRUNPEREABRRIRELE
i - WP EIRERTS BERITEBY T E%E
BELERKR NAFHRAY L EFBIEHIE571
BR5 LB GRD ([EHFME G ] EXVERE
EME - KE@HEF182,0000 M5 - # % £ R
“E-hAETANMAEEE -

Annual Report 2018~ CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ FEAXKGERRARAT —=—/\FFH



Mr. YANG Zhigiang

aged 58, is an Executive Director and the Vice President of the
Company. Mr. YANG currently serves as a director of numerous
subsidiaries and 1 associate company of the Group. With effect
from 3 January 2019, he was appointed as a non-executive
director of Weigang Environmental Technology Holding Group
Limited (1845.HK). Mr. YANG was appointed as a non-executive
director of China Everbright Water Limited (a subsidiary of CEIL
listed in Singapore, stock code: U9E. SG) from 12 December
2014 to 23 February 2017. He served as the chief legal officer in
CEIL. Mr. YANG obtained a bachelor’s degree from the Medical
Science Department of Beijing Medical University (FF B4t ;& &}
X&) in the PRC and a Postgraduate Diploma in Law from The
College of Law of England and Wales. He has the qualification of
an attending doctor and is a qualified lawyer in the PRC. Mr.
YANG joined the Board in October 2015.

Mr. WANG Yungang

aged 56, is an Executive Director and the Vice President of the
Company. Mr. WANG currently serves as a director of certain
subsidiaries and 1 joint venture of the Group. He was served as
the deputy chief engineer and deputy general manager in
Everbright Environmental Protection Engineering (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (X AIRIR LIEFEM (FI) BRAF]) and the
general manager of the engineering management center of
Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Company Limited (3%
KIRIR (FFE) AR Aa]). Prior to joining CEIL, Mr. WANG had
held various managerial positions in Harbin Electric International
Company Limited. Mr. WANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
electrical engineering from Northeast Dianli College (R1L&E 2
Bt) in the PRC and a certificate of completion of a management
science and engineering program from Harbin Institute of
Technology (WMEEELHAZ) in the PRC. Mr. WANG is a
qualified senior engineer in the PRC. He joined the Board in April

2016.

Ms. GUO Ying

aged 50, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company, she holds
a bachelor degree of accounting in Beijing Technology and
Business University. She holds titles of senior accountant and
senior auditor in PRC. She is the general manager of internal
auditor department and risk management department of CEIL.
She joined the Board in January 2018.
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Mr. TANG Xianging

aged 54, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. TANG
currently serves as the chief investment officer of CEIL and a
part-time lecturer of the master in finance program of the School
of Economics and Management in South China Normal University
(FEr AKX E) in the PRC. Prior to joining the CEIL Group, Mr.
TANG had been served as deputy governor of the Guangzhou
branch of China Everbright Bank Company Limited (6818.HK).
Also, he had served as the governor of the Guangzhou branch of
Guangdong Huaxing Bank (BEER#EE$E7T) from 2013 to 2014 and
the governor assistant at Guangdong Huaxing Bank from 2013 to
2016. Mr. in World
Economics from Sichuan University (F9)I|7X&) (formerly known as
Sichuan Union University (9)IH§& AX2)) in the PRC, and has
been awarded the qualification as Economist specialising in

TANG obtained his master’s degree

finance by Office of the Leading Group for Professional Title
Reforms in Guangzhou (BMMEBEMEEE/ NEFAE). M.
TANG joined the Board in April 2016.

Mr. CHOW Siu Lui

aged 58, Mr. CHOW is an Independent Non-executive Director,
the Chairman of Audit and Risk Management Committee and a
member of Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company. Mr. CHOW is currently a partner of VMS Investment
Group (HK) Ltd., an independent non-executive director of
Fullshare Holdings Limited (607.HK), Genertec Universal Medical
Group Company Limited (Formerly known as Universal Medical
Financial & Technical Advisory Services Company Limited)
(2666.HK), Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd
(1635.HK) and Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited
(465.HK). He was an independent non-executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited (659.HK) and Shi Shi Services Limited (Formerly
known as Heng Sheng Holdings Limited) (8181.HK) and Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (6833.HK). He was a partner in
KPMG and chairman of the Mainland Development Strategies
Advisory Panel of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and a member of its Registration and
Practice Committee of the HKICPA. Mr. CHOW was also the
chairman of the audit committee and a council member of the
Mr. CHOW
obtained the Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong

Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Kong Polytechnic University. He is qualified as a fellow member of
Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now renamed as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. CHOW joined
the Board in May 2017.
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Mr. Philip TSAO

aged 58, Mr. TSAO is an Independent Non-Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
Nomination and Audit and Risk Management Committees of the
Company. Mr. TSAO is currently the founder and chief executive
officer of CHANCES Advisory Group and a non-executive director
of Bank SinoPac and SinoPac Securities (Asia) Limited (both as a
subsidiary of SinoPac Financial Holdings Company Limited, a
company listed on Taiwan stock exchange with stock code:
2890.TT) with effect from 1 May 2018 and 1 July 2018
respectively. He served as a consultant at Barclays Capital Asia
Limited. Prior to his current role, Mr. TSAO was a managing
director of Barclays Capital Asia Limited, an executive director of
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C., a managing director of UBS, the
president of China Development Industrial Bank (7 %= 7 %% T ¥R
17) (“CDIB”), an executive vice president of China Development
Financial Holding Corporation (4 # % & gh %= ik A &) (“CDFHC”,
a company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange with stock code:
2883.TT), a director of CDFHC and CDIB (a subsidiary of
CDFHC), and a managing director of Morgan Stanley Asia. Mr.
TSAO received a bachelor's degree in power mechanical
engineering from National Tsing Hua University in Taiwan, and a
Master of Business Administration degree from National Taiwan
University in Taiwan. Mr. TSAO is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
Mr. TSAO joined the Board in May 2017.

Prof. YAN Houmin

aged 64, is an Independent Non-Executive Director and a
member of Nomination, Remuneration and Audit and Risk
Management Committees of the Company. Prof. YAN currently
serves as the chair professor of management sciences and the
Dean of College of Business at the City University of Hong Kong.
Previously, Prof. YAN served as a tenured associate professor at
the School of Management, University of Texas at Dallas. He was
also the Director of Executive M.Sc. Programme in Logistics and
Supply Chain Management at the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, an alternate director and research advisor for the Hong
Kong Research and Development Center for Logistics and Supply
Chain  Management Enabling Technologies and an Executive
Director for Centre of Supply Chain Management and Logistics
Optimization at the Li & Fung Institute of Supply Chain
Management, the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prof. YAN
received his bachelor’'s degree and master’s degree in electrical
engineering from the Department of Automation in Tsinghua
University in the PRC and his doctor of philosophy degree from
the University of Toronto in Canada. Prof. YAN joined the Board
in May 2017.
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Mr. ZHANG Hanwei

Mr. ZHANG is the Chief Technology Officer of the Company. Prior
to joining the Group, he served as R&D Director of Covanta
Energy Inc., with nearly twenty years’ experience in the research
Mr. ZHANG is
concurrently serving as the chief technology officer of CEIL and

and development of relevant technologies.
Secretary-General of the Waste-to-Energy Research and
Technology Council-Asia. Mr. ZHANG graduated from Columbia
University of the United States with a Doctoral Degree in
Environmental

October 2016.

Engineering. Mr. ZHANG joined the Group in

Mr. LO Kam Fan

Mr. LO is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Mr. LO also
serves as a director of numerous subsidiaries and 1 joint venture
company of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LO held
senior positions at a number of listed companies on Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, including financial controller of Shenzhen
International Holdings Limited (0152.HK), financial controller and
company secretary of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited (8169.HK), chief
financial officer and company secretary, respectively, of Wai Chun
Mining Industry Group Company Limited (0660.HK) and Wai Chun
Group Holdings Limited (1013.HK) and China Vanguard You
Champion Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Vanguard

Group Ltd.) (8156.HK).

Mr. LO obtained an honours diploma in Accounting from Hong
Kong Shue Yan University and a master’s degree in Finance from
Curtin University of Technology Australia. Mr. LO is a Fellow
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate of the Association of International

member of the Hong Kong

Accountants. Mr. LO joined the Group in November 2015.
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Mr. WANG Dianer

Mr. WANG is the Vice President of the Company. Mr. WANG
joined Everbright Group since November 2006. At present, he
serves as a director of EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy
(Nanjing) Limited and the general manager of Everbright
Limited. Mr. WANG has

previously served as the deputy general manager of Everbright

Environmental Repairing (Jiangsu)
Environmental Energy (Yixing) Limited, the deputy supervisor of
Jinan WTE Project, the general manager of EB Alternative Energy
(Dangshan) Limited, the project leader of the construction of
Dangshan project, the general

(Zhenjiang)

manager of EB Photovoltaic Energy (Zhenjiang) Limited and EB

manager of Everbright

Environmental Energy Limited and the general

Photovoltaic Energy (Huaining) Limited.

Mr. WANG completed the legal
University in the PRC and the power plant and electricity system
program of Shanghai University of Electric Power in the PRC. Mr.
WANG joined the Group in January 2016.

studies program of Anhui

Mr. ZHANG Jianping

Mr. ZHANG is the Chief Investment Officer and the general
manager of its Solid Waste Management Centre of the Company.
Mr. ZHANG is currently serves as a director of various
subsidiaries, 1 joint venture company and 1 associate company
of the Company. Before joining the Group, he was the deputy
director of Suzhou Environmental Sanitation Administration
Agency. Mr. ZHANG has served as the vice chairman of
Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Limited, the standing
representative of the Nanjing Representative Office of CEIL, the
general manager of Everbright Environmental Energy (Nanjing)
Limited, the general manager of Everbright Environmental Energy
(Suzhou) Limited, and the general manager of Everbright
Environmental Protection (Suzhou) Solid Waste Treatment
Company Limited. Mr. ZHANG graduated from Nanjing
Engineering Institute (currently known as Southeast University),
majoring in Environmental Engineering, Mr. ZHANG joined the
Group in April 2016.
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Mr. SUN Xiandong

Mr. SUN is the Chief Operating Officer of the Company. He
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology, major
in thermal energy and power engineering, and completed a CEO
management training programme from Tsinghua University. Mr.
SUN has been engaged in power-related construction and power
plant operation and administration for 35 years. Since joining
Everbright Group in November 2006, he has been repeatedly
named “Outstanding Manager in CEIL”. He has served as deputy
general manager of Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou)
Limited, general director at the project command centre of
Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company Limited,
deputy general
(Pizhou) Ltd.,
Environmental Protection (Northern Anhui) Administrative Center
(tR&ZFERRERIEEE S L) and Everbright Greentech
Environmental Protection (Anhui) Administrative Center (¢ A4% &
BRIRLHEIEP D). Meanwhile, he concurrently served as general

manager of Everbright Environmental Energy

general manager of Everbright Greentech

manager in various subsidiaries, namely Everbright Biomass

Energy (Lingbi), general manager of EB Urban and Rural
Renewable Energy (Xiao County) Limited and general manager of
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Fengyang) Company
Limited. He is currently serves as director at a number of
subsidiaries of the Company and general manager of Everbright
Greentech Environmental Protection Clean Energy Administrative
Centre (Jt R&FEIRRBZLIRE IR L), Everbright Alternative
Energy (Dangshan) Company Limited and Everbright
Environmental Energy (DangShan) Limited. Mr. SUN joined the

Group in January 2016.

Ms. CHOW Wing Man

Ms. CHOW is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is a
Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
She has over 15 years of experience in the fields of company
secretarial and compliance. Ms. CHOW holds a bachelor’s degree
in laws from the University of London and a master’s degree in
Finance (corporate finance) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. CHOW joined the Group in July 2017.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHS

The directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which
are to be presented at the annual general meeting to be held at
Salon | & I, Mezzanine Floor, Grand Hyatt Hong Kong, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 21 May 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Business review of the Group during the year, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the year ended 31 December 2018 (if any), an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are provided from pages 16 to 41 of this annual
report. Description of the possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out on pages 41 to 44. Also, the
financial risk management of the Group can be found in note 24
to the financial statements. A discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance can be found from pages

45 to 55.

The Group believes that stakeholders provide valuable insights to
its business development, which support the Group in developing
sustainable and long-term strategies. Therefore, the Group invites
stakeholders to join stakeholder engagement exercises on a
regular basis, throughout the whole project life cycle from the
planning stage to the operation stage, to express their views on
issues that are relevant to the Group’s operational and
environmental performance. The Group actively pursues effective
engagement and on-going dialogue with its stakeholders through
processes that are collaborative, transparent and responsive. Key
include investors,

stakeholders of the Group shareholders,

employees, governments, local communities, business partners,
suppliers, media and investment analysts, etc.
The aforesaid discussions form part of this “Report of the

Directors”.
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Report of the Directors

EZERS

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
(Continued)

As a PRC environmental protection services provider and
investment company listed in the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Group shall comply with the relevant rules and
regulations of both of the PRC and Hong Kong. For maintaining
the development of environmental business and investment
business in mainland China, the Group shall comply with national
policies set out by the PRC Government as mentioned in the
“Environmental and Social Management” section stated in pages
45 to 47 of this report.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance in the Cayman Islands, Hong
Kong and PRC, the Listing Rules and the SFO for, among other
things, the disclosure of information and corporate governance,
and the Group has adopted the Model Code.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 120 to 121 of this Annual Report respectively.

The Board of the Company has proposed the payment of a final
dividend of HK6.5 cents (2017: HK9.0 cents) per ordinary share
for the year ended 31 December 2018 payable on or around
Friday, 14 June 2019 to Shareholders whose names are on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 28 May 2019.
Together with the interim dividend of HK6.0 cents (2017: Nil) per
ordinary share in June 2018, the total distribution of dividend by
the Company for the year of 2018 will be HK12.5 cents per
ordinary share (2017: HK9.0 cents). The dividend payout ratio in
2018 is 19.5%.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A financial summary of the Group for the last 4 financial years is
set out on pages 247 to 248. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$4,503,246,000. Details
of distributable reserve of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,435,000.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the major customers and suppliers
of the Group respectively during this financial year is as follows:

Report of the Directors
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=E 30 HERE
The largest customer BEREF 22%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREF & 47%
The largest supplier AR 6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARBEEER 18%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
and subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

WANG Tianyi** (Chairman)

QIAN Xiaodong* (Chief Executive Officer)
YANG Zhigiang* (Vice President)

WANG Yungang* (Vice President)

GUO Ying**

TANG Xianging**

CHOW Siu Lui***

Philip TSAO***

YAN Houmin***

Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
e Independent Non-Executive Director
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles of
Association, Messrs. QIAN Xiaodong, YANG Zhigiang and WANG
Yungang will retire from office as executive directors of the
Company by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. CHOW Siu Lui, Mr. Philip TSAO and Prof. YAN Houmin,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 90 to 96
of this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, there are changes
in the information required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraph
(@) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules subsequent
to the date of the 2018 interim report of the Company. The
changes of information on directors are as follows:

(1) Mr. WANG Tianyi was appointed as a vice chairman of
Industrial and Academic Union of Ecological Environment of
the China Association for Science and Technology with
effect from 26 September 2018.

(2) Mr.
execuitive director of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings
Limited (6833.HK) on 8 November 2018.

CHOW Siu Lui resigned as an independent non-

(8) Mr. YANG Zhigiang was appointed as a non-executive
director of Weigang Environmental Technology Holding
Group Limited (1845.HK) with effect from 3 January 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The term of service as a director of the Company is subject to
re-election at the next annual general meeting of the Company
and retirement by rotation in accordance with the provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Report of the Directors

EXEHRS

5% (&)

RIESZRMAIZE108(@) 2 1080)IEZ BT » R
Tk BEREERTEREEBRENERITH
BREBFERE LHFETCAQTRNTES  BRF
B AR ERET -

AAFEEEHIELE BABLALRRER
RE2 EEBT S RERE  RNARS BB
WEABIAL -

% RERERELAEN

ARFEERAEESHRERBZBREFEIH
MAFRMEIOEZFEICE ©

R g g
BIE EMAAE1351B) K AR ZE—N\F
FHREAHRZE 2 ERTEIRERE ETRAE
13510k @ZEE)RQBETUREZEE  -E=X
BREZEINT

1 EFREEEE-_Z—/N\FhLAZ-+HEE
EZTATRRHBEREREESH S EE
FE e

@ BIERER-F-AFT—A\BEHE
SRR B8 B AE R A R 2 A (6833.HK) 2 78
NIFBITES -

B BERELE-_T-HhF-—A=-HEEZ
TEHEFTRRVEZEREERBR A A
(1845.HK) Z FEHITEE ©

B2 ZRBE X
ARREFZ RBAHERBALRAFRELIR

7]
EEARR TERRBFASEREE NGRS
;&o

—E-)\FFR PERKEGEBREBRAT @ CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Each of the non-executive director and independent non-
executive director has entered into a letter of appointment with

the Company for a term of two years and/or around two years.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company or any
entities connected with the director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

NO COMPETITION BETWEEN CEIL AND THE
COMPANY

In connection with the spin-off of the Group from CEIL, the
Company implements some corporate governance measures to
confirm that the directors of both of CEIL and the Company will
be able to function and operate independently and effectively in
the best interest of the respective companies. Details of the no
competition between CEIL and the Company are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of
the listing document issued by the Company dated 21 April
2017 (“Listing Document”).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. WANG
Tianyi and Mr. QIAN Xiaodong are also the executive directors of
CEIL. CEIL is a listed intermediate holding company of the
Company and is engaged in renewable energy business. CEIL
may be in competition with the Group. However, as stated in the
section “No competition between CEIL and the Company” above,
the Company implements some corporate governance measures
to ensure the independence between CEIL and the Company. Up
to the date of this annual report, there is no change in the details
previously disclosed in the Listing document.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors are considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of
the remuneration committee. The emoluments are determined with
reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performances
and the results of the Group. No director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.
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Report of the Directors

ESERS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company’s directors (the “Directors”) and chief executive who
held office at 31 December 2018 had the following interests in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance) at that date as recorded in the register of directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

Capacity
Name of director F1n

Beneficial owner

BEaBEAA

Qian Xiaodong SEEEH

Note: As at 31 December 2018, the number of shares in issue was
2,066,078,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE 1IRIEHEA KEISEMETHEZIKE
UNDER THE SFO o

RZF-NF+-A=+—8B TIHALTE
BARREFHIZITRAR) RARF 2R
KA D R A RIEE %&%ﬁf{lﬂﬁﬂ%fﬂ%ﬂx

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than a
director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under FRERLENBEF 2 ELfRsEkmEe AR
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company X FTZ SO AT ¢

and the Stock Exchange:

Long position in shares of the Company EQRRGZEFRE

Long position in ordinary
shares held and
approximate percentage
of total issued shares
(note (5))

LRk TR
Eaiéﬂﬂx{“ﬁ!% Z

Name of substantial
shareholder

China Everbright Green
Holdings Limited (“CE
Green Holdings”) (note (1))

China Everbright International
Limited (“CEIL”) (note (1))

China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited (“CE
Hong Kong”) (note (2))

Datten Investments Limited
(“Datten”) (note (2))

Guildford Limited (“Guildford”)
(note (2))

China Everbright Group Ltd.
(“China Everbright Group”)
(note (2))

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin”)

TERRAM

PEAAREERER A
(MR ERR]) (M)

AKX ABE AR AT
(T RERD) (M)

REEAKEARAA
(MEXEED(HEQ)

Datten Investments Limited

([Datten ) (FT7E(2))

Guildford Limited ([ Guildford )
(FiE@)

RESAKERN A
(MBI AR E ) (MFEQ)

PRESREFREAAT
(ME<])

Capacity
17

Beneficial Owner

ESBAA

Interest of controlled
corporation

REHARMER

Interest of controlled
corporation
ZEHI A RMER

Interest of controlled
corporation
T DR ES

Interest of controlled
corporation

REHAR MRS

Interest of controlled
corporation
ZEH A RMER

Interest of controlled
corporation
T DR ES

Nature of interest
BEaftE

Corporate interest
NGIL Lo

Corporate interest
UNGIE

Corporate interest
RAlER

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
UNGIE

Corporate interest
RAlER

BHBEL
(M ZE(5))

1,440,000,000
69.70%

1,440,000,000
69.70%

1,462,912,986
70.81%

1,461,706,369
70.75%

1,461,706,369
70.75%

1,462,912,986
70.81%

1,462,912,986 (note (3))

(P5E())
70.81%

100,550,000 (note (4))

(M)
4.87%
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Report of the Directors
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INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SFO (Continued)

Notes:

(1) CE Green Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEIL, which is
in turn controlled 41.95% by CE Hong Kong, through its direct and
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. Accordingly, CEIL and CE Hong
Kong are deemed to be interested in the 1,440,000,000 ordinary
shares held by CE Green Holdings.

2) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares of CE Hong
Kong. CE Hong Kong holds (1) 100% of the issued shares of
Datten which in turn holds 55% of the issued shares of Guildford;
(2) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright Investment &
Management Limited (“EIM”); and (3) 45% of the issued shares of
Guildford, respectively. Out of the 1,462,912,986 ordinary shares,
1,440,000,000 ordinary shares are held by CE Green Holdings and
21,706,369 ordinary shares are held by Guildford. The remaining
1,206,617 ordinary shares are held by EIM. Accordingly, China
Everbright Group and CE Hong Kong are deemed to be interested
in those ordinary shares held by CE Green Holdings, Guildford and
EIM respectively.

3) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China and holds 55.67% equity interests of China
Everbright Group. It is deemed to be interested in the
1,462,912,986 ordinary shares that China Everbright Group is
deemed to be interested in.

(4) Huijin is also deemed to be interested in 100,550,000 ordinary
shares held by its associated companies and a non wholly-owned
subsidiary.

5) As at 31 December 2018, the number of ordinary shares in issue
was 2,066,078,000 shares.

Apart from the foregoing, the Company had not been notified of
any other interests by prescribed notices which were required to
be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers
of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Deposit and loan services

On 17 March 2017, the Company entered into the Deposit

Services Framework Agreement and the Loan Services

Framework Agreement (collectively, the

“Services Framework

Agreements) with China Everbright Group. Pursuant to the

Services Framework Agreements, China Everbright Group will,

through its associate, China Everbright Bank Company Limited

(“CE Bank”), provide deposit, loan and related services to the
Group.

(@)

Pursuant to the Deposit Services Framework Agreement,
China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to provide
deposit services to the Group (including current and fixed
term deposit) in accordance with rules and regulations
prescribed by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) and/or
other relevant rules and regulations within or outside the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The deposit services to
be provided by China Everbright Group shall be on normal
commercial terms and no less favourable than the terms
available to the Group from independent third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the maximum
daily closing balance of the Group’s deposits (including
interests accrued thereon) placed in CE Bank amounted to
approximately HK$496,624,000. This amount was below the
annual cap of HK$500,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 which was proposed in the prospectus
published on 21 April 2017.

The Loan Services Framework Agreement shall be on a non-
exclusive basis and the Company is at liberty to obtain loan
services from other third parties. Pursuant to the Loan
Services Framework Agreement, China Everbright Group
shall procure CE Bank to provide loans to the Group
(including revolving credit facility and fixed term loan) in
accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the
PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within or
outside the PRC. The loans services to be provided by
China Everbright Group shall be on normal commercial
terms and no less favourable than the terms available to the
Group from independent third parties.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Deposit and loan services (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the maximum daily
closing balance of the Group’s loans (excluding loans which do
not require security over the assets of the Group) provided by CE
Bank amounted to approximately HK$287,500,000. This amount
was below the annual cap of HK$500,000,000 for the year
ended 31
prospectus published on 21 April 2017.

December 2018 which was proposed in the

Lease of the premises

On 18 May 2016, China Everbright Greentech Management
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Sub-Tenancy Agreement”) with
China Everbright Environmental Group Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of CEIL, in relation to subletting certain
36th Floor,

Kong with a total gross floor area of approximately 300.9 sg.m.

Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong

for a term of three years commencing from 18 May 2016 to 17
May 2019 (both days inclusive) at a monthly rent of HK$307,800
(exclusive of rates, management fee, water, electricity, gas and
other utility charges payable to independent third parties not
connected with the Company in respect of the use of the
premises during the lease term).

On 1
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Everbright Greentech Management

January 2017, Everbright Greentech Management

(Shenzhen)”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, (the “PRC Tenancy
Agreement”) with Everbright Environmental (China)
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEIL, in relation

entered into an agreement

Protection

to the leasing office premises with a total gross floor area of
approximately 540.1 sg.m. for a term of 3 years commencing
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive)
at a monthly rent of RMB124,624.22 (exclusive of management
fee, water, electricity and other utility charges payable to
independent third parties not connected with the Company in

respect of the use of the premises during the lease term).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of the premises (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregated rent
paid or payable to China Everbright Environmental Group Limited
and Everbright Environmental Protection (China) Company Limited
under the tenancy agreements amounted to HK$4,995,000. The
amount did not exceed the annual cap of HK$5,174,741 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 which was proposed in the
prospectus published on 21 April 2017.

Purchases of equipment

On 30 December 2016, Everbright Greentech Management
(Shenzhen) entered into a framework agreement (“Equipment
Purchase Framework Agreement”) with Everbright Environmental
Protection Technology Equipment (Changzhou) Company Limited
(“EB  Environmental Changzhou”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CEIL, in respect of the purchase of the equipment

and related services from EB Environmental Changzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the amounts payable
to EB Environmental Changzhou under the Equipment Purchase
Framework Agreement amounted to RMB26,989,000. The amount
did not exceed the annual cap of RMB90,000,000 for the year
ended 31
prospectus published on 21 April 2017.

December 2018 which was proposed in the

Provision of design services

On 30 December 2016, Everbright Greentech Management
(Shenzhen) entered into a framework agreement (“Project Design
Services Framework Agreement”) with Jiangsu Design and
Research Institute of Energy Conservation Engineering (“Jiangsu
Design & Research Institute”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CEIL, in respect of the purchase of project design services

from Jiangsu Design & Research Institute.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the amounts payable
to Jiangsu Design & Research Institute under the Project Design
Services Framework Agreement amounted to RMB3,522,000. The
amount did not exceed the annual cap of RMB30,000,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 which was proposed in the
prospectus published on 21 April 2017.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EZERS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Provision of design services (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

° entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

° conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less

favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

° in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. KPMG have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all
of its continuing connected transactions.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the Group’'s MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’

relevant income, respectively.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
retirement schemes operated by the
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is the

local authorities. The

required contributions under the schemes. The Group’s total
contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$43,071,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Board confirms
that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required by the Listing Rules during the year under review.

AUDITORS

KPMG
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment as auditors of

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

China Everbright Greentech Limited
WANG Tianyi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019

Report of the Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B M % AR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT
GREENTECH LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Everbright Greentech Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 120 to 246 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

the consolidated statement of profit or

income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then

as at 31

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audlitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYRHA®RE

A E X =R

FRREZSFEDRERANBERAGR RN AL
HEVMBHRRZIBRTRAERZEH ELE
BIRBRMEGRE M RRBEETERALIVAK
BAMNESNETREEN  BATHELEHAR
HEFHNER -

REBBRHIACERZHE2RERSRR

Recognition of construction revenue from service concession arrangements

REJE TR WAL 10) RiFE B B #HREZN 773

Refer to accounting policy note 1(t) and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter
BREXER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit
ZEHEEZPRUOMEEN

The Group has entered into service concession arrangements
with local governments in Mainland China to build and operate
environmental protection projects, which include integrated
biomass utilisation and hazardous and solid waste treatment
facilities.

EEEDEPENMEMBF LRBFTEEELH U
EREERRER (BRAEDEGENAREEREERER
1) e

Accounting for revenue from long-term service concession
arrangements under the prevailing accounting standards
requires revenue to be recognised during the construction
phase of a project and during service delivery.
RIBRITEEA R B RO RGBT FEE LY 2 78R
2 NIE B i TR R MR AR B R e R = -

The amount of construction revenue recognised is dependent
on the Group’s estimate of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction work completed
during the year for each project.
ERRAZBERZSRDIORY ESEHRERBAAEN
EEREBEERFATKELIZADLLME °

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
construction revenue from service concession
arrangements included the following:
ﬁiTFﬁ%’TﬁE%ﬁd&KQHEF%E@%&%%?%FZ@%H&%
ETHENERREFRRBATSE

e  evaluating the Group’s processes for applying
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and inspecting contracts for
projects which commenced construction in
the current year to assess whether these fell
within the scope of service concession
arrangements under the prevailing accounting

standards;
e B EBRBEEARTEERNZRMNER

jiﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁifﬁﬁﬁ ELEIEEB ERATNA
WU EBEEBRARENFRITSTER
HTEARRBGESFEERLTNRTHEN

e understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
the Group’s key internal controls in place to
assess the determination of the percentage
of completion of construction contracts;

o MHRHEF{ SEEERITIZAMIEHNR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R ®RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

R EZEIR(E)

The key audit matter
BREXER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

ZEHEERTRUOMEEN

Significant management judgement is required in determining
the fair value of construction services which involves making
estimates of the total construction costs and the gross profit
margin for each project. The Group engaged an independent
valuer to assist in the estimation of the fair value of
construction services.

REERERBAAER  BEREAFEHERAE  BEMGE
BEKAREEE 2EMNE - BB TIEE T h AN iR Bl 5t 2
ERB 2 ARE -

The percentage of construction work completed during the year
for each project is estimated based on surveys performed by
independent surveyors with relevant qualifications and industry
experience. Judgement is also required in estimating the
percentage of construction work completed.

FRNEEHEREIENTIB L DREBEEBRBEER RITE
KRB RERAEZ R EFEL MG - BFTBEIRTIA

5 H IV {21 -

We identified the recognition of construction revenue from
service concession arrangements as a key audit matter
because of the significant judgement required to be exercised in
estimating the total construction costs, gross profit margins and
the percentage of construction work completed for each project
which could be subject to management bias.
HAERERBEFALCERLE 2 RERGNERRSBRER
FE - DHRAFIRERARZERS  ENEREETIRTIA
DHABIELERAE AR EREBERBR I ZE -

discussing with the independent valuer
engaged by management the methodologies
adopted in the assessment of the fair value
of construction services and assessing the
independence, experience, competence and
credentials of the independent valuer;
HEIRERBNB AT ANETR - UK
RN EEERBN AR EFRANGE
7% - AR BB AR BT - K5
BEEEE WA

inspecting the valuation reports prepared by
the independent valuer of the fair value of the

construction services and, with the
assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation

methodologies applied with reference to
industry standards and practices and the
assumptions adopted in the valuations by
benchmarking the assumptions adopted with
those of comparable companies with similar
projects;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYRHA®RE

AR EZER(F)

The key audit matter
BREXER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

ZEEEBERTRNMEEN

° comparing the total budgeted construction
costs adopted in the valuations with the
costs of projects with similar capacities
completed in prior years, taking into account
the historical accuracy of such estimates,
and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias in the
preparation of total budgeted construction
costs;

e BRHRETHARBZEERAEETFREIFE
TIMBRLURREERARLLE  TEREZE
HEHBAMERE  RRTHRARERZENX
REBRERAELSFEERERRRR 2B

e calculating, on a sample basis, the
construction revenue for projects based on
the percentage of completion with reference
to progress reports certified by independent
surveyors and the fair value of the
construction services based on the valuation
reports and comparing our calculations with
the revenue recorded by the Group during
the year for the selected projects; and

o ZEFVASMRE2EERE RIBERMEE
BEEEZRERBAAE ERTIAS
LA S A HIER 2 B - Wik
MrstEARE ERERTHEBNFRES
M B R

e considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in relation
to service concessions arrangements with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

e Z2RBITGMEANRTE  ZENEATH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R ®RE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
issued by the HKICPA and the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

accordance with HKFRSs
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, intentional

forgery, omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of

in order to design audit procedures that are
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R ®RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of

the consolidated financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management

Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with

a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence and communicate with them

all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

related safeguards.
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EIRBAMBRRPZEBEE - BE
BRENEETR BB MEEERERMN
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MATREER BERETRBELE -

s HESAMBHmERIERIBIA &H
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EEGR BEZERER  NEHEAM

BHREABKRER - HMAE BEREEZN
A BEBMAT - RAI/BRERAER
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FEBAAEAEMNARRTERIBILIENFT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yuen Man Ching.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

6 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Revenue U &5 3 7,001,820 4,581,352
Direct costs and operating expenses BEERAREEER (4,932,366) (3,146,324)
Gross profit E7 2,069,454 1,435,028
Other revenue =g 4 158,664 118,376
Other loss E b E518 5 (601) (2,437)
Administrative expenses TER (356,556) (236,923)
Profit from operations wERBF 1,870,961 1,314,044
Finance costs s ER 6(a) (202,384) (125,565)
Share of loss of a joint venture Fiif—RA & XEEE (158) (891)
Profit before taxation R %% AT 2 F 6 1,668,419 1,187,588
Income tax FRigHt 7 (337,068) (230,289)
Profit for the year REEZEF 1,331,351 957,299
Attributable to: PEAL TR 17
Equity shareholders of the Company KARERRKE 1,324,871 953,823
Non-controlling interests JEER S 6,480 3,476
Profit for the year KEERF 1,331,351 957,299
Earnings per share BRER 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE (BL) 64.12 51.70

The notes on pages 130 to 246 form part of these financial 5 130F 246 B ~ M sH# R AR IERE 2 — 5615 -
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of AN & B FfE AN Q FIRERSAR R 2 IR BB H M
the Company attributable to profit for the year are set out in note i 5F23(b) °

23(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEERRHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHEZ—Z— \F+=-_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T ke
_Profitforthe year ______________FFEEBN __________A881381 957,299
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEE
for the year: WA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently EEFI4EEFHIEE
to profit or loss: =B E
— Exchange differences on translation of — BERBHFEI
financial statements of entities BBV BWmE
outside Hong Kong, net of nil tax EEZER
EZF o ONKRE
I8
— subsidiaries — WEARF (423,077) 318,158
— an associate — —XEEQA (138) —
— a joint venture — —REEDE (2,906) -
_____!4_2_@,_1_2_1_)_ 318,158
Total comprehensive income AEETEBALE
for the year 905,230 1,275,457
Attributable to: AL B4 ¢
Equity shareholders of the Company AKRARIERRKE 900,712 1,270,824
Non-controlling interests FET2 AR 4 2 4,518 4,633
Total comprehensive income TEEZXHERALRE
for the year 905,230 1,275,457

The notes on pages 130 to 246 form part of these financial

statements.

F130E 246 B Z Wi B AM kK 2 — 301D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

w e MR R

At 31 December 2018 R—ZE— \E+—-A=+—8H

Non-current assets

FRBEE

HK$’000
BET T

2017
—E—tF
(restated)
(FeE%))
HK$’000
BT T

Property, plant and equipment LE =L 11 2,334,791 2,144,206
Interests in leasehold land held for own use 1RBERZEHEFES R
under operating leases ZHE T HES 11 167,263 138,442
2,502,054 2,282,648
Intangible assets mAE 12 7,486,422 5,131,608
Interest in an associate — R ERAIER 14 56,216 —
Interest in a joint venture —REELEER 15 57,446 51,841
Other receivables, deposits and HEMEUGRIA ek
prepayments TE IR 16 425,957 370,729
Contract assets BREE 17 2,852,061 1,766,507
Deferred tax assets RER B E B 22(b) 34,797 34,942
183414938 | 9656270
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 18 124,656 110,899
Debtors, other receivables, deposits and FEURBRZX - EfthEUR
prepayments FIA - e KA
IR 16 1,239,535 518,034
Contract assets BREE 17 1,562,091 820,979
Tax recoverable Al Y =] £ IE 22(a) 734 19
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITFR 198,968 203,007
Deposits with banks IRITFE 17,039 736,229
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEY 19 2,044,826 2,404,175
5,187,849 4,793,342
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Consolidated statement of financial position

FEMBMRRE

At 31 December 2018 R=F— \&+=-A=+—8H

2017
—E—tF
(restated)
(B&E5)
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans RITER 20
— Secured — B 626,389 314,903
— Unsecured — A 288,986 226,368
915,375 541,271
Creditors, other payables and accrued FEATRRFR - E MR
expenses KIEREFEA 21 2,416,520 1,665,570
Current taxation 7R B FR 18 22(a) 23,622 9,885
3385517 2216726
_Netcurrentassets =~ #*BRE®® 1832332 2576616
_Total assets less current liabilites =~ @REAABAEG/  15247,285 12214801
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans RITER 20
— Secured — B 3,400,454 2,444,734
— Unsecured — A 1,690,730 508,698
5,091,184 2,953,432
Other payables H Ath 4~ FR0E 21 67,004 56,899
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEEE 22(b) 658,023 438,514
2816211 3,448,845
Net assets EERE 9,431,074 8,766,046
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Consolidated statement of financial position

REMBRRE

At 31 December 2018 R—ZE— \E+—-A=+—8H

2017
—T—tF
(restated)
(FeE%))
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Capital and reserves BAR#E 23
Share capital [N 1,608,029 1,608,029
Other reserves Hith {5 7,730,823 7,140,023

Total equity attributable to equity AR EEERREN

shareholders of the Company EREE 9,338,852 8,748,052
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR HE 2 92,222 17,994
Total equity B 9,431,074 8,766,046

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 6 W -ZT—HE=FNBREEG I E LI
March 2019

Qian Xiaodong Yang Zhigiang
#BER B

Director Director

2 BF

The notes on pages 130 to 246 form part of these financial 5 130F 246 B ~ M sH @R AR IERER 2 — 5615 -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEERBBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Non-

Share Share  Exchange Reserve Retained controlling

capital premium reserve fund profits interests  Total equity
B B EARE HE: 0 i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  B%TR  BETR  BETR ATR  BETR  BETR ARTR

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-B-t%-A-8
&S 3 3,241,465 (331,782 84,457 1,193,078 4,187,221 13,361 4,200,582
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-tEvEREE:
Proft for the year EREF - - - - 953828 953823 3476 957,200
Other comprehensive income HEp2EHA = = 317,001 = = 317,001 1,157 318,158
Total comprehensive income 2EMALE = = 317,001 = 953,823 1,270,824 4,633 1,275,457
Capitalisation issue BRLET 28()i) 1,120,749 (1,120,749) = = = = = =
Shares issue under initial public REERDAZE
offering (“IPO”), net of share (TERDAEE])
issuance expenses Bt - mek
R BITRE 23(c)(v) 487,277 2,802,730 - - - 3,290,007 — 3,290,007
Transfer to reserve fund BEZEESD = = = 34,701 (34,701) = = =
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=B-t%£+=A
=t-RAzE&H 1,608,020 4,923,446 (14,781) 119,158 2,112,200 8,748,052 17,994 8,766,046
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

GEREBRZDR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZT— \&E+-_A=+—HI&EE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARABRRRIER

Non-

Share Share  Exchange Reserve Retained controlling

capital premium reserve fund profits Total interests Total equity
BAx  RORE EXRE #EE  REEN BE FERER HRLE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI E%Tn  EMTx  B¥Tr  E¥Tn  EMTn  B¥TR  E%Tx

Balance at 1 January 2018 R-B-N§¥-A-H
&8 1,608,020 4923446  (14781) 119,158 2,112,200 8,748,052 17,094 8,766,046
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-N\ErEREE:
Prolft for the year EREF - - - - 134871 17324871 6,480 1,331,351
Other comprehensive income Hih2ERA - - (424,159) - - (424,159 (1,962)  (426,121)
Total comprehensive income FEBANEE - - (424,159) - 1,324,871 900,712 4,518 905,230
Capital contributions received by F2EMBAARK
non-wholly owned subsidiaries SFER R R
from non-controlling interests BzHER - - - - - - 69,710 69,710
2017 final dividend paidl EF2017TEERGRE 23(b)(i) - (185,947) - - - (185947) - (185,947)
2018 interim dividend paid EF2018F BBl 23(0)(i) - (123,965) - - - (123,965) - (123,965)
Transfer to reserve fund BRBRES - - - 53,433 (53,433) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=B-\%1+=A
=+-B2&t 1,608,020 4,613,534  (438940) 172501 3,383,638 9,338,852 92,220 9,431,074

The notes on pages 130 to 246 form part of these financial 13022468 2 Kist# K A IERER 2 —3b15 -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GEREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHEZ—Z— \F+=-_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—+F
(restated)
(Fe &%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Operating activities BESEE
Profit before taxation B 50 AT 22 ) 1,668,419 1,187,588
Adjustments for: KA
Depreciation e 6(c) 117,483 94,605
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 6(c) 168,664 106,274
Amortisation of interests in leasehold RIBEEHERFE
land held for own use under BRAZEE LT
operating leases e 4 8 6(c) 4,277 3,756
Finance costs MBER 6(a) 202,384 125,565
Interest income FEMA 4 (25,910) (25,881)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BE K
and equipment w2 FER 5 601 2,437
Share of loss of a joint venture Fiif—XRA &%
SE 158 891
Effect of foreign exchange rates HNBE P R B)) 2 5 2
changes (27,519) 40,834
Changes in working capital: EEESE
Increase in inventories FEEM (18,576) (61,867)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, FEYBR 3R - Efib fE
deposits and prepayments WHIE - Ze Rk
TE T FRIA G hN (759,186) (320,068)
Increase in contract assets BHEEB N (1,993,379) (1,498,269)
Increase in creditors, other payables and FERTRRSR ~ H AT
accrued expenses HIENMEFTER
B 472,248 282,154
Cash used in operations RETHMBAZES (190,336) (61,981)
Interest received B F A 25,910 25,881
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) income 2t #E AR AN
tax paid ([ B FrisH (76,450) (43,884)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEHMBAZES
FH (240,876) (79,984)
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Consolidated cash flow statement

GEREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE =

—N\F+ZA=+—HILFE

2018
=

HK$’000
BET T

2017
—tF
(restated)
(FeE:75)
HK$'000
BT T

Investing activities RETEH
Payment for purchases of property, plant EEWE  BELZE

and equipment and interests in AR AR & E

leasehold land held for own use under EBRZHE i

operating leases w2 AT (447,582) (440,826)
Payment for additions of intangible assets WEETEE MR (2,492,736) (1,664,994)
Payment for capital contribution to AE—RBERAZ

an associate 3R (56,354) =
Payment for capital contribution to FE—REEEZ

a joint venture (N (8,669) (19,733)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERKRE

plant and equipment Fr1S 58 705 =
Increase in non-current portion FE BN EA &R 19 FE 1 5B

of prepayments 30 (52,210) (23,661)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits with banks 1777 Z0R 4>~ (3&0) 687,199 (718,094)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMBAZES

___________________________________________ m® . [(2369p47)  (2,867,308)

Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRIRITERAE 3,243,972 1,936,178
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (506,052) (570,260)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B RIRITFFIE N (4,782) (108,508)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from FE W [R) K Bt /B A R 3R

fellow subsidiaries (), (3,952) 900
Capital contributions received by non-wholly — JE2 &K & A 7)1

owned subsidiaries from non-controlling IETE AR R I R BT 15

interests ZHERE 69,710 —
Proceeds from issuance of shares BIEEH R ARAEERT

under IPO B& 17 P15 5 IE - 3,380,821
Payment for listing expenses EWRAZ 2R - (78,341)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of B TARRRRERRE

the Company ZIRE 23(b) (309,912) —
Interest paid B A HLE (213,091) (131,547)
Net cash generated from financing METBMELEZRS

activities FEE 2,275,893 4,429,243
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Consolidated cash flow statement

GEREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE— \&E+-_A=+—RHIL&EE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
(restated)
(&&E7)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBAELEEY
cash equivalents (R, BB (334,630) 1,481,951
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BRzEEE
1 January REeZEEY 2,404,175 886,210
Effect of foreigh exchange rates HNEEREH2E
changes (24,719) 36,014
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—-8%2
31 December ReRELEEY 19(a) 2,044,826 2,404,175

The notes on pages 130 to 246 form part of these financial % 130%246 8 2 M B AN Kk 2 —#1H °

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected
statements.

in these financial

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the vyear
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interests in an associate
and a joint venture. All values in the financial
statements are rounded to nearest thousand, unless

otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

1

B ABHEE
(@ &HBH

(b)

AMBHRERDBREBEELEEFAMNAE
(IBEGERE ) EMm B E
REBWEHRE LR ([BEMBRE
EAN(BERERERNER ZEFEM
BHREER  FESAER(BES
AR RRE) BEARERR
ARBBARGIZBEBERTERE -
AP BHREAFNTRERNETEHA
RHMERARESZ EMRR (T EW
MR WERTE - AEREMERAZ
ERESFHEN T IKE -

TGRS EME TR &
BB BREER - ZFEAE
AEEE R RS HIR &R AR A
HIERHA - M 10BN AR &
FEAREE AR ] BEERTER
mE £ R AT KA RRE A/ K8
FestHR et BRESHER -

mERZIEE

BE_Z—)\HF+_A=+—HLHF
EMERE B MKRBIEARR T REM
BAR (SBIAEER]) URAEER
—REBERRN—RALDEZE
o BRIEFSITIER  MBWMEROME
SREHNEEREINTM -

RAUVBRRSMANGTERERE
SERRAE -
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major
uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

sources of estimation

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(i) HK(FRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

1

Notes to the financial statements

B3 4B R B

BEREHBE(E)

(b) RER2SIIEE(H)
RREENBREEA - RR R

(c)

RERERBFELHE - B RE
& REFHE - B RBRREFER
REMUALMEHREE - BfFE -
ARFX & - lE A RAERER
DERBELRREBRBIBR TEE
REBZBFREMAR - MARSER
TIREHERA B LB BEMIRE
CEFREERAGREECKE &
BRAEREA IR FEE

S EEF RERBREFERT o W
EREEEPACHEE SRR A
EEFE AEBEITReEZNHE
MR AT ZIERTHRE &
ARBEHELETE  ASEFLZ
& 5T HARE] B R R AR AR

EEERABBMGREERFHE
HYBHRRBEATENHE - LR
fEEt A E E R/ E B2 ARIRN M 2

e

EHBERD
EAGHIARE RS AREEE
81 & 5 HD R AR AT AN
SERMBEEEN - ek U TE
EETS PYEESCCE

)y ABBMBRELENESN &
TA

(i) BEVHHRESEANFIGHE &
P& #IW zs

iy ZB(AEMBHREREBEZE
) 225 IERXZRBMA
g
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

()  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
debtors and other receivables);

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15.

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see notes
13i)(i) and (ii).

1

BEANEFBER (&)
(c) ERIEKREH (&)

AEEIW R EARE /TS HIREH AR
R R R SR o

()

BB BHREEREIN &
IR

ERER
BB E LB AT
FEBER(EHREEER]DER
XA BB G AR 395 F
ZIBEEEBEIERN - BHE
EEREANERFEFESR
EERBNEERR HitHE
MERERZERERBRIEK
BR BT EREIR 2 [CEL
BEIGHRAERZERRG
Bo

AEBBHFEBEEEBER
ERZENTIER

— HREERAGENERE
ERERAEIREEE
W)~ U R RN L A e U

HA)

—  BAMBHREERFE165R
RENBNEE -

AREASEBEEERARS
BEHBRZEZHE  H2H
B & 1)) K (i)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except that the information
relating to comparative periods has not been
restated. Any differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 is recognised in retained
profits and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

There has been no significant impact on the
Group’s financial position and results of
operations as a result of this change in
accounting policy and accordingly, the Group’s
opening balances as at 1 January 2018 have
not been adjusted.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and some
costs from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered
revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the retrospective
method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and
therefore, comparative information has been
restated.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are set
out below:

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from
construction contracts and provision of
services was recognised over time.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of the
promised good or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point in time or
over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the
following three situations in which control
of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

—  When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

— When the entity’s performance
creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced,;

—  When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on when the Group
recognises revenue from construction
contracts and provision of services.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of
money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless
of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance of
revenue

recognition or significantly

deferred.

There has been no impact on the Group
as a result of this change in policy.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a
recognised only if the Group has an

receivable is

unconditional right to consideration. If the
Group recognises the related revenue (see
note 1(t)
entitled to the consideration for the

before being unconditionally
promised goods and services in the

contract, then the entitlement to
consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable,

customer

is recognised when a
pays consideration, or is
contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For
a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not

presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(c) Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities (Continued)

To reflect these changes in presentation,
“Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work”, receivables related to
service concession arrangements of the
Group and unbilled receivables that were
both “Debtors,

receivables, deposits and prepayments”

included in other
are now reclassified to “Contract assets”.
Accordingly, “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” of
HK$805,504,000 and HK$1,775,670,000
and receivables included in “Debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments” of
HK$218,865,000 and HK$811,816,000
were reclassified to “Contract assets” as
December 2017
respectively. The reclassification has no

at 1 January and 31

effect to reported profit or loss and net
assets for any period presented.

HK(FRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

This
determining “the date of the transaction” for the

interpretation provides guidance on

purpose of determining the exchange rate to use

on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) arising from a
transaction in which an entity receives or pays

advance consideration in a foreign currency.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) HK({IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration (Continued)

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related
items, the date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt should be determined in this
way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not
have any material impact on the financial

position and the operating results of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

in the

Non-controlling interests are presented

consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
notes 1(n) or (0) depending on the nature of the

liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no gain or loss is
recognised.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
losses unless the

impairment (see note 1(i)iii),

investment is classified as held for sale.

Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Associate and joint venture (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note
1(0)(ii)).

Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results

Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the

of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
in the

form part of the Group’s net investment

associate or the joint venture.
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate and
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment

interest in the investee, except where

of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Associate and joint venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(i)(iii).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and

borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
— Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, from 20
to 50 years after the date of completion.
— Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years
— Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the
remaining term of the
lease, if shorter
— Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years
— Motor vehicles, electronic
equipment and others

3 to 12 years

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction

in progress.

Where parts of an
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the

item of property, plant and
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent operating rights of certain
service concession arrangements. The intangible
assets are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)(iii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
are amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Integrated biomass 30 years
utilisation project operating
rights

— Hazardous and solid waste 20 to 30 years

treatment project operating

rights

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

() Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, except that land held for
own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
installments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
profit or loss as an integral part of the

aggregate net lease payments made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an

investment property.
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Notes to the financial statements

Financial assets measured at fair value are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are

B35 3R R M aF
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERGEHEBE(E)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) EEFEREERSE
() Credit losses from financial instruments and () ZHITARSHEENESEE
contract assets b=
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January (A) BE=F—NF—H—H
2018 BB B
The Group recognises a loss allowance for REEBATIER BRE
ECLs on the following items: MEEEBNEBEE:
—  financial assets measured at —  REHEKAFEDN
amortised cost (including cash and TREE(BRFER
cash equivalents, debtors and other s RBeEFEEY -
receivables); and FEWER 5 &ﬁf@ﬁ%
WskIE)
—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS — BB BHREER
15 (see note 1())). FI5RATEHE L

BE (RKE10) -
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measured as the present value of all R B TEHRR =5
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference (BN AREBIZRE L EWIR
between the cash flows due to the Group & mE AN B T8 B A U
in accordance with the contract and the MzReR B ERE)
cash flows that the Group expects to RIRETE -

receive).

The expected cash shortfalls of debtors
and other receivables and contract assets
are discounted using the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
i Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for debtors and contract
assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held).
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Notes to the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is

taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

— an actual or expected significant

deterioration in a financial

instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal

significant adverse effect on the

environment that have a

debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a

significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as

past due status and credit risk ratings.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the financial statements

BB HEMEE

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes the following observable
events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the

technological, market, economic or

legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy (Continued)

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period
occurs.

in which the recovery

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not classified as
FVPL (e.g. debtors and other receivables).
Under the
impairment loss was recognised only when

“incurred loss” model, an
there was objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of

impairment included:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a

default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; and
— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal
adverse effect on the debtor.

environment that have an
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’'s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
was material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets
shared similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which were
assessed for impairment collectively were
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics

similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised
to the extent that it did not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

(i)

contract assets (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Impairment losses were written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of debtors included within debtors,
other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, whose recovery was
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off
against debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to
that debt were reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

(Continued)

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised within creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses at fair value, which is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
information

when such is obtainable, or to

interest rate differentials, by comparing the

actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount

initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees

issued.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January

2018

The Group monitors the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the
contract and recognises a provision when
ECLs on the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than the amount
carried in creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses in respect of the
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the
specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured
unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since
the guarantee is issued, in which case a
lifetime ECL is measured. The same
definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit
risk as described in note 1(i)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by
the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on
the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to
receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

(i)

(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, a provision would
be recognised if and when it became
probable that (i) the holder of the
guarantee would call upon the Group
under the guarantee and (i) the amount of
the claim on the Group was expected to
exceed the amount carried in creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses in
respect of the guarantee.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no
decreased:

longer exists or may have

— property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

— intangible assets;

— interests in an associate and a joint

venture; and
- investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial position.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use, the is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

recoverable amount
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise biomass fuel, spare parts
and consumables used in the repairs and
maintenance, are carried at cost less provision for
obsolescence (if any). Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula. When inventories are
consumed, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is
able to specify the major structural elements of the
design. The accounting policy for contract revenue is
set out in note 1(i)(i). When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract at
the end of the reporting period. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are accounted for in accordance with
note 1(I).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group

recognises revenue (see note 1(t) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(i)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has

become unconditional (see note 1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 1(t). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivables would also be recognised

(see note 1(m)).
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

(m)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note

1(1)(v)).

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset (see note 1(I).

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(j)
(), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated

at cost less allowance for credit losses.

1

BEANEFBER (&)
) EBHEERGSHNEEMHE)

(m)

REEFPHNE &K ANEERE
REHNBEFREREN - ERZNE
% FBEANNEHNEERENA
BERSEFEEEZT -

EANBEERBEMARKIH &4
HERIERBEERFEARETHFE
(R EE1®6v) °

BWERER - HttBWRE - B
REMNFKIE

JRE WS R T A AR B B B A {1 A R S ER
RERKER - MR BB FRERE
HEEER - AR ENET AE
1 o W AN 5 B B URER A (B A fR 1K
HREFATERRE  EBENES
WEE(RMFE) -

FEMERTK - A EUER - IS R TB
NHBEVF R R ERR - RRAE
REBRFZARBIERDREEERE
BREIER (RIE10)) - HEME
BURRARETABALZREE
K A B E SR 4 B R R SR B SRk
AEEEWMERIN - EULBERT
BRARWSRZAAEREEEER
B AR -

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ PEAXGBRRARAT —T\FFH



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see

note 1(w)).

recognised with the

Creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
1()(ii), creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Employee benefits

i Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

1

BEANEFBER (&)
() FABH (&)

EREEHREERABEZBRDISN
BRABRAERERBATTESTR
MRERHANZEELRE (R
TAREBEHZED) A RBEH
REBRRREMSI B ERER -
IMARRBER  RRNALEBERLA
2B O ESRE - BRI TR R R K
AR ERER  RWAR TH
MER - RIRRNAIREE R KB R 2
8-

ERRZECHERERRREER
B EEEE B R A E R -
B3R SRR P 3 TR 2 B 3
o EEROEA E R B (19 TR
HE-

AEEGHES RS PRI HELER A
BEZRHE - MBI EREEH
ZERB BN INER ARG
FeREETESRE EHRAEIEG
RAZEARVEMNE - AERE D
B B

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ PEAXGBRRARAT —T\FFH



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets

and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

of money is material,

obligation.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued

separately under the effective interest method.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Revenue from construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and
expenses are recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the
contract based on the latest available
information.

The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to surveyors of work performed. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An
loss on a contract is

expected recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue from service concession arrangement

Revenue relating to construction services under
a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the work
performed, consistent with the Group’s
accounting policy on recognising revenue from
(t)(0)).

Operation or service revenue is recognised in the

construction contracts (see note 1
period in which services are provided by the
Group. When the Group provides more than one
service in a service concession arrangement the
consideration received is allocated by reference
to the
delivered.

relative fair values of the services

Revenue from operation services

Revenue from operation services are recognised
when the related services are rendered.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)  Finance income

Finance income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

(v)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised

consolidated statement of financial

initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised initially as deferred income and
amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the useful life of the asset.

(u) Repairs and maintenance

Expenditures on major overhaul, repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Consolidated statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs (Continued)

(x)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0] The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

1 BAREFHBEE)

(w) BERK(E

(x)

BERADIREEZRAXES BE
RAEEREHEREEFELRER
BRI ERREEETR  NEAR
LERAREEZRNRA - EME
FREREBEEFEREMR RN
ER® AR EPET R EAE
BERTILERFELEENMCBEERA -

A

@ FRALHEOBRFKEKRE RE
AEEABRY Mz AL:

() BEBAREEZEHIES
B4 ) 4

(i) HEAEEBERTEN
%

(i) AREEIAEESAF
ZEBERAE -

(b) A THEMEGRE - RIRE
REAREE AR

13.@
(=]

ZERRAKERR—
IZWEQEH%%#A
EIRRGIENCIAE NG
NCIVERERELE DI

—_
=

iy EF—EEREEZ—

D P
IS OME R

iy AR

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ PEAXGBRRARAT —T\FFH



1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viiy  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

1

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 4 R B o

ERNEFBER (&)
(x) FBEAEERS (4F)

(v)

(b) A THEMGHE  AIXE
BREASEEHY : (&)

vy HF-—RBEERE=7F
BzagEdtx mx—%
RBRAZE=TERZKZ
NS

(viy ZEBEZ@ FT#EblzA
2 1) Bl FL R 42 ) o

(vii) P (a)() P a8 Bl I ¥ & B8
BEARENZAT HRE
ZERB(IREBLEA
AZEEEEAE -

(viii) E%;% s —EEE 2 EA
BAR(AEBE
MYMALEERLAERZ

BABRETIEEEASR

FATZEBRREKSIREAIZE

BERRHIZRENRE @ K
RHAANTERZERETSFERERK
2

W
okr
=
o

BEDBRYBHRRAEHRZED B
HESH  IREASEERTAS
BEEEGME S B R HERR
MERRRTAEERSEEEAR
Z A EERMIEE

—E-)\FFR PERKEGEREBRAT m CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and

operating segments are not

are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following

accounting judgements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”)
and Build-Operate-Own (“BOQO”)

respect of its projects.

arrangements in

The Group concluded that all the BOT arrangements
and certain BOO arrangements are service concession
arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12, because the local
government controls and regulates the services that
the Group must provide with the infrastructure at a
pre-determined service charge. In respect of BOT
arrangements, upon expiry of concession right
agreement, the infrastructure has to be transferred to
the local government at nil consideration.
Infrastructure for BOO arrangements is used in the
service concession arrangements for its entire or

substantial useful life.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 24 contains information about the assumptions

and their risk factors relating to valuation of financial

instruments.

Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

()

(i)

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 1(k) and 1(t)(),
revenue and profit
incompleted project is dependent on estimating
the final outcome of the construction contract,

recognition on an

as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group,
the Group makes estimates of the point at
which it considers the work is sufficiently
advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result,
until this point is reached, the “Service
concession assets” as disclosed in note 17 will
not include profit which the Group may
eventually realise from the work to date. In
addition, actual outcomes in terms of revenue or
costs may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in
future years as an adjustment to the amounts

recorded to date.

Credit losses from receivables

The Group estimates credit losses based on the

ageing of the receivables, customer credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial conditions of customers were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher

than estimated.

T8

(b)
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(i) Impairment losses of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values
of property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases, intangible assets and interests in the
associate and joint venture may not be
recoverable, these assets may be considered
impaired, and an impairment loss may be
in accordance with HKAS 36,

Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of

recognised

these assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely
fair values because quoted market prices for the
Group’s assets are not readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgment relating to revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that
recoverable amount, including estimates based

is a reasonable approximation of
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv)  Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgment on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislations.
tax assets are

Deferred recognised for

temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management’s
judgment is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management reassess
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are construction,
integrated biomass utilisation project operation
(biomass direct combustion power generation projects,
biomass heat supply project, biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration projects, waste-to-energy projects
and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects),
hazardous and solid waste treatment project operation
landfill
waste incineration projects), environmental remediation

(hazardous waste projects and hazardous
project operation and solar energy and wind power
project operation (solar energy projects and wind
power projects).

3
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Notes to the financial statements
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3  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@) Revenue (Continued)

3 Wsmkoab@E (&)

(a) Wi (&)

() Disaggregation of revenue ) Wz E 5
Revenue represents the revenue from WaRiERERGE W - EWE

RAENMEE  EMERER
EHA - RREERBEMENR
HENEERBESREEE
K A TEUIN ©

construction services, revenue from integrated
biomass utilisation project, hazardous and solid
waste treatment project, environmental
remediation project and solar energy and wind
power project operation services and finance
income.

REBEMIRBREDNE
Fa&#desmT

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major product or service lines is
as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue from contracts with ERUBREERE1S
customers within the scope REEANEFEFEYN
by HKFRS 15 Ik 2%
Disaggregated by service lines Z R E D
—Revenue from integrated —EYWEHKEFNAEE
biomass utilisation project S AR S WA
construction services 3,763,446 2,892,944
—Revenue from hazardous and —faE R EREEEE A
solid waste treatment project SR
construction services 363,994 60,035
—Revenue from integrated biomass —4 W EGAFHIER
utilisation project operation B R
services 1,967,199 1,030,719
—Revenue from hazardous and —fEEREREREIEE
solid waste treatment project EE RS
operation services 409,146 308,785
—Revenue from environmental —IRIBEBEIEEES
remediation project operation Bl 75 W 2
services 117,672 —
—Revenue from solar energy and —RARBEERREIEE
wind power project operation 18 PRI W e
services 239,515 209,114
—Finance income — WA 140,848 79,755
7,001,820 4,581,352
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

()

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group has transactions with one (2017: four)
local government authority in the PRC which
individually exceeded 10%
revenue. The aggregated revenues from the PRC
local government authority during the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$1,510,529,000 (2017: HK$2,506,499,000).

of the Group’s

The aggregated revenues from construction
services, revenues from operation services and
finance income derived from local government
authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$6,492,439,000 for year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$4,192,958,000). The
revenues arose from all the four business
segments as set out in note 3(b). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these

customers are set out in note 24(a).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregated
amounts of transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations under the
Group’s existing contracts are as follows:

3
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

(i)

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ PEAKGEBRERARAT —=

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date (Continued)

The amounts represent revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from the construction
services and operation services in connection
with the Group’s environmental protection
projects. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future based on the percentage of
completion of the construction, in the case of
construction service revenue, and when the
services are rendered, in case of operation

service revenue.

The remaining performance obligations expected
to be recognised in more than one year relate to
construction services and operation services that
are to be satisfied within 50 years. All the other
remaining performance obligations are expected
to be recognised within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable

consideration which is constrained.

The Group has applied the following practical
expedients in:

—  paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 such that the

above information does not include
information about revenue that the Group
will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations under
the environmental protection service
contracts that had an original expected

duration of one year or less; and

—  paragraph C5(d) of HKFRS 15 such that
no comparative information is disclosed for
the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations.
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by segments, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following four reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form

the following reportable segments.

Integrated biomass utilisation project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the construction
and operation of biomass direct combustion power
biomass heat supply project,
biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects,

generation projects,

waste-to-energy projects and integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects to generate revenue from
construction services, revenue from operation services
as well as finance income.

Hazardous and solid waste treatment project
construction and operation: this segment engages in
the construction and operation of hazardous waste
landfill projects and hazardous waste incineration
projects to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as well as
finance income.

Environmental remediation project operation: this
segment engages in the operation of environmental
remediation projects covering restoration of industrial
contaminated sites, contaminated farmland, mines and
landfills, treatment of industrial gas emission,
integrated treatment of oil sludge, treatment of river/
lake sediments and industrial sludge, construction and
operation of wetland parks, environmental stewardship
services and anti-seepage at landfill sites to generate

revenue from operation services.
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Solar energy and wind power project operation: this

segment engages in the operation of solar energy

projects and wind power projects to generate revenue

from operation services.

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, interests in an associate and a
joint venture, deferred tax assets and current
assets with the exception of intercompany
corporate assets.
include current taxation,

receivables and other
Segment liabilities
deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the
activities of the individual segments and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables

and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.
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3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “EBITDA” i.e. “earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
EBITDA,

adjusted for items not specifically attributed to

the Group’s earnings are further

individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue,
interest expenses from borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation and
amortisation and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their

operations.

3

Y

(b)

N2

~

N

2

K5y
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MBS (&)

2 EWHE (&)

()

DEfFEAE  BEREE ()

ARBEsBRFMZERAR
& [EBITDAL » B[R FI 8 ~ Bt
B EREHEIATNI-AT
SHEBITDA -« AEE 2 BFIE
PEBREENER D2 HEE
(Bl - EEZME - %A S
R H 48R RIS EITEUNAN)
1EfE— -

BIERHEEBEBITDAZ D E
B - EEEINEREE B
SO BEEBEEZEER
BRI REDIELRHER
EMBOBEEIE - #H
RIGE 7 D EER}

T \FFR PEAXKGERRRERAT @ CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to the financial statements

B 7% 3R 3% MY EE
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 Wamknisms (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEHE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEREEE

(Continued)

BE_Z-N\ER_T—LF
+ZA=+—HIEFE &%
EREIRS R DEBRE TG
mMAREBEGREEERHRZ
RRHERARFRISNE,E
AW A KRBT IRE D BER
T

Revenue from contracts with customers by

timing of revenue recognition, as well as
information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31

December 2018 and 2017 is set out below.

Hazardous and solid

Integrated biomass

utilisation project waste treatment project  Environmental Solar energy and
construction and construction and remediation project  wind power project
operation operation operation operation
ENEGAANAEE REREBEREER REBEER *REERREER
BEREE BEREE g Eg @t
2018 2018 2017 2018 2018 2017 2018
—E-N\EF —B-NF —E-0\F —E-N\F - F ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR RETT BETR BETR
Revenue from extenal customers and BRERNERHRENREPH
reportable segment revenue BERETFREZHH
recognised over time Wz 5,862,283 3993684 782350 378,554 117,672 - 239,515 209,114 7,001,820 4,581,352
Reportable segment profit (EBITDA) AT RE 2 HHRFEBTOA 1,631,932 1143235 370,246 241,454 24515  (2603) 225605 195827 2,252,298 1,577,913
Interest income from bank deposits BIEFHERA 3,254 2,768 1,918 1,646 50 10 478 744 5,700 5,168
Finance costs HHBER 150,472 78395 21,188 17,510 - — 2495 25060 196325 120,966
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 176,298 99,495 42,856 36,730 62 2 69,622 67,193 288,838 203,420
Additions to property, plant and EENE BEREE
equipment, interests in RESEHEREARZ
leasehold land held for own BETHELR BYEE
use under operating leases, REMFEZ DTG
intangible assets and
non-current portion of
prepayments 2,549,360 2403929 794912 274,676 51,419 87 3,707 6,161 3,399,398 2,684,853
Additions to non-current portion of HESNEEZFNBHH
contract assets 1,400,506 1,007,980 9,210 10,413 - - - — 1,409,716 1,018,393
Reportable segment assets BTREZHPEE 13,615,644 9214577 2,629,636 1,587,639 233,334 4936 1,417,251 1,588,125 17,895,865 12,395,177
Reportable segment liabilties BATREHBAE 6,514,660 4258620 859,052 585768 106,240 498 535853 623,569 8,015,805 5,468,455
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Notes to the financial statements

B 1% 3R 3R MY EF
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 38 WmkpEias (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEHE (&)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) BTPHRESEH W BF - &
profit, assets and liabilities EREBEZHER

2018
—E2-N\F

2017
—E—tF

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and

W 2

ATHMED A2z R

HK$’000
BET T

HK$'000
BT

consolidated revenue fRe W 7,001,820 4,581,352
Profit 27
Reportable segment profit (EBITDA) REANEBINRATF Z

derived from the Group’s external BTMEDE 2 BT

customers (EBITDA) 2,252,298 1,577,918
Depreciation and amortisation e R H (290,424) (204,635)
Finance costs B %5 & A (202,384) (125,565)
Unallocated head office and ROMBRRIRIZE

corporate income A 25,678 21,603
Unallocated head office and ROMBRRIRIZE

corporate expenses 53 (116,749) (81,728)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRELRT AT 1,668,419 1,187,588
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets BAYREDIZEE 17,895,865 12,395,177
Unallocated head office and AOERNF M E

corporate assets BE 706,937 2,036,440
Consolidated total assets e BEMTE 18,602,802 14,431,617
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities ATMENH2EE 8,015,805 5,468,455
Unallocated head office and ROMBRRIRIZE

corporate liabilities BE 1,155,923 197,116
Consolidated total liabilities e AREE 9,171,728 5,665,571
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (a) the Group’s
the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, interests
land held for own use under

revenue from external customers, (b)
in leasehold
operating leases and intangible assets and (c)
the Group’s non-current portion of other
deposits and prepayments and
non-current portion of contract assets. The

receivables,

geographical location of customers is based on
the
provided. The geographical
assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold land held

location at which the services were
location of the

in the case of property,

for own use under operating leases, and the
location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, intangible assets and

contract assets.

(b)

\

s

54

N
2

S (&)

DEHRE (&

(i)

EEH
T 1517 ()7 5 B 2 51
REF 2 it OAEEZY

X BMELEEREG RELLH
EREFERNEE L ERE R
BVEE : ROASHEZEMD
JEMW IR ~ Ime RIBRAFIALZ
MO AR ENEEZI
BNERER (D 2 FREE b R B B Y o
B P R 8 12 AR 7% 12 {3 B
o BEMEHRIREEER
BRPTFELF (BLEE - B R
BURRBEEHERIFER
WHEETEEME) AP
Koz 7% 2 P st B (Lt fE
WkE - e RFAMNFE - &
REEMAKWEEMS) &N -
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Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WamkniismE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEEHE (&)
(i) Geographic information (Continued) (i) HyfE E# (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEEF T
Revenue from external REIMREFE KN
customers
PRC + 6,994,319 4,575,159
Germany = 7,501 6,193
7,001,820 4,581,352
Property, plant and equipment, ¥ - BWERRZ%E
interests in leasehold land RELCEHEFHE
held for own use under BERANEE T hER
operating leases and DREREE
intangible assets
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FEChNRIERS) 9,945,161 7,365,258
Hong Kong BB 1,840 2,256
Germany =E 41,475 46,742
9,988,476 7,414,256
Non-current portion of other HahEWRIE - ZER
receivables, deposits and ERNREREGHNEE
prepayments and contract 2 3F B HA &6 17
assets
PRC A [ 3,278,018 2,137,236
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A5 AR MY AR

4

5

OTHER REVENUE

H A W 2

2018 2017

—E2—N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Interest income F B U A 25,910 25,881
Government grants* BB &~ 63,266 29,734
Value-added tax refunds** EEB R 59,609 56,795
Others EHAh 9,879 5,966
158,664 118,376

*x

Government grants of HK$58,584,000 were granted during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$27,875,000)
to subsidise certain integrated biomass utilisation and
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects of the Group
in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants. There
is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such
grants in the future. The remaining amounts represent
amortisation of deferred income as set out in note 21.

The Group was entitled PRC value-added tax refunds of
HK$59,609,000 during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$56,795,000). There were no unfulfiled conditions
and other contingencies attached to the receipts of such tax
refunds. There is no assurance that the Group will continue
to receive such tax refunds in the future.

OTHER LOSS

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

5

*x

HE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—HItEE "
7R 2 B B AT 4 Bh & 75 558,584,000 7T
TE— 4 B#E27,875,0007T) © ILE
MAEBMRTPENETEDEGRET AR
EENEEREER - WIZEMBESH
EARENIEG R EMAEIE o B ATTEE
REAEEBABBIEBESZESHE
o NS BN T R T Y A

HE-Z—N\F+-A=+—HIEE -
AEBERESTHEERRBE AL
59,609,000 (= — & : K
56,795,0007T) ° Y2 B 7% 38 (B F1 B B
EARENIEG R EMAEIE o B ATTEE
REANEBRE B EEESZIEERR
Bio

H Al &5 18

2018 2017
—T—+F
HK$’000

BET T

—B-N\F
HK$'000
BT

HEWE  BERZE
ZFE R

601 2,437
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6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

Bk Bt AT 22 7
BRBAIRFID G GIA)

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T Neoks o a

(a) Finance costs (a) BMBEEHA

Interest on bank loans RITERZFE 213,091 131,547
Less: interest expenses capitalised into B B EBAE
construction in progress* ETIRMFE

il 2 * (10,707) (5,982)

202,384 125,565

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 4.66% to 5.15% (2017: 4.41% to 4.90%) per annum during

the year ended 31 December 2018.

EBERARBE—Z— ) \GF+_A=1+—HILFEH466% £5.15% (ZF—+tF : 441%Z4.90%) HEFEREXR

le; =

(b) Staff costs

Contributions to defined contribution

(b) ETAHA

E R FURINE S

retirement plan At 43,071 26,793
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREM
&7 403,159 266,583
446,230 293,376
(c) Other items (c) Htt1EE
Amortisation By
—interests in leasehold land held for own —REKEHE
use under operating leases BEERZHEE
TR 4,277 3,756
—intangible assets —mVEE 168,664 106,274
Depreciation e 117,483 94,605
Credit loss on debtors (note 24(a)) EUEEREEEE
(Kt 3E24(a)) 1,939 -
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) FE 5 518, (k)
ikl 1,453 (13,156)
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gl
—audit services —ZBR 2,850 2,830
—other services — H {th AR 75 - 200
Operating lease charges: LEAEBR -
minimum lease payments =EHEER
—hire of premises —YEHE 9,520 7,939
Listing expenses Beiil 3 - 15,252
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B3 SRR T 5F

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBEmRIAEM
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEBZRFARZBIEE:

profit or loss represents:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook i e
Current tax — AHHE —
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERFEH
Provision for the year NF G H S - —
Current tax — AHEBE —
PRC Income Tax P E T8 B
Provision for the year REFEHAE 91,503 53,630
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (2,031) (3,742)
89,472 49,788
Deferred tax IEFERE
Origination and reversal of temporary TR ERmyEARER
differences 247,596 180,501
337,068 230,289
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been AR AN ER 2 B 55 BREVE A
made in the financial statements for the years ended BB BFEHAOWA - B AE
31 December 2018 and 2017 as the Group’s BYERNEE_T - N\FR-ZT—+t
operations in Hong Kong did not earn any income F+ZA=Z+—HLEFEZTBRE
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. AL BB FISETIREE -
Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the B 2 RIBIRE R AT A
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits under WITEEBR2%THE - FA - BRI
taxation ruling in the PRC. During the year, certain BEMBEERRER & THEWEB
PRC subsidiaries are subject to tax concessions under RAIZEBIAESE -

the relevant tax rules and regulations.
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35 AR M A

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 BREBmRRZIFEHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REARRTEZHEIHES

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

SRR ZH R

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation B 252 i &2 A 1,668,419 1,187,588
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RIRAAH I AR
calculated at the rates applicable to ZBEAMERE R
profits in the tax jurisdictions BRIRATBMNFE
concerned HEMIE 418,110 298,380
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S B2 B IE
2 19,943 11,405
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERMMAZRIBLE (7,015) (10,530)
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AIZHEHERIEEE 2
concession in the PRC BNz MIBZE (105,400) (74,377)
Tax effect of withholding tax on FEKTE A RIAR DI
undistributed profits of PRC BT 2 TR 2 B IE
subsidiaries wa 13,461 9,153
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (2,031) (3,742)
Actual tax expense ERFIEY H 337,068 230,289
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B 7% 3R 3% MY EE

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing B FHER - BB D AHEHISE383(1) 15 &
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies NEl(BBEEEMNEER) ROE2BHEEZ
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BEEME0T -
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2018

fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
¥é - 2HR Bt ZB-N\F

EzHe BENAE REETA 5 #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETR BETR AR BETR BETR

Executive directors BTES

Qian Xiaodong BER - 2,048 2,640 345 5,033
Yang Zhijang R - 1,464 1,400 413 3,217
Wang Yungang FE - 1,099 1,542 196 2,837
Non-executive directors FHTES

Wang Tianyi (note (i) TRE (&) - 10 - - 10
Tang Xianging EEAE - 5 - - 5
Guo Ying (note (i) 2 (M) - 10 - - 10
Independent non-executive BYERTEE (M5 (i)

directors (note (iii))

Chow Siu Lui P& 240 50 - - 200
Philip Tsao ERE 240 50 - - 290
Yan Houmin BER 240 35 - - 275

720 4,771 5,582 954 12,027
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

8 EEME(E)

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2017
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
BIREE  ZE—+F
ik I RiEEa 38 @&z
HK$'000 HK$'00! HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BETT BB BB
Executive directors BTES
Qian Xiaodong BER = 2,061 2,200 41 4,302
Yang Zhigiang ol = 1,329 1,250 308 2,887
Wang Yungang TEH = 1,137 1,382 38 2,557
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chen Xiaoping (note (i) BR/NE (B3 (i) = 10 = = 10
Hu Yanguo (note (i) HATER (3E () = 15 = = 15
Tang Xianoing EEE = 20 = = 20
Independent non-executive BIERTES (X (i)
directors (note (iii))
Chow Siu Lui Pz 155 50 = - 205
Philip Tsao ERE 155 50 = - 205
Yan Houmin BER 155 50 = = 205
465 4,722 4,832 387 10,406
Notes: B EE -

(i) Mr. Wang Tianyi and Ms. Guo Ying were appointed as non-
executive directors on 1 January 2018.

(i) Mr. Chen Xiaoping and Mr. Hu Yanguo resigned as non-

executive directors with effect from 1 January 2018.

(iii) The independent non-executive directors were appointed on

8 May 2017.

There was no amount (2017: Nil) paid or payable by the
Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 9 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. And, there was no arrangement under which a
director has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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Notes to the financial statements

A5 AR MY AR

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 &S %8ERI AL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three htmeHFWENALZEFR =2 (ZF
(2017: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed —tFZR)REF BEHMHWES
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of BE-HMME(ZE—tF: @mE)E5
the other two (2017: two) individuals are as follows: ATHFMERENT

2018 2017
—E-NF Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMME 2,243 2,204
Discretionary bonuses )15 1E 4T 3,130 2,482
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEI R 608 319
5,981 5,005

The emoluments of the two (2017: two) individuals with the FEMA(ZCE—tF - MB)R=FM

highest emoluments are within the following band: BRIAT 2 HMBATEHR :

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
Number of Number of
individual individual
AB N

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 7 #2,000,001 T E
7 ¥ 2,500,0007T - 1

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 B #2 500,001 T E
78 #53,000,0007T 1 1

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 73,000,001 T2
75 #3,500,0007T 1 =
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$1,324,871,000 (2017:
HK$953,823,000) and the weighted average of
2,066,078,000 (2017: 1,844,979,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2017 is calculated based on the
assumption that 1,440,000,000 shares were in issue
at the beginning of the year, taking into consideration
the effect of share split and the capitalisation issue.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

10 ®BIXE R

(a)

R—HA—HBE%&T

BREXAER

BREARBF TIEA QR =R R E
15 B F) 7 #1,324,871,000C (= &
—+ 4 ¢ #H#953,823,0007T) KFR
BT E®AR 2 MNE TR
2,066,078,000% (= — £ 4F :
1,844,979,000f%) 51 & - REI = =Z
—tF+_A=+—RHLLFECET
TR 2 INFEF IR T E R R
18 377 0% 15 1,440,000,000F% 5T & -
WEZEEROIFARENLBEITZ
2 o

BHRZ M- FIIRRE

2018 2017
—E—+tF

’000 shares

—2-N\F
’000 shares
T

L 2,066,078 =%
Share split and capitalisation issue % 0 77 48 2 & AL 31T - 1,440,000
Effect of shares issued under IPO BRIBEH XA ARAEERT
ffn 2 & - 404,979
Weighted average number of ordinary R+=-—A=+—B8%8
shares at 31 December A2 N - 15 AR B 2,066,078 1,844,979

*

Represents less than 1,000 shares

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 were the same as the
basic earnings per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in existence during both years.

(b)

* & AD71,000/%

BREFRER

HE-_ZT-)\GEr=ZE—+tF+=A
—+—HLEFEZERESRAEST
REXZFER - TYBERREFEA
BT FEEETEE S 2 @K -
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BB mRME

]

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11 % BEMREALBERELS
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR HERFEER 2 HE L HER
OWN USE UNDER OPERATING LEASES

Interests in

Leasehold  Motor vehicles, leasehold land

improvements, electronic held for own use

Plant and equipment and Construction under operating

Buildings machinery fix others in progress Sub-total [EREN

BT BE 3 FRIR d

HK$'000 HK$'000 oy HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT 3 # BT BT TR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 R=F—+&-f—-H 417,309 1,351,771 12,983 54,161 72,929 1,909,153 126,691 2,035,844
Exchange adjustments EXA% 27,925 91,135 1,139 4,145 7,836 132,180 10,295 142,475
Additions BE - 8,130 5,405 26,525 430,865 470,925 11,774 482,699
Disposals HE (2,694) (1,408) (46) (888) - (5,036) - (5,036)
Adjustments EilS (33,355 (25,660) - - - (59,015) - (59,015)
Transferred from construction BREERIR
in progress 125,707 182,169 = = (307,876) = = =
At 31 December 2017 R=B—t+F+=-8
=t+-B 534,892 1,606,137 19,481 83,943 203,754 2,448,207 148,760 2,596,967
At 1 January 2018 R=F-N\&—-A—-H 534,892 1,606,137 19,481 83,943 203,754 2,448,207 148,760 2,596,967
Exchange adjustments EXA% (27,002) (73,842) (1,184) (4,270) (19,392) (125,690) (8,352) (134,042)
Additions BE 3,907 2,670 10,245 29,583 368,959 415,364 40,649 456,013
Disposals HE - (365) (221) (4,220) - (4,806) - (4,806)
Transferred from construction BREHERIE
in progress 81,404 78,089 - - (159,493) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+=ZA
=t+-H 593,201 1,612,689 28,321 105,036 393,828 2,733,075 181,057 2,914,132

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ FEAXGEBRRERAT - /\FFH



Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11 W% BMELAXKBEANRBIELS

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR HERFEFER2HE L HER
OWN USE UNDER OPERATING LEASES (#&
(Continueqd)

Interests in

Leasehold  Motor vehicles, leasehold land

improvements, electronic held for own use

Plant and furniture and  equipment and  Construction in under operating

Buildings machinery progress Sub-total

#F ELYL ] 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT i j BB i 7 BB

Accumulated depreciation RETERES
and amortisation:

At 1 January 2017 W=Z2—t&-f-R 24,634 150,005 3,480 17,176 = 195,295 6,007 201,302
Exchange adjustments ExE% 2,004 12,631 284 1,781 = 16,700 555 17,255
Charge for the year AEEXH 15,465 65,384 2,045 11,711 - 94,605 3,756 98,361
Disposals e (1,171) (802) (46) (580) = (2,599) = (2,599)
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t&+=A

=t+-A 40,932 207,218 5,763 30,088 = 304,001 10,318 314,319
At 1 January 2018 R=2-\5-A-8 40,932 207,218 5,763 30,088 - 304,001 10,318 314,319
Exchange adjustments EH AR (2,667) (14,085) (533) (2,415) - (19,700) (801) (20,501)
Charge for the year AFEXH 13,719 82,984 4,318 16,462 - 117,483 4,217 121,760
Disposals e - (143) (#1) (3,316) - (3,500) - (3,500)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-NE+ZA

=4=F 51,984 295,974 9,507 40,819 - 398,284 13,794 412,078
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t&+=A

== 493,960 1,378,919 13,718 53,855 203,754 2,144,206 138,442 2,282,648
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F+=A

=i=Ff 541,217 1,316,715 18,814 64,217 393,828 2,334,791 167,263 2,502,054

The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: MEEREFEITAT

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
In the PRC R B
Medium-term leases FREIEE 708,480 632,402
Representing: R¥&:
Buildings EF 541,217 493,960
Interests in leasehold land held for own use REBEKLHAEFIEER 2
under operating leases HE iR 167,263 138,442

708,480 632,402
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12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 BREEE

Integrated
biomass
utilisation

project operating
rights

HEME e T A
BRESHE
HK$’000

BT T

Hazardous

and solid

waste treatment
project
operating rights
EENEERE
HEELRE
HK$'000
BT T

Total

st
HK$'000
BT T

Cost: R
At 1 January 2017 RN-ZE—+tF

—B—H 2,595,587 503,519 3,099,106
Exchange adjustments bE 0 A 225,086 33,720 258,806
Additions e 1,955,013 59,356 2,014,369
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+t&F

T=EZ=—E 4,775,686 596,595 5,372,281
Accumulated Rt -

amortisation:

At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—tF

—HB—H 118,044 5,248 123,292
Exchange adjustments P& & 10,007 1,100 11,107
Charge for the year AEELH 81,549 24,725 106,274
At 31 December 2017 RN-E—+tF

+=—A=+—H 209,600 31,073 240,673
Net book value: BRENFE -
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+t&F

+=—A=+—8 4,566,086 565,522 5,131,608
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes to the financial statements

12 BIVEE (&)

35 AR M A

Integrated Hazardous
biomass and solid
utilisation waste treatment
project project
operating rights operating rights Total
EYERENR REREBREE
HAEERE HEEZE® @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F
—H—H 4,775,686 596,595 5,372,281
Exchange adjustments bE 5 (311,298) (41,447) (352,745)
Additions 1% 2,494,578 363,994 2,858,572
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=—A=+—H 6,958,966 919,142 7,878,108
Accumulated -5
amortisation:
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F
—HA—A 209,600 31,073 240,673
Exchange adjustments PE X 8% (15,215) (2,436) (17,651)
Charge for the year AEEFELH 143,192 25,472 168,664
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+—_A=+—H 337,577 54,109 391,686
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+-A=+—H” 6,621,389 865,033 7,486,422
The amortisation of the intangible assets is included in BEEEHEEEERN Bz | BEK

“Direct costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, there were certain projects that
had not commenced operation, the amount of the project
operating rights of these projects was HK$2,237,255,000
(2017: HK$1,724,200,000). The recoverable amount of each
of these operating rights was determined based on the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the projects. The cash flow projections are
based on the most recent respective financial budgets
approved by the senior management covering a budget
period of five years. The financial budgets are prepared
based on the service agreements governing the relevant
projects together with assumptions such as utilisation rates
and gross profit margins that represent the senior
management’s best estimate of the set of economic
conditions that will exist over the period. The cash inflows
of the operating rights are mainly due from local
government authorities in the PRC with no history of
default, and accordingly management considers the credit

risk of such projects to be insignificant. The assumptions
used are supported by historical data of existing projects
with similar production capacity, technologies, customers’
payment history and type of biomass materials processed or
hazardous wastes treated. Cash flows beyond the budget
period are extrapolated using an estimated inflation rate of
2% which does not exceed the average long-term growth
rates for the industry in which the projects operate.
Discount rates of 13.4% to 14.4% (2017: 13.4% to 14.4%)
have been adopted for the calculations of the recoverable
amounts as at 31 December 2018. The discount rates used
are the pre-tax rates that reflect the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the specific
risks relating to the relevant operating rights. Based on
management’s assessment, no loss allowance is considered

necessary as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

12

BIVEE (&)

AZE—NF+ZA=+—H HTHEE
MAFBES ZEFEAMNBEALERY
N & %8 B 75 #2,237,255,0000 (= F —+
& HB#1,724,200,0007T) - HFHEZEEE
R ESREILENEZSHEERESFR
%fﬁﬁxﬁéziﬁﬁfﬁm Eﬁﬁumiiﬁ EJL/(
EREEE AN RERFEEANSLD
MU EBE AR VB EEREERR
EHE MRS HERE - Rt AZERR
MEREEEYEEHARNCERIIER
FHEMRENEAERENE KL’
ZEERALTE R EE BT T RE
- WEEOLE  RLEERERAZEE
BERNEERBITTEKXN - FTARNBERAR
BER Bt BPNRLEHEENIENE
MEERSFTEENEEREMNIER 2F
S EIRIESIF o %E%FH;QD{M‘E"]EEHMLEM
HEtARE2% 2% MBI ZEIAE
FIETEMFEHREERE FTEHEC
E-NF+ZA=Z+—HHATKRE S ER
B MALIR R13.4% E14.4% (— T —+
F 1 13.4%E14.4%) - FT A R BL IR X BBk
TATALIA X - R IHIRITEH R ERRRE
BEMMIBLEEEBERR G R
E-N\F+ZA=+—H REEEEHN
Rl REEFEBERE(CZZT—t45:
).
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Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

G)=PNCIES =
TREWFIZEVEAEMES HEWX
BERNER RS - RIFRBAHIEI -
AT IR SRR B 2 AR -

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership
interest
AR

Place of
incorporation
and business

il
0 2 K%

Name of company

REEHE

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital
BEBITRER

Held by the
Company
EEING

®A

Principal activity

TEXB

EB Greentech Biological Technology (Xinyi) Limited* PRC RMB12,500,000 = 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(KRB ERREDR (FT) BRAA)* hE AR #12,500,0007T maintenance of biotechnology project
Wit @it BERERADHEER
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Fengyang) PRC RMB183,340,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Company Limited™ (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #183,340,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(LR B EER (BFS) BRAE)* (M@ & (b)) waste-to-energy project
Rt B EEREEENE RN RBEE—
B{RE
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Guanyun) PRC RMB199,120,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Company Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #199,120,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(KARBBEEROCEE) BRAA])* (M @) K& (b)) waste-to-energy project
Rit 2 BERGELNERNEEE—
BBLEA
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Huai'an) PRC RMB184,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #184,000,0007C maintenance of integrated biomass and
(KRB E LR CER) ARAA)* (i 7 (a) R (0) waste-to-energy project
Rit B BERAEEMERNEEE—
BLER
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Mianzhu) PRC RMB178,670,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*" (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #178,670,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(R RBABE LR (517) BRAE) * (M @) K& (b)) waste-to-energy project
Rt B EEREEENE R RBEE -
B{RE
Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Shegi) PRC RMB171,300,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) FE AR#171,300,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(KRB LR (ALHE) BRAA])* (M (@) & (b)) waste-to-energy project
Rit 2 BERGELNERNEEE—
BBLEA
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Xiao County) PRC RMB190,010,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*" (notes (a) and (b)) HE AE%190,010,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(KAHBEERER (BG)BERRF)* (M@ &) waste-to-energy project
Rit B BERAEENERNEEE—
BLER
Everbright Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Xiayi) PRC RMB121,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*" (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #121,000,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(EABBBEEER(BE)BRAR)* (M@ kb)) waste-to-energy project
Rt B EEREEENE R RBEE -
B{RE
EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Zhongjiang) PRC RMB57,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited™ (note (b)) & AR#57,000,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and

(R B ERER (PIT) ERAF)* (B EE (D)

heat cogeneration project
Ret - 2iE - BERGELNERSHIUER
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 MEB A RIKE (&

Proportion of ownership
interest

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital

Place of
incorporation
and business

Held by the
Company

Held by a

Name of company subsidiary  Principal activity

BAAR
#E

EB Urban and Rural Renewable Energy (Zhongxiang) PRC RMB159,750,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (notes (a) and (b)) HE AR #159,750,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
(KRABEELR () BRRF)* (M@ Rkb) waste-to-energy project
Rit @ BERAEENERNEEE -
LA
Everbright Alternative Energy (Dangshan) Company PRC HK$125,800,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*" (note (o)) i 75 1125,800,0007C maintenance of biomass direct
(RARFEER (BIL) BRAR)* (o) combustion power generation projects
Rit B BEERGEENEERETER
Everbright Biomass Cogeneration (Liuan) Company PRC RMB117,230,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (note (b)) & AR#117,230,0007T maintenance of biomass electricity and
(KREMRE (RR)BERAA)* (FFE(D) heat cogeneration project
Rit - BiE - EERGELNERSHYUER
Everbright Biomass Energy (Chuzhou) Company PRC RMB106,670,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*" (note (b)) H AE#106,670,0007T maintenance of biomass direct
(FREDRER CRIN) BRAF)* (M (b) combustion power generation projects
Rit o @iE - EERAELNEERRTEA
Everbright Biomass Energy (Dingyuan) Company PRC HK$131,660,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*" (note (b)) Gl 7 #5131,660,0007T maintenance of biomass direct
(EREMER (TR) AR A A)* (K Eb) combustion power generation projects
Rit @ BERGEENEERETER
Everbright Biomass Energy (Guixi) Limited* (note (b)) PRC RMB98,667,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(REDRER(BR)BERAF)*(HEb) HE AR #98,667,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project
Rit - BiE - EERGELNERSHIUER
EB Greentech Biomass Energy (Guoyang) Limited* PRC RMB69,050,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(note (b)) i AR%69,050,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and
KAERBRE LR CRB) AR A A" (HEb) heat cogeneration project
Rit o BiE - EERGELNEREHIUAR
Everbright Biomass Energy (Hanshan) Limited* PRC HK$127,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(note (b)) hE 7 #5127,000,0007T maintenance of biomass direct
(R REMEER (F1L) AR AR * (K b)) combustion power generation project
Rit B BERGEENEERETER
Everbright Biomass Energy (Huaiyuan) Limited* (note (a)) PRC HK$220,630,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(KREWRER (BE) BRAR)* (K@) HE 7 1#220,630,0007T maintenance of integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy project
Rit 2 BERBELNERNEEE—
B{LEA
Everbright Biomass Energy (Lianshui) Limited* (note (b)) PRC RMB92,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
(KREMRER CEA) BRAA)* (H7E (b)) HE AR #92,000,0007C maintenance of biomass electricity and

heat cogeneration project
Rit B BEERGELNERSHAURR
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation

Name of company and business

NCE:S

Everbright Biomass Energy (Lingbi) Limited*" (note (b)) PRC

CEREMELR (BE) AR F) " (B (b)) HE

Everbright Biomass Energy (Liuan) Company Limited*" PRC
(note (b)) i

(EREMER NR) BRAR)* (K b))

Everbright Biomass Energy (Rugao) Company Limited* PRC
(EREMRER (MR)BERAT)* HE
Everbright Biomass Energy (Shayang) Limited** (note (b)) PRC
(EREMEER (D7) BRRA)* (B (b)) FE
Everbright Biomass Energy (Sugian) Limited* (note (b)) PRC
CEREMELR (15:8) R A * (B (b)) HE
Everbright Biomass Energy (Weihai) Limited* (note (b)) PRC
(EREMRER (BLE) AR A])* (B (b)) HE
Everbright Biomass Energy (Xuyi) Company Limited** PRC

(note (b)) &+

CEREEER (FFE8) BRAR)* (H (b))

Everbright Environmental Energy (Dangshan) Limited** PRC
(note (a)) il

CERRRER (BIL) BRAR) (K (@)

Everbright Environmental Energy (Lingbi) Company PRC
Limited*" (note (a)) 8

(ERRRER (BE)BRAR) (K i)

Everbright Environmental Protection Hazardous Waste PRC
Treatment (Zibo) Company Limited™ i

(EARRREERE 48 FRAF)"

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital

RMB106,667,000
AR #106,667,0007C

RMB113,570,000
AR #113,570,0007C

RMB142,667,000
AR #142,667,0007T

RMB106,667,000
AR #106,667,0007T

RMB75,600,000
AR #75,600,0007C

RMB109,600,000
AR #109,600,0007T

RMB102,283,000
AR #102,283,0007T

RMB83,340,000
AR #83,340,0007C

RMB83,333,000
AR #83,333,0007C

RMB111,845,000
AR #5111,845,0007T

13

Held by the

Proportion of ownership
interest

AR b

Held by a

Company subsidiary

mARR
BB

- 100%

= 100%

- 100%

- 100%

= 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
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BN RHRE (&

Principal activity

TREH

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Ret R EERAEENEEMREERR

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Ret 2 EERAELNEREHIUER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Rt 2 EEREEENEEMREDER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass direct
combustion power generation project

Rit B BERGELNEEMRUTER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass heat supply
project

Rat - BE - BEREELYEHMER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Rt 2 EEREEENEREBHIER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of biomass electricity and
heat cogeneration project

Rit B BERGELNERSHGUER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of waste-to- energy project
AT R EEREELREEHEA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of waste-to- energy project
Rat o BE - EBEREENREERA

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste
incineration project

Rit - BiE EERERBEREAR
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 MBARIKE (&

Proportion of ownership

interest
L
Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued and  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid up capital Company subsidiary  Principal activity
MADR  HHEAR
¥E
Everbright Environmental Protection (Lianyungang) Solid PRC HK$119,190,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Waste Treatment Company Limited** i ##119,190,0007C maintenance of hazardous waste landfil
(note (c) project
(ERRR(EEH) BEEEERAA) (M) Rit - BE - BEREEREEERA
Everbright Environmental Protection (Lianyungang) Waste PRC USD12,849,000 = 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Disposal Company Limited** Gl 12,849,000% 7T maintenance of hazardous waste
(KARR(EER)RENEBERAA)* incineration project

Ret - BiE EEREESERERA

Lishui Everbright Environmental Solid Waste Treatment PRC RMB21,218,000 = 51%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited*™" (note (c)) & AR%21,218,0007C maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
(BRXRBREFEREFBRAA)* (HFE(C) project

Ret - 2E EEREEBRIERER

Everbright Environmental Protection (Sugian) Solid Waste PRC RMB39,151,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Treatment Limited* (note (d)) RE 7#5%39,151,0007C maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
(ERRR(EE) BEREBRAR)* (k@) project

Ret - E BEREEBRIERA

Everbright Environmental Protection (Yancheng) Solid PRC USD23,582,000 = 90%  Design, construction, operation and
Waste Treatment Company Limited ** (note (c)) L2 23,582,000% 7T maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
CERRR () B R ERR AR (B (o) project

Ret - BiE EERERSEEERA

Everbright Environmental Solid Waste Treatment (Xinyi) PRC HK$83,789,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Limited* (note (c)) & 751%583,789,0007C maintenance of hazardous waste
(KABRRERFRE (F7) ERRA A * (i () incineration project

Ret - 2E EEREREBEREERR

Everbright Environmental (Suzhou) Solid Waste PRC USD4,865,000 - 100%  Design, construction, operation and
Treatment Limited* (note (d)) E 4,865,000% 7T maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
(ERRR M) BEREBRAR)* (k@) project

Ret - E BEREEBRIERA

Everbright Environmental Repairing (Jiangsu) Limited* PRC RMB51,000,000 = 100%  Operation of environmental remediation
(KRBRRBEECIH) ARAA)* FE AR #51,000,0007 project
BERBERER
Everbright Greentech (Huaiyuan) Cleaning Services PRC RMB16,350,000 - 90%  Provision of waste collection service
Limited* HE AR #16,350,0007C RN FRERE

(AR EBRE (RR) BERREERAF)

Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Changzhou) Company PRC RMB32,500,000 - 100%  Design, construction and operation of solar
Limited** H AR ¥#32,500,0007C energy project

(ERKREER (EM) BRAR)* Rt  BEREEHKRBEER

Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Huaining) Company PRC HK$29,000,000 - 100%  Design, construction and operation of solar
Limited** il 751%29,000,0007C energy project

(ERFEREER (BE)BRAR)* Rit BERBERNREEEE
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

Place of
incorporation
and business

T

Particulars of

issued and

paid up capital
E)

Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Sugian) Limited* PRC RMB80,740,000
(ERFREER (TBB) BRAR)* HE AR ¥80,740,0007T
Everbright Photovoltaic Energy (Zhenjiang) Limited* PRC RMB122,090,000
(KARKRER ET)BRAF)* T E AR #¥122,000,0007T
Everbright Solarpark Schonewalde Ldt & Co. KG Germany €1,000
BE 1,000B 7T
Everbright Solid Waste Landfill (Xinyi) Holdings Limited* PRC RMB66,460,000
(note (c)) L2 A R #66,460,0007C
(EARBERREBEYRE 7)) BRAA) * ()

Everbright Wind Power (Ningwu) Company Limited* PRC RMB258,360,000
(ERRE(ER)BRAR)" HE AR #258,360,0007C

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprise
# Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign co-

operation joint ventures
For identification only
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13 MBRARIKRE (&

Proportion of ownership

Held by the
Company
RALDH

®A

*

#

A

Held by a
subsidiary
£ i/ 2
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Design, construction and operation of solar
energy project
Rt BEREEKKFERER

Design, construction and operation of solar
energy project

Rat BEREZSKRRARTAEA

Design, construction and operation of solar
energy project
Rat  BEREERREERE

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste landfill
project

Rat BiE EERAEEEEEAER

Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of wind power project
Rat o BE - EBEREERTERA

REBEPEERERLRIELE -

REBHEERECRATICERE -

ERA %l
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13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the local government
authorities in the PRC (the “grantors”). Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain waste-to-energy
projects and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy
projects in the PRC for a period not less than 30 years. The
grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. During the
operating period, the Group will be responsible to maintain
the waste-to-energy projects and integrated biomass and
waste-to-energy projects in good condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the waste-to-energy projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects is recognised as
“Service concession assets”, which are included in “Contract
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain biomass direct
combustion power generation projects, biomass heat supply
project, biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects
and integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects in the
PRC for a period not less than 30 years. The service fees
are based on the extent of services rendered and are
subject to the approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. During the operating period, the Group will be
responsible to maintain the biomass direct combustion
power generation projects, biomass heat supply project,
biomass electricity and heat cogeneration projects and
integrated biomass and waste-to-energy projects in good
condition.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the biomass direct combustion power
generation projects, biomass heat supply project, biomass
electricity and heat cogeneration projects and integrated
biomass and waste-to-energy projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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B~ AR E (A
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(TETAD TSR RS E R LT - 1R
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hERE  EEREERREEEA L
ME RN IRFEE-BLEE - SEAIR
30F - BPARRE - AEEEFFARE
B BE R R 50 - MEZ BN - R&E
EE RSN REERE REYE RNR
BE-RIECBERBERRENRR -

RBEFEERTHL BT FERRE
B o BT ARAREBEIG AR G GRE
ERERZERTH LT -

BERNINEERA REME LR EE
— (LA BRENZERT A B YT
RAMBRARPERRIAANEE]
IR EEE] -

REBEZEMB AR R T AR LREE
FIEERTY - RERBEIFEEELR
B AEEERERPEEE  EE R
EAEMEEMEEIER LWL MR
B EWEAEEMHIER REME LK
BE-RBILIER - BETDRB0EF - R
BROREEZBRBME  XRASEAEE
BT B ER T AMEE - RNEZHA
AEEBERFEMEEMBEERRE &
MEHMIAE - EMEREHRHERE A
WE RS E LB RN RN -

RIEFIAKERL T ESBEREE
B o BT ARAKEEIG AR % GRRE
BERERZBERTH LG -

EYEBEMBEETEE - EMEHRIER
EYERERIIRE RAEME RN RESE
—BLREZEERAERE MBI RERT
BRSIEBLEE] -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain hazardous waste
landfill projects and hazardous waste incineration projects in
the PRC for a period of 20 to 30 years. The Group has the
obligation to maintain the hazardous waste landfill projects
and hazardous waste incineration projects in good condition.
The service fees are based on the extent of services
rendered and are subject to the approvals from the relevant
local government authorities. Upon expiry of the concession
periods, the hazardous waste landfill projects and hazardous
waste incineration projects and related facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the hazardous waste landfill projects and
hazardous waste incineration projects are recognised as
“Intangible assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the
service concession arrangements, the Group was granted
rights to construct, operate and maintain hazardous waste
landfill projects in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30 years.
The Group has the obligation to maintain the hazardous
waste landfill projects in good condition. The grantors
guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual payments
in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of the
concession periods, the hazardous waste landfill projects and
related facilities will be transferred to the local government
authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. Both the grantor and the Group have the rights to
terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the hazardous waste landfill projects is
recognised as “Service concession assets”, which are
included in “Contract assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

13

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 4 R B o

B ARIRE (&)

GhE

©

(%)

REBEZEMB AR EE T AR LREE
FIEERTY - REMBEHIFEEELR
P AEEERERPEESE  EE MM
MEREEIEIRE MERETREIRE - /HI20
E30%F - FEEAEEHEFBEEIEZER
R ERERBIAR R RN - RISER
BERMZRBME - WARSEBEHWRT
WREHLER T PHEE - R FFE 2 HEm
1% fEREEIBIAE e R EIA R AR
R R E BT REME -

MEBFEERLFLBESTHENER
o BT ARKEB D E RN HEGTE
EREBRZERTH LG -

EREEEIEA MEBENIRERE ZESRE
FEMBHARRTREARIEBLEE] -

AEEZSH B R RER T AR LIRS
ALY RERBEFEERER
P AREERERTEEE  EE i
EERFHEIEAR - REI26E30F - ALE
BETARRREEEEB RN R
ETARE  AEESESFURERLH
WSR3 - SRS S HER R - &
FERIEIEIE B N AR B AR b A5 1 B 1 DR
BAFE -

R EFFFE BT BT ERRE
B o BT ARAKNEEIG AR RUE
BERERZBERTH LG -

B g 5k e RE MR IR B SR (A0 IE AR TS A
SRS MBI R P RR A A
[BRHEEINIREEFFEEREE] -
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Notes to the financial statements

A5 AR MY AR

14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14 —REENFIHER

2017
= — \F T+ F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets fE(REEF5 56,216 —
Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is AEB 2B ERNRER (A MEREME
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated BAEREAR)FBOT

financial statements are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

R

Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of associate and business paid up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
BEETR
i1 AvA rEEZ HARAR
e E=d & -]

Anging Jinghuan Green PRC  RMB101,000,000 49% - 49%  Design, construction,
Environmental Solid Waste H AR operation and
Comprehensive Disposal 101,000,0007T maintenance of
Co. Ltd. (“Anging Solid hazardous and solid
Waste”) waste treatment

ZERIRECIREERERE project (note)
BREERAB(ZEERE] Rt BiE - EER

HEEEREERE
A (M)

Note: The Group made capital contributions of approximately e - RBEZT—N\F+ZA=+—8HLtHF
HK$56,354,000 to Anqging Solid Waste during the year B -AEEmMTEBRREITIENBSE
ended 31 December 2018. The Group has significant 56,354,0007T » IRIELEERE 7 BEER
influence over Anging Solid Waste’s management, including A AREBHTERENER(B2E2
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions, HEEREEBRRONAR)AEATE
pursuant to the Articles of Association of Anging Solid 1o Al - REEREW ""Eﬁﬁéﬁnlﬂﬁi*’*
Waste. Accordingly, Anging Solid Waste is classified as an ~a]e

associate of the Group.

Anging Solid Waste was established by the Group with AEEBEILFIRIBER AT (MLEEE AT
Beijing Environment Limited in the PRC, the other investor to 2R —REEB)RPRK I LZERE - A
this associate, to enhance harmless disposal ability of MBZETMHERENESEER -
hazardous waste of Anging City.

Anging Solid Waste, the only associate in which the Group EEEAEBRME -2 EAHE QA
participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted ,H\]U‘FJ:T'E/‘E/\E C BT IS RIE o

market price is not available.
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

FE 15 & 2% 5

Share of net assets

i
2
B>
e
5

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT  BETR

57,446 51,841

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

AEEzGEREEDS (ERAMBREE
FRETAARR) FBEWT

Proportion of 0 ersh\p interest

Place of

incorporation and  Particulars of issued Group’s effective
Name of joint venture business  and paid up capital interest

Held by a
sub5|d|ary Principal activity

Everbright SITA Solid Waste PRC RMB110,000,000 50%
Treatment (Changzhou) B  AR#110,000,0007

Limited (“SITA (Changzhou)”)
KAFEERRE (BM) BRAA
(T (EM)D)

Note: The Group made capital contributions of approximately
HK$8,669,000 and HK$19,733,000 to SITA (Changzhou)
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
respectively. The Group has joint control over SITA
(Changzhou)’s management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions, pursuant to the
Articles of Association of SITA (Changzhou). Accordingly,
SITA (Changzhou) is classified as a joint venture of the
Group.

SITA (Changzhou) was established by the Group with SITA
Asia Pacific Limited in the PRC, the other investor to this
joint venture, to enhance harmless disposal ability of
hazardous waste of Changzhou City.

SITA (Changzhou), the only joint venture in which the Group
participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted
market price is not available.

50%  Design, construction, operation and
maintenance of hazardous waste
incineration project (note)

Rit - BE - BERERCENFER
(M=)

Mz - ARBEDHRBE_T-NFR-ZT—+t

FH—A=+—RIEFEERFEEIMN)E
& #9785 #8,669,0007T & 78 19,733,000
L e *EF%%%(%)H)Z@%EEZEE'J N
EEAHAREHIFE(EMN) 2EEE &
?E,,\/J&mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&@Mﬂﬁﬁ At - F+
EEMNEIEALEEZALEDE -

AEEETEFMERAR (MAERE
ZH—REE)RPBIRIIE(EM)
AN BN EREEEREL S

FHECEN) DR EEE-28N4 20D
¥ HWIEEMAAER - MEMSRE -
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Notes to the financial statements

BB mRME

16 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 16

AND PREPAYMENTS

PR AR X« EL M R IWERIE - 1R &
K FBf FRIR

(restated)
(geE75)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Debtors J& W BR R 369,417 171,604
Other receivables, deposits and E b fEYGRIA - e RFEKIE
prepayments 1,291,325 716,325
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & Y [F] Z [t B A 7] 7018 4,750 834
1,665,492 888,763
Less: Non-current portion A - FERNERER 1D
— Other receivables, deposits and —H b EM IR - e RFER
prepayments RIA (425,957) (370,729)
Current portion BV ER B 17 1,239,535 518,034

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ FEAXGEBRRERAT - /\FFH



16 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” are debtors (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis as at the end of the reporting
period:

16

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

FEM R SR - H A IR - B2
RIBN A ()
[FEMRER AR - B REMCHOE - S RIEM

B ERmRRARR (FIRREERERE) - B
WERRZREOITAT

2017
—E—tF
(restated)
(&&E7)
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
(Curent L 205,409 155,709
Within 1 month past due BEATZ A — (& A 117,451 3,875
More than 1 month but within 3 months BEHBA—FABRTZR
past due =®@A 10,666 3,522
More than 3 months but within 6 months  #1HA#E:8 =& A ~ %
past due 7~ @& A 17,816 6,040
More than 6 months but within 12 months 1 EAFE @ /<8 A B T~ % R
past due +—1@A 8,464 66
More than 12 months past due mEEA+ (@A 9,611 2,392
_Amounts pastdue ] BHSR . 164,008 15,895 _
369,417 171,604
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Notes to the financial statements

A5 AR MY AR

16 DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 16 [EWEER - E#ERNIE - %4

AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) RIERFRIB (F)
The ageing analysis of debtors based on the date of invoice REEAHFETNKREERE  EBIKER
and net of loss allowance, as at the end of the reporting HRFREMRZBERSTAT ¢

period is as follows:

2017
—T—+F
(restated)
(Fe &%)
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 month TR —1EA 173,350 124,878
More than 1 month but within 2 months BR—EAETZNREA 20,940 19,022
More than 2 months but within 4 months @M & A8 ~Z R IMEA 131,584 9,001
More than 4 months but within 7 months  #B3i@8PUE A BT Z R+ A 18,770 12,281
More than 7 months but within 13 BECtEAETEZR
months +=1EH 12,354 4,016
More than 13 months BE+=1@EA 12,419 2,406
369,417 171,604
Debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of ERERETEHEERRRT =TENT
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and BAEIEE - BB ANSE B /{5 B R R FEIR
credit risk arising from debtors are set out in note 24(a). EREENEERBR ZE—DSHBERANW
¥24(a) °
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Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

17 CONTRACT ASSETS 17 BHEE

2017
(restated)
(g£E=5)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current FERE
Service concession assets (note 17(a)) RIS EEEE
(Ff3E17(a)) 2,852,061 1,766,507
Current TE
Service concession assets (note 17(a)) RIS EEEE
(FF3E17(a)) 204,598 155,118
Unbilled renewable energy tariff subsidy AAEEBAEREREE
(note 17(b)) e (MHEE17(0)) 1,290,468 665,861
Environmental remediation contract RBBEAGHNEE
assets (note 17(c)) (HF#E17(c)) 67,025 —
. 1,862,090 820,979 _
4,414,152 2,587,486
Contract assets arising from performance  JB77H RIS 4T SF 48 A 2o HF
under construction contracts in HENEEANELENS
connection with service concession NEE Mt AIER
arrangements, which are included in &z (fzE12)
“Intangible assets” (note 12) 2,237,255 1,724,200
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Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

17 CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

As a

result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, certain

comparative figures have been restated. Please refer to
note 1(c(ii).

(a)

(b)

Service concession assets

Service concession assets arose from the Group’s
revenue from construction services under certain BOT
and BOO arrangements as disclosed in notes 13(a)
and (d) and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.90%
to 6.60% (2017: 4.90% to 6.60%) per annum as at
31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, HK$2,213,959,000 (2017:
HK$1,660,237,000) relates to certain BOT and BOO
arrangements with operations commenced.

Pursuant to the BOT and BOO arrangements, the
Group receives no payment from the grantors during
the construction period and instead receives service
fees for the Group’s operation services when relevant
services are rendered during the operating periods.
The service concession assets are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by the service fees to be
received during the operating periods of the
arrangements. Details of the service concession
arrangements are discussed in note 13.

All of the current position of service concession
assets are expected to be recovered within one year.

Unbilled renewable energy tariff subsidy

The balance
subsidy receivables for certain integrated biomass
utilisation projects which newly commenced operations

represents government on-grid tariff

and arose from the Group’s revenue from operations.
The amounts will be billed and settled upon the
completion of government administrative procedures
pursuant to Caidian [2012] No.102 Notice on the
Interim Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds
for Tariff Premium of Renewable Energy (F] & 4 RE)R
EEMINEESEEETIE) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the National Energy

Administration.

17

BREE(E)

M E LB ELERFE155  BETHR
BFELET - F2HM ()

(a)

(b)

RIS EREEEEAAEER
B & FTBOTRBOOZ HE (4nki5£13(a)
ROFHE) EENEERERS
R_ZE—NFEF+_A=Z+—RHENT
4.90% E£6.60%MFF X5 E(ZF
— -+ 490%%E6.60%) °

WZE-NF+_A=+—8 " #HE
IR ELHE TBOTRBOOLHEE H
2 P R 2,213,959,000T (= F
— -+ : #¥1,660,237,0007T) °

BIEBOT RBOOZLHE + AEBMNEE
HATEa R AREIE - mMER
BEEHNRERAERGER  HASE
HEE RISWERISE - IRAGFETE
EREEMRIAIN  WHERZ
ERHMELHANBRYREEE
- BERBFITEEETHENFS
BHRMIFE13

RIS RHE BB E 2B R D
BRI —F R E -

AAREUBLERREERMN

HHRAETHRABENEMELRE
FAEE 2 EWEBT B EmEE,
EXEAEERLERE - FIRBIM IR
o EREENNEZE S RBEIREE
BERHEREMO BN B LR
BREEMINBHESEBEITIOR)
B3 40 (BF 32[2012]1025% ) 72 Ak B2 fF
TRFER  ZFEBSRALEER
qER
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Notes to the financial statements

B35 3R R M aF
17 CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 17 BREE (&)
(c) Environmental remediation contract assets (c) BREBEGHNEE
The balance arose from performance under EHRABTRREESOAMESE - %
environmental remediation contracts. Such contracts ZENBERATRRBARANENET
include payment schedules which require stage BREEERAMN RN RETE -
payments over the service periods once milestones
are reached.
18 INVENTORIES 18 &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) FREUVBEMRRRFAREEERE:

financial position comprise:

2018 2017
—E2-NF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials and operating AR K GE & A
supplies 124,656 110,899
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) ERARABMIUTABRERZE
recognised as an expense and included in ESBEINWOT :

profit or loss is as follows:

2018 2017
—E2-NF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BETT
Carrying amount of inventories ERATEZREE
consumed 1,112,863 604,125
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Notes to the financial statements

BB mRME

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 R&E&NKBEEEBWMNEEMIRS R
CASH FLOW INFORMATION B

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) ReRkReEEYERE:

2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 5T BT T
Deposits with banks |ITEK 409,875 1,181,261
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEB IR 1,634,951 1,222,914
2,044,826 2,404,175
Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” are the [BekReEEW]BETIFRR
following deposits placed with a related party bank: BT IRIT 2T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Deposits with a related party bank 17 A BE B 75 iR 1T 2 17 3K 81,635 332,328
Interest income from a related party  BEHE 5 $R1T 2 FB WA

bank 5,416 5,314
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Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b)
financing activities:

Be RSB REMB TR
Br (&)

METHEENEEZHIR:

TREJIAEEERE T AELN
BEEHFE  ETEEREMIFR
TEY METBAEENRERE
R MR IR AT A 5 B H 4R
BHRENERANDBEAREZSME
EREROAILE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash

flows from financing activities.

Bank loans
RITEN
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At 1 January R—A—H 3,494,703 1,968,327
Changes from financing cash RMERSRFERNEH :
flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans FIEIRITE RIS RIE 3,243,972 1,936,178
Repayment of bank loans EERITEX (506,052) (570,260)
Interest paid BB (213,091) (131,547)
Total changes from financing cash ~ MER &ML RSB EE
flows | _2_,?%‘!-,_8_2_9_ B 1,234,371
_Exchange adjustments | Ei@E (6084 160,458 _
Other changes: Hih &5
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) B (MEE6() 202,384 125,565
Capitalised borrowing costs B EBERA (H5E6()
(note 6(a)) 10,707 5,982
_Total other changes _____________: AteRwmEE 213001 . 131,547
At 31 December R+t=—A=+—H 6,006,559 3,494,703
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A5 AR MY AR

20 BANKS LOANS

(a)

(b)

The bank loans were repayable as follows:

20 RITE®
() BITERERTHELHEE:

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

_Within 1 year or on demand - CERBEERER 915375 . 541,271
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 465,358 337,795
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRBERFA 2,817,373 1,311,426
After 5 years hF®% 1,808,453 1,304,211
6,006,559 3,494,703

The bank loans were secured as follows:

(b) BRITEFREFFERWOT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Bank loans RITEXR
— secured —HEHE 4,026,843 2,759,637
— unsecured — A 1,979,716 735,066
6,006,559 3,494,703

Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by
certain revenue, contract assets and receivables in
connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements, mortgages on property, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases of the Group. Such
banking facilities, amounting to HK$6,658,282,000
(2017: HK$4,444,719,000) as at 31 December 2018
were utilised to the extent of HK$4,026,843,000
(2017: HK$2,759,637,000).

REBMETRITHEURNE B RIS E
HRHETHETRE  ANEERE
WRIE - W3 - BB RRERE K
EEREBEEHEREERAMNEE LS
ISR - R — N\F+=A
=+—8 BERTBERBRAK
6,658,282,0007T (=& — 4 : B
4,444,719,0007T) - R E B ALK
4,026,843,0007T (Z & — 4 : B
2,759,637,0007T) °
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20 BANKS LOANS (Continued)

(b)

The bank loans were secured as follows:
(Continued)

The unsecured banking facilities of HK$4,602,728,000
(2017: HK$2,612,556,000) as at 31 December 2018
were utilised to the extent of HK$1,979,716,000
(2017: HK$735,066,000).

All of the non-current bank loans are carried at
amortised costs. None of the non-current bank loans
is expected to be settled within one year.

Banking faciliies of HK$6,101,334,000 as at 31
2018 (2017: HK$3,083,713,000) are
subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to

December
certain of the Group’s financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. As at 31
December 2018, such facilities were utilised to the
extent of HK$2,970,420,000 (2017:
HK$1,307,891,000). The Group regularly monitors its
As at 31

December 2018, none of the covenants relating to

compliance with these covenants.

drawn down facilities had been breached (2017: Nil).
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 24(b).

At 31 December 2018, bank loans of
HK$261,257,000 (2017: HK$59,375,000) are due to a
related party bank which are secured, interest-bearing
at rates ranging from 90% to 100% (2017: 90%) of
rates announced by the People’s Bank of China and
will be settled by instalment until 2028.

20

(b)

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 4 R B o

RITER (&)

RITERBERBROE - (&)

R-ZE-—NF+-_A=+—0H &K
BIRTRERBRE AR B
4,602,728,0007T (ZF — L4 : B
2,612,556,0007T) - ,ELEPE@J}%;‘M%
1,979,716,0007C (ZE — £ F : B
735,066,0007T) °

FTE JEBNHAER 1T & RUIR 8 85 K A 71
AR - B IFRNHARITERTEIN —F
W,“mﬁ"

RZE-NFE+-A=+—08 " 17
%ﬂiﬁiﬂ% 101,334,0007L (=& —+
4 ¢ 75%3,083,713,00070) BRAH
$ﬁ%$%l%ﬁ&I2£ GBS
AEEERZFE BIRMZMEKZA
RERKER - RZ-ZZT—N\F+=A
=+—H EBHABMEEALSK
2,970,420,0007C (= —+t4F : B
1,307,891,0007T) ° 7 & B 7F H 85 52
RELRBESWEST NZE—N\F
+TZA=Z+—H AREVEERE
MABRNEE 22w (2T — 1 &
)  c KRBT R MR 2 M
AR VIR 5T 24(p) ©

RZE-NF+-_A=+—08 " EH
F-HEEBEBARTIERBE
261,257,000 (Z & —+F : B
59,375,0007T) /B HEA - P EH A
RIBITAME 2‘2290%2‘5100%(_ =
—EF:90%)FTE - WERZTZ)N
FRIDHIEE -
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Notes to the financial statements

B 5 3R 3 i F
21 CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 21 FEREMR - Et e RIE K ERT
ACCRUED EXPENSES =453

2018 2017
—g-N\E T tf
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Creditors FESTBR 3K
— third parties —F£=75 1,726,771 1,104,766
— fellow subsidiaries —RRKEBE QA 11,653 1,711
1,738,424 1,106,477
Other payables and accrued expenses HAb S RIE M ERTE A 644,276 522,854
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R RME A B 58 307 —
Deferred income — government grants FEEWA -/ & 100,517 93,138
e .._.__2483524 1,722,469
Less: Non-current portion W FEBNEAEB (D
— Deferred income — government —IREH A — BT
grants HE® (59,080) (56,899)
— Other payables and accrued — H {th JE {5 3K I8 2
expenses fEET & A (7,924) —
e _____67,004)  (56,899)
Current portion BN ER 15 2,416,520 1,665,570
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21

CREDITORS, PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 21
EXPENSES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of creditors based on the date of

invoice as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

FEASRR 5K EL A B BUIE R B AT
BH (&)

BREEABHE  BUHRRARERR
REIATMT :

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BEET T BT T

Within 6 months ~NEAR 1,627,355 1,037,721
More than 6 months ~NEA A E 111,069 68,756
1,738,424 1,106,477

Creditors totaling HK$1,593,174,000 (2017: HK$1,050,799,000)
as at 31 December 2018 represent construction payables for
the Group’s BOT and certain BOO arrangements.

Creditors due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and repayable in accordance with the contract terms.

The amounts due to fellows subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Deferred income represents government grants received to
subsidise the construction of property, plant and equipment
for the Group and is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(t)(v). HK$4,682,000
(2017: HK$1,859,000) was credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2018. There were no unfulfiled conditions and
other contingencies attached to the receipts of those
grants.

R-Z-NF+-F=+—8 " ENEXEE
575 ¥1,503,174,0007 (ZE —+F : B
1,050,799,0007T) * AAEEBOT k& TBOO
ZHEE TR RS FIE o

FE& A [F) 2 B /B8 2 =) O B A BR KR SR 3R
R B RBEAKNIEREE -

EANRAMBRRRESEER 2R
f&ZRIEE -

BEEWAEAEBUERFESZHHS
REMANEBEEY X - HERSEE - 1R
BHF1OWVEI 2 T EE R B
4,682,000 LEFABE_E—NF+=H
=t+—HALEFERZGEBRER(ZE—t
F 1 75%1,859,0007T) © S MBS WA
BRER GG EMIAEIE -
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Notes to the financial statements

BB R RN
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 REEMBARARNER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) HREMBMRRERZAEHIEE

statement of financial position represents:

2018 2017
—B-N\FE ZEtF

HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BT

Provision for PRC income tax for the — ZN4E & b (8 BT 15 5 B s

year 91,503 53,530
Provisional tax paid B A & AR IR (68,615) (43,664)
22,888 9,866

Represented by: K& :
Tax recoverable AT Uy Bl 7 18 (734) (19)
Tax payable JE S AR 18 23,622 9,885
22,888 9,866
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Notes to the financial statements

B 7% 3R 3% M &F
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 NiFaMBIRAKRPER (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EREANEEREBEEERES
recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEE MR ARER BTN IE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (é%)/ﬁﬁa B RRER 2 #8 N
position and the movements during the years are as ™
follows:

Temporary
differences
on assets
recognised Undistributed

under profits of
HK(IFRIC) 12 subsidiaries
RECEA

i
KE ?% %%

HEBAR

AR BN it BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F

—A—H 203,278 13,759 (6,221) 210,816
Exchange adjustments B LA 11,495 1,155 (395) 12,255
Charged to profit or loss EEP MG 171,348 9,153 - 180,501
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F

+-ZA=+-8 386,121 24,067 (6,616) 403,572
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F

=E=[ 386,121 24,067 (6,616) 403,572
Exchange adjustments IE LB (26,613) (1,618) 289 (27,942)
Charged to profit or loss [ = EnLaitls 234,135 13,461 - 247,596
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F

+ZA=1+—-8 593,643 35,910 (6,327) 623,226
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B3 SRR T 5F
22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 REEVBRARBNTEE ()
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EERANVEEREBEEERES
recognised: (Continued) (#&)

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —EF—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Net deferred tax assets recognised in ~ N4R A B IEANN RIER 2

the consolidated statement of BRI E R

financial position (34,797) (84,942)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 4R A B ISANR RIER 2

in the consolidated statement of B IR A EFE

financial position 658,023 438,514

623,226 403,572
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35 AR M A

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23

(@) Movements in components of equity (a)

AN MRS
REBH228
R A A BB A B R R
ERNYHERRGSBREDE A
RARBSERN D BFNEFR2E
BFHERIIMT

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes

in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and end of the year are set

out below:

Balance at 1 January

R-ZB—tH—-A—HH

Share
capital

(s
HK$'000
BEFT

SHETC]
premium
19 % B
HK$’000
BETT

Accumulated
losses
2HER
HK$'000
BT T

Total
#a5t
HK$'000
BT

2017 F=-23 3 3,241,465 (55,995) 3,185,473
Changes in equity TE-tEZEREE

for 2017:
Capitalisation issue AR EELT 23(c)iii) 1,120,749 (1,120,749) — —
Shares issue under PO, BREERXARABEERT

net of share issuance B (F0BR AR 17 B 1T

expenses HER#%) 23(c)(iv) 487,277 2,802,730 = 3,290,007
Loss and total BEMFERERALRE

comprehensive income

for the year = = (27,264) (27,264)
Balance at 31 December R=-Z—+%+=A4

2017 =+ — BH& R 1,608,029 4,928,446 (83,259) 6,448,216
Balance at 1 January R-Z2—N\F—A—AW

2018 ek 1,608,029 4,923,446 (83,259) 6,448,216
Changes in equity R )\FEREE:

for 2018:
Loss and total BELFEXEKRALE

comprehensive income

for the year - - (27,029) (27,029)
2017 final dividend paid IR 2017 & E RAAR B 23(b)(ii) - (185,947) - (185,947)
2018 interim dividend paid ~ JER{F2018FE R HIA S 23(b)(i) - (123,965) - (123,965)
Balance at 31 December RZ-Z—N\f£+=A4

2018 =+— AW 1,608,029 4,613,534 (110,288) 6,111,275

“T-\FFR PEAXRGBRRBRAGE @
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A5 AR MY AR

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends

() Dividends to the equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

23 BAX - HE LB (E

(b) KE
) FEARNGERFEARE

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ek o e
Interim dividend declared and B EIR KRS HE RS
paid of HKB.0 cents (2017: Nil) TR E mA%e.07 1L
per ordinary share (Z2—tF: |\) 123,965 —
Final dividend proposed after the & HIAR & 2 Z A K
end of the reporting period of & BB E BKke.5%8
HK6.5 cents (2017: HK9.0 W(ZFE—+%F:9.08
cents) per ordinary share ils) 134,295 185,947
258,260 185,947

The proposed final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2018 is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual meeting. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period
has not been recognised as a liability at the end

general

of the reporting period.

BE_T-\Ft+-_A=1—
BIUEFEREDIRZ REEE
AR B BCR A fE R RB
FRELIERTAFEE -
WEMRREZD IR Z R
BXREREHRERSAE -
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B 1% 3R 3R MY EF
23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 BX - RERRKRE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) BRE (&)
(i) Dividends to the equity shareholders of the (i) FRASHERIRTBEBF
Company attributable to the previous financial AL aEmiEEAKE

year, approved and paid during the year

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET R BET T

Final dividend in respect of the FABERAERIRMNBE

previous financial year, BB E R AR B
approved and paid during the TR @A%9.075 (L
year, of HK9.0 cents (ZZB—+F &)
(2017: Nil) per ordinary share 185,947 —
(c) Share capital (c) B=
Authorised share capital ETERAK

No. of shares Equivalent

Bin B R %[
'000 US$’000 HK$’000
T X&TT BT T

At 1 January 2017 —E—tF—H—H 50 50 389
Share split on 10 April RZE—tFWmA+H
2017 (note (i) Z P& A7 7% 48 (PR EE (i) 450 = =
Increase in authorised V25 TE BR AL b0 (BT 5 (i)
share capital (note (ii)) 4,999,500 499,950 3,891,111
At 31 December 2017, R-F—+F
1 January 2018 and +=—A=+—H
31 December 2018 —E—-NE—H—H
RZF-N\F
+=-—BA=+—8H 5,000,000 500,000 3,891,500
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A5 AR MY AR

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

Issued share capital

23 BAX - #ERERE (&)

R (&)
B RZITRA

(c)

2018
—E-N\F
No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
R A ok | Sl QE| G
’000 HK$’000 §0[0[0] HK$’000
TR BETT Ti% BEET T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 2,066,078 1,608,029 e 3
Issuance of shares upon FAR% 19 7 AR B 2577
share split (note (i) A& 12 (B &EG) - - 4 -
Capitalisation issue B AR 3EAT
(note (i) (B = (iii)) - - 1,439,996 1,120,749
Shares issue under IPO RIEBE XN AREE
(note (iv)) BTG,
(B 3% Giv)) - - 626,078 487,277
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 2,066,078 1,608,029 2,066,078 1,608,029

*

Notes:

U

(i)

)

Annual Report 2018 CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED @ FEAXGBRRERAT —=—

Represents less than 1,000 shares

On 10 April 2017, the board of directors of the
Company approved a share split of the Company’s
share capital at a ratio of 1 to 10. As a result, the
authorised share capital after the share split remained
at US$50,000 but was divided into 500,000 ordinary
shares at a par value of US$0.1 each. The issued
share capital remained at US$400 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,000), divided into 4,000 ordinary
shares of US$0.1 each.

On 10 April 2017, the authorised share capital was
increased to 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par
value of US$0.1 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
of the Company passed on 10 April 2017, conditional
upon the share premium account of the Company
being credited as a result of the issuance of new
shares pursuant to the IPO, the directors of the
Company authorised to capitalise an amount of
US$143,999,600 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,120,749,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium by applying such sum in paying up in full at
par of 1,439,996,000 ordinary shares of US$0.1 each.
Accordingly, 1,439,996,000 ordinary shares with par
value of US$0.1 each were issued and
US$143,999,600 (equivalent to HK$1,120,749,000)
were credited to share capital.

* R & 71,000/%

5T

0] R-_ZE—+tFWA+H A2
E = B NN Tﬂﬁmwtmozm
BIETTRE (R IR 48 © St - PR IR 4
% 2 75 TEBR AR 4 #5 B % © 50,000
T Iﬁﬁi%oo,oooH&@&@ﬁ%
£0.1 T - BTSSR
7%% 400 7t (FEE R 478 % 3,000
JT) 'ﬁ 54,000 ﬂ’itﬂﬁﬁ@%ﬁ
01T ERE -

iy RZZE—LFWNA+H FEBRK

#755,000,000,000 R FREEZES

01702 E3EAR -

BEARAE—BRER T —F
mﬂJrEluﬁmiﬁa&uiﬁ ¥
ARG R ERERE S X AR
%%éﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%i&ﬂfzé IN/N
RIEBREREETARR ARG
B ER ~ 3£ 4143,999,600 7T (4
R ABH1,120,749,000 JT) BT
B BEBEFERESEZERE
E=4£0.1 jT.21,439,996,000% &
B AN BERTEREEES
0.17T 2 1,439,996,000 % & 3@ A% -
A A AR 7N 5 BR 35 € 143,999,6007T
(W E B #1,120,749,0007T) °

)

NEFH



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

Issued share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(d)
()

(i)

On 8 May 2017, the Company completed its IPO by
issuing 560,000,000 new ordinary shares with par
value of US$0.1 each at a price of HK$5.4 per share.
Since then, the Company’s shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

On 26 May 2017, the Company issued additional
66,078,000 new ordinary shares with par value of
US$0.1 each at a price of HK$5.4 per share pursuant
to the partial exercise of the over-allotment option of
the IPO.

The total gross proceeds from the IPO amounted to
approximately HK$3,380,821,000, among which
HK$487,277,000 was credited to share capital and
HK$2,893,544,000 was credited to share premium,
net of share issuance expenses of HK$90,814,000.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the fund in the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend the
Company will be in a position to pay off its

is proposed to be distributed,

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries with
functional currency other than Hong Kong dollar.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

23

(c) B=X

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 4 R B o

BR - EELERE (E)

(&)

EBZITRA (&)

BisE
(iv)

(d)
()

(i)

(%)

MRZZB—+EFRANR - KRFIA
B D EES AT ERETER
{3 £0.17T 2 560,000,000 8% ¥
LTBRRTKEBRARES -8
b ARBZBORERBARS
FERARERLER -

RZE—+FRHRAZ-+B AR
AIREEMDITEE R A AFABREBE
EERRHE - BB IE5.4 T 2 (BI85
INEBETEBBREEXEL0.1TTZ
66,078,000 % 1 & @AY °

BRAARBEZAERIEEEAY
7 #3,380,821,0007T * H A B
487,277,000 AR AR ER - B
R B% 1 %% 17 pX 7K 7% #90,814,000
TT 0 781 2,893,544,000 7T BN
fEaifR -

EEEEREN

K175 18

REFEHS RAEUER
) RRBBMEERANE
A DK TARBMBER - MER
EREERKREBHE K
REABAENEEAEERB
RPN RBIMER -

V& 7 i
EXHERERENIEES
mIEEEHEZHE AR M
BHRMEL ZFAIIERER
ZR o ARAIERBMEIV) A
TR IEFR -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Reserve fund

Statutory reserve-wholly foreign-owned
enterprises

Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are
wholly foreign-owned-enterprises, follow the
accounting principles and relevant financial
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly
(“PRC GAAP —

WFOE”), in the preparation of its accounting

foreign-owned enterprises

records and financial statements. Pursuant to
the accounting regulations for business
enterprises (1B 25 #Z [ € (2000)25%%]), the
subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of
the profit arrived at in accordance with PRC
GAAP-WFOE for
reserve. The profit arrived at must be used

each vyear to a statutory

initially to set off against any accumulated
losses. The appropriations to statutory reserve,
after offsetting against any accumulated losses,
must be made before the distribution of
dividends to equity owners. The appropriation is
required until the statutory reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. This statutory reserve is
not distributable in the form of cash dividends,
but may be used to set off losses or be
converted into paid-in capital.

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company as
at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$4,503,246,000 (2017: HK$4,840,187,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to maintain a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

23

BN EERERE (E)

(d)

(e)

(f)

RELERBEN (&
(i) G
ZEERE—EHNELF

AEBNRPEZHBRR (2
SNERE) KIBRBERRNINTBEE
EZHRESRAKRA BT
BER(THPRERAREFRA —
HNERE])  mEREFHRH
RO HBHE o BB ESF
[ B & (2000)255% ) M B A 7
BEFERBTIEAARETR
Al— 2INECEFEMBZA
FEF10% EIBEETHE -
BRMEERAUKETAER
FEE - RBETEEBAF (B
BRI RETEIER) EETERE
BHARBREERBADIRR
BoMBARA—EEBRF
RETRHE BEEREATHBE
EEMEARS0% AL WEE
FETEUREREEAS
& MR AR IR A BB
RERIRT o

fEE D IKER
N_E—NFE+-_B=+—H 7 H
REAQAFIEZBRDIRNEEES
KEIE B 15 4,503,246,000T (ZE—+
F B 4,840,187,0007T) °

BEXER
AEEEREAZEIZANERER
BN EEFRLBRNEARLE
AR ETEE - U RRRAIERA
BME -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure on
a regular basis and considers the cost of capital and
the associated risks. Based on recommendations of
the board of directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, new shares issues
or new debt financing.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt
position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain the
equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there were adequate working capital to service its
debt obligation. The Group’s gearing ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, as at 31
December 2018 was 49% (2017: 39%).

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group does not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s

business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, other receivables and contract assets.

23
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B S R R

24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

All bank deposits are placed with highly reputable and
sizable banks and financial institutions without

significant credit risk.

The Group assesses the credit quality of the
customers and other counter parties, taking into
position, past
experience and other factors. The Group has a credit

account their background, financial
policy in place and the exposures to credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Debtors are usually
due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

At 31 December 2018, “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” and “Contract assets” of
the Group amounted to HK$6,079,644,000 (2017:
HK$3,476,249,000), of which HK$945,132,000 (2017:
HK$416,166,000) was due from the largest customer
and HK$1,720,719,000 (2017: HK$1,529,093,000)
was due from the five largest customers in aggregate
of the Group respectively. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
in the

each financial asset and contract asset

consolidated statement of financial position.

Service concession assets and most of the other
receivables are mainly due from local government
authorities in the PRC with no history of default, the
Group considers the credit risk for service concession
assets and environmental remediation contract assets
to be insignificant.
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowance for debtors under
HKFRS 15 at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. To
measure the ECLs, debtors have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics including
customer bases and the days past due. For debtor
balances due from local government authorities in the
PRC, there is no history of default and therefore, the
Group considers credit risk for such balances to be

insignificant.

In respect of the debtor balances due from non-
government authorities arising from hazardous and
solid waste treatment project operation revenue, the
Group estimates the expected loss rates based on the
actual loss experience over the past 3 years. These
reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the

rates are adjusted to

historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the debtors. The expected loss rates
were applied to balances due from non-government
authorities arising from hazardous and solid waste
treatment project operation revenue past due of
approximately HK$13,586,000 as at 31 December
2018, and loss allowance of HK$1,939,000 was
made.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 1(i)(i)(B) — policy applicable prior
to 1 January 2018).

There was no recent history of default in respect of
the Group’s debtors. Since most of the debtors are
local government authorities in the PRC and based on
past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of the
past due balances as there had not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable. No impairment loss was

recognised by the Group at 31 December 2017.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 HiEBEEAETRIAAALE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEZEE (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRINEAREERREARZIENTE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the WS aE s e OHRIBR - W
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are FTAKRAIRBERNE (BEEEHOF
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows ok (EEE) REBEREHRBITZ
(including interest payments computed using FEFEZME) RAEEA LA E
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current EBEBRB2EFABAEEMD
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest i e

date the Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2018
RZB-NF+ZA=t-H

Total

contractual More than More than

undiscounted  Within 1 year or 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying cash flow on demand within 2 years within 5 years More than
amount HEES: 3] —£R —F% LEX 5 years
REE ReRBER REER BRER BRER EE#
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT BETR
Bank loans RITER 6,006,559 7,254,234 1,189,017 697,503 3,323,701 2,044,013

Creditors, other payables and FEATBRR - E R

accrued expenses* R EA 2,383,007 2,383,007 2,375,083 - - 7,924
8,389,566 9,637,241 3,564,100 697,503 3,323,701 2,051,937

As at 31 December 2017
—+t&+-A=+-H
Total
contractual More than More than

undiscounted  Within 1 year or 1 year but 2 years but

Carrying cash flow on demand within 2 years within 5 years More than
amount R —FR —Fi& RMER 5 years
REE Dk LEP {BRF R BEFR hFR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

g T — 2= 3 g T —
BETT BT § BT

Bank loans RITER 3,494,703 4,290,409 708,130 477,414 1,625,725 1,484,140
Creditors, other payables and FERBRAA - H A B TR
accrued expenses* RIEsH &R 1,629,331 1,629,331 1,629,331 - - -
5,124,034 5,919,740 2,332,461 477,414 1,625,725 1,484,140
* The balances excluded deferred income — government * ERTBRERTERA — BUTHED
grants. & o
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 HiREKBEENRMIAARE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&

(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FEEK
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the AEEEH 2 MERBREEBRTAE
Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits HzBRekRESFEY  RITERR
and bank loans. Borrowings issued at variable rates RITER < RFBF R R EEF =i
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow P EESASESRAZESRE
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk FMERREEALBENERRE - AEH
respectively. The Group does not use financial WER AL OTAE T AR hFIRRE
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. The R REEMEHRRAEEESE
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by 22 SFIBEHR T X) °
management is set out in (i) below.
() Interest rate profile ) FIEEL

TREJIAEERREHRZ
EEFE (R EeRAERE
RITFEFARRE MRS EE
W) 2 FRBESL

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s net borrowings (being
less bank

interest-bearing financial liabilities

deposits and cash and cash equivalents) at the

end of the reporting period.

2018 2017
—E-N\f —T—t%
Effective interest rate Amount Effective interest rate Amount
ERF= k2 BRI = i}
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Fixed rate deposits: EEER:
Less: Deposits with banks B BIER 1.55% (17,039) 1.35% - 1.55% (736,229)
Cash and cash BeRREEEY
equivalents 1.10% - 3.00% (409,875) 1.10% - 3.50% (1,181,261)
(426,914) (1,917,490)
Net variable rate BEEEFHE:
borrowings:
Bank loans PITER 3.41% - 5.39% 6,006,559 2.56% - 4.90% 3,494,703
Less: Cash and cash B RERRSEEY
equivalents 0.01% = 0.35% (1,634,951) 0.01% - 0.35% (1,222,914)
Pledged bank deposits BERBITIER 0.01% - 0.30% (198,968) 0.01% - 0.30% (203,007)
4,172,640 2,068,782
Total net borrowings BIEETE 3,745,726 151,202
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of one percent in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation by approximately
HK$37,457,000 (2017: HK$1,513,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit before taxation
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2017.

(d) Foreign currency risk

()

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily from cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi, United States dollars and Euros.

24

(&)
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 HiEREBEELMEMTIAALE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&)
(Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) hEEmBE (&)
() Exposure to foreign currency risk (Continued) ()  BEERZZINEE R ()
The following table details the Group’s TRHAVWAEERSREHR
significant exposure at the end of the reporting HEBEREENBE(EHEE
period to foreign currency risk arising from BB RE BB AN BEEEHE)
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a FEEZERINERR - R2
currency other than the functional currency of §|J B & REReE LS K
the entity to which they relate. For presentation IR E BRI EE X
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are Tﬁ‘%rg@ & SNBSS R AR A B
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using BHREREREAEENZEIE
the spot rate at the reporting period end date. EMEEANEZRBISHAEE
Differences resulting from the translation of the [BLBg o
consolidated financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency are excluded.
2018 2017
—z-)% “T-tf
United States United States
Renminbi dollars Euros Renminbi dollars Euros
ARS 257 B ARH 27 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EMTR BMTR EMTR BMTR BT BRTR
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 1,300 30,507 7,212 198,841 19,410 =
Amounts due from/to group companies /R EERF
(net) RAFE 101,413 - 65,200 121,188 = 7217
Other payables i e HE - - - (143) - =
102,713 30,507 72,562 319,886 19,410 71,217
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BEE ST
The following table indicates the instantaneous THRHFINBREZR S HEBHRK
change in the Group’s profit before tax that & EEEE AR R HNERE X
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which REBHBRES  mABEM
the Group has significant exposure at the end of FHRIHFEITE o AEH
the reporting period had changed at that date, 79 BR B B E’f'JL& A2 o
assuming all other risk variables remained REME  BREBEELETH
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the EEEXTEAXTEELE
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and Mf’ﬁgﬁ’ﬂ?&ﬂ MR EIER
the United States dollar would be materially c B BT RN
unaffected by any changes in movement in value Eﬁl&(%ﬁ%‘l‘@ﬁ’] ?F&ﬁ%ﬁ
of the United States dollar against other Bz INERE KR E R EW
currencies. The impact of foreign exchange rate ERe
fluctuations with respect to the assets and
liabilities denominated in United States dollars is
insignificant as Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
the United States dollars.
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Renminbi AR
United States dollars EP
Euros BT

24 HBEREENSET

=]

1=

(d)

(

Notes to the financial statements
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SR B ()

(i) R (&)

2018
—B-N\F

Increase/
(decrease) in
foreign

exchange

rates
INEE =R
EF(FER)

10%

(10%)

10%

(10%)

10%

ARnfE

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit before tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period,
including intercompany payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2017.

2017
—E—+F

Increase/

(decrease) in
Effect on foreign Effect on
profit before exchange profit before
tax tax

HERBLAT ¢

BRI BT E
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
10,271 10% 31,989
(10,271) (10%) (31,989)
3,051 10% 1,941
(3,051) (10%) (1,941)
7,256 10% 7,128
(7,256) (10%) (7,128)

ERENZAMERBET A
SEEENARARBENESR
BETE 2B AT &N 2 BB &2
2 FHPEARESHRZE
RTERBEER -

GO o3 T R AR SN [ = ey
BEAREFAERSHRE
SEATRA RERNRE AR
ERBROZSERTA 81
NERASERANIEER
MM EREHEN KRB AR R
) FE 5 5K 0R Ko JE WK IR - 3%
A BB 75 S0 B 2 75 1 BE TS HR R
BRESAEER2INEEHES
MER - ZOTR_F—tF
BE—EEHTT -
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, debtors,
bank deposits, current portion of other receivables,
contract assets and
creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are

deposits and prepayments,

not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the immediate or short term maturity of
these financial instruments. The carrying amounts of
non-current portion of other receivables and contract
assets and interest-bearing borrowings approximate
their fair values.

The fair values of the above financial assets and
liabilities are determined based on the discounted
cash flow approach. The estimated cash flows are
based on the management’s best estimates and the
discount rate is market-related rate for a similar
instrument at the end of the reporting period.

24
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

25 HEBMATZEARS

RO BREREMBOAEE XS RER
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered oh o REBEHEBEE A TET NINEALS
into the following material related party transactions:

HEZAMBARZRS

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

(a)

(a)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Purchase of machineries and design ~ HFEE# 22 K R+ & F

fees 38,028 66,968
Interest expenses MERZ 11,373 2,585
Rental expenses HEMx 5,593 5,127

Underwriting commission paid and ENBPHEASRRBEAER
sponsor fee - 33,836
Hazardous waste processing income &£ &z 12 Uk A 2,757 —
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Key management personnel remuneration

The Group paid key management personnel

compensation, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in

note 9, as follows:

Salaries and other short-term

Notes to the financial statements

35 AR M A

26 HEBMATZEARS (&)

(b)

FekHEtERESRT

TEEEEBAEMS

AEBDXNEIEEEEAB M
(BEXNTHESRENAARES
R EORENE TRSHMER 2
BB

2018 2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000

BETT

—E-N\F
HK$°000
BETT

employee benefits 59,542 37,044
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 3,689 2,109
63,231 39,153

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of purchase
of machineries and design fee and rental expenses as
disclosed in note 25(a) above constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The disclosures defined by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section
“Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Directors’
Report.

26 COMMITMENTS

(a)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
purchase commitments in connection with the
Group’s construction contracts not provided for in the
financial statements of HK$1,578,260,000 (2017:
HK$1,470,949,000).

(c)

26
(a)

A E

e Et ATE TRAI(R Wi
6(b)) °

EREXZAERNLHRAUNE
At

B 3E25(a) AT 15 B8 A B PRI M 28 IRk
ERANMMEESRX Z@BALR 518
RIFERIER S (EE R EMARAI14A
B) o FMRAIFE AT ERIKRE
FREFEREIFERERS]—
&R o

R-ZE—N\F+=-A=+—1 &*&
BT REFBHREPBETEAER
BEANZABITHRBAESE
1,578,260,0007C (= — £ F : B
1,470,949,0007C) ©
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26  COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of
the Group are payable as follows:

26 EYE(E)

(b)

FEERBAUTHBRHELEEE
RERENNREEEVRERE
W

2018 2017

—Z2-N\F —tF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T

Within 1 year —FR 5,995 8,867
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBRBRFR 4,492 6,627
After 5 years AF%E 6,719 7,844
17,206 23,338

The Group leases a number of properties and land
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to twenty-nine years. None of
these leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to a joint venture not provided for in the financial
statements (2017: HK$9,500,000).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital contribution
to an associate not provided for in the financial
statements of HK$56,216,000 (2017: Nil).

On 12 December 2018, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with certain
parties to acquire 88.88% of the equity interest in
Remediation Co., Ltd.
Remediation”),

independent  third

Suntime Environmental
(“Suntime Environmental which is
principally engaged in the environmental remediation
business in the PRC,
RMB222,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$252,397,000). At 31 December 2018, the Group

had outstanding capital commitment relating to the

at a consideration of

acquisition of Suntime Environmental Remediation not
provided for in the financial
approximately HK$201,918,000.

statements of
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26 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(f)

On 20 December 2018, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with certain independent third
parties to acquire 90% of the equity interest in
Jiangsu Jiayuan Environmental Technology Company
Limited (“Jiangsu Jiayuan”), which is principally
engaged in the hazardous and solid waste treatment
business in the PRC, at a consideration of
RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$204,462,000) which has not been provided for in
the financial statements as at 31 December 2018.

27 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The aggregate net book value of assets pledged amounted
to HK$7,597,951,000 (2017: HK$6,582,527,000) as at 31
December 2018 in connection with the secured bank loans
as set out in note 20.

26

27
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28 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENTS OF 28
FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E2—N\E —E—+tF
No\t\e HK$°000 \HK,$‘OO,O
Mo aE BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries ME A R E 13 2,336,994 2,336,993
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Wi P B8 2 B] 3K 4,308,529 2,297,699
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 1,414 2,257
e _...___5/646,937 = 4,636,949
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b e W 5RIE K
TR TRIR 859 11,526
Deposits with banks RITHEN - 700,000
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEY 483,840 1,248,135
I 484,699 1,959,661
Current liabilities FEBEE
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER — #EFH - 128,400
Other payables H b FE S 5RIR 25,007 19,994
I 25,007 __ 148,394
_Netcurrentassets =~ ABAERE 459,692 1,811,267
_Total assets less current liabilities ®RERABEM 7106620 6448216
Non-current liability ERBERE
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — #EH 995,354 —
Net assets EEFH 6,111,275 6,448,216
Capital and reserves BAR#E 23(a)
Share capital PR AR 1,608,029 1,608,029
Reserves i 4,503,246 4,840,187
Total equity ERAE 6,111,275 6,448,216

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 6 March 2019

R_T-NF==ANBEEEFSHELK

T

Qian Xiaodong Yang Zhiqgiang

R BEE
Director Director
=) o)
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29

30

31

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in note 26(e), the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement for the acquisition of 88.88% of equity
interest in Suntime Environmental Remediation in December
2018. The acquisition was completed on 21 January 2019
and Suntime Environmental Remediation has become a
subsidiary of the Company.

As disclosed in note 26(f), the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement for the acquisition of 90% of equity
in December 2018. The
acquisition was completed on 25 January 2019 and

interest in Jiangsu Jiayuan

Jiangsu Jiayuan has become a subsidiary of the Company.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
certain comparative figures have been restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
in note 1(c).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 2018, the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be China Everbright Green Holdings Limited and
China Investment Corporation, which are incorporated in the
British  Virgin Islands and the PRC
intermediate holding company, China Everbright International

the directors consider

December

respectively. The

Limited, produces financial statements available for public
use.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 32 EAMEREBE T —N\F+=

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16, Leases

BREMHREENF16RHAE

A=+ —BIEFEERERE
T EBIRREY AT E

EEZEUBEHRETIZE8ILE BEES

MAGERMEIAER] FEARZE-
ZEBE] MERRREREE=Z—N
FH+ZA=Z+—BLEFESRER  %F
MBmRMERAZEEE] - HEBIRZE
B o le AR EAEOERT « TR KR
BT e

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
BIAT HHisk 2 &FA
Z gt B A K

1 January 2019

—ZE-AF—A—H

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax BE (BB BRERREZE ) 2B 1 January 2019
treatments EO3WAT IR EIEZ T T M —ZE-NEF—HA—H8
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 —Z— A& -+ FRAFEH 1 January 2019
Cycle T S 5 22 B ) F 5 B —T-hhEF—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in & & & =R F 285k (185]) — H £ 1 January 2019
associates and joint ventures RNAIRE EBEN R —E-NF—HA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before the standard is
initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the
six months ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standard is initially applied in that
financial report.

AEBEFEZSERA  FEANERE
REXERHHEERELENTE 25
AEEBRRBBVHRELRFEI6HRAES
THHEARHREVEREBREATE
BARENFRERN T -BEEHEL
MBREERFE165 ZFE D KEEK
HERNEREBEEANERZEHEER
AEBREFAFSERECSFHERTA
ERAEBHEZE-_ZT-AFA=+HL
NERZHHMBEHRE B RNRNZFEL
RIATRER BRI b E - AEB A LS
FHEFRKER(BRBREER) HE
REFHREBARERZEFLERNRL -
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(h), currently the Group classifies

leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending

on the classification of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and
to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic

basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for a number of properties and land, which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease.

32

Notes to the financial statements

B 75 4 R B o

EAMERBE_ZT—N\F+=
A=+—HIEFEREREHR2E
3 HERNBREZARETE
(4&)

ERMKBREERNFE16EEE

AP IR TR - AEE B ATSEES
BRRMEHERKENRE YEHEDR
BHERHETRARK -

BHREMBERE LN E16H KT EKIE
FEHEARBEANBRERN REBA
BREVA R o A - —BERATBMBRESE
165 ABEABTBERIBERENR
REHE - R - XERERTEORR
EEABUEUREMEHESREEN
EW A AEROARR BN Z B
B AEABREEAREERED
REBRIALFERERE  MGEREE
MIEREIEE RS HIZEERA
R ABEAKREREERBEEHMEL
MA B RERBEENE  MIENHE
HAREREERARBEEHOMESE
MEERSNREERR - ERERENER
7E - ARAREEANHIE g RAER
RESHEE (BESRR12EAHIAT) LE
BEEENEE  RZEFBELT  HE2HX
1A BT i R R R -

EEUBRELAF1CR B EERELRE
BERSBOARBARE THER L CGRE
DEREERE) MERTRIET A - AR
AEetEASEREERBEY BTG
me RFEBLHRRENE D RERF W
SEK

—E-)\FFR PERKEGEREBRAT @ CHINA EVERBRIGHT GREENTECH LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to the financial statements

B S R R

32

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information. As disclosed in
note 26(b), at 31 December 2018, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amounted to HK$17,206,000 for properties and land
under operating leases, the majority of which is payable
either between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in
more than 5 years. These leases are expected to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-
use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will
be adjusted for the effects of discounting and the transition
reliefs available to the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBEE

Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

BERAE

nE - BELRE

HK$’000
BETR

2017
—E—+tF
(restated)
(& =5)
HK$'000
BET T

At 31 December
R+ZRA=+—H
2016
—E—RE
(restated)
(EE5)
HK$’'000
BETT

2015
“T-hfF

HK$'000
BETT

HK$’000
BET T

and interests in leasehold UEREEEHE

land held for own use under BlEERZHE

operating leases TR 2,502,054 2282648 1,834,542 1,716,724 786,041
Intangible assets BVEE 7,486,422  5131,608 2975814 1,661,629 1,358,802
Interest in an associate —REE N AR 56,216 - — - -
Interest in a joint venture —REEEERS 57,446 51,841 33,651 14,361 -
Contract assets ANEE 2,852,061 1,766,507 824,581 334,264 151,585
Other receivables, deposits and ~ E A EUFE « e K&

prepayments 5 425,957 370,729 189,269 222,999 392,203
Deferred tax assets ERERBEEE 34,797 34,942 21,127 12,314 8,615
Net current assets TEEETSE 1,832,332 2,576,616 289,783 828,996 187,271
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,816,211 3,448,845 1,968,185 1,870,152 2,256,416
Net assets BEFHE 9,431,074 8,766,046 4,200,582 2,921,135 628,101
Share capital AR 1,608,029 1,608,029 3 2 —*
Other reserves H it 7,730,823 7,140,023 4,187,218 2,906,945 612,806
Total equity attributable to ARr =R EEN

equity shareholders of the gt

Company 9,338,852 8,748,052 4,187,221 2,906,947 612,806
Non-controlling interests JEE R 92,222 17,994 13,361 14,188 15,295
Total equity R 9,431,074 8,766,046 4,200,582 2,921,135 628,101

The balance represents amount less than HK$1,000.
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Financial Summary

HBHE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“B-0\f —EFtf —F-f ZT-1f —FT-DF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB BETT BRI BB
Results 4
Revenue Yo zs 7,001,820 4,581,352 3,000,131 1,203,198 1,057,784
Profit from operations REAF 1,870,961 1,314,044 851,977 369,409 251,278
Finance costs 5 E A (202,384) (125,565) (67,715) (41,202) (26,228)
Share of loss of a joint venture  FTiE—RA B EEE (158) (891) (867) (461) =
Profit before taxation BR A1 B A 1,668,419 1,187,588 783,395 327,746 225,050
Income tax P75t (337,068) (230,289) (153,873) (56,302) (25,373)
Profit for the year FRARN 1,331,351 957,299 629,522 271,444 199,677
Attributable to: G -
Equity shareholders of the ANAERRR
Company 1,324,871 953,823 629,222 271,953 196,368
Non-controlling interests RS 6,480 3,476 300 (509) 3,309
Profit for the year FRAEF 1,331,351 957,299 629,522 271,444 199,677

Basic and diluted earnings per AR K & )
share”
(HK cents) (1) 64.12

51.70 43.70 18.89 13.64

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015 is based on the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for that year and the weighted
average number of 1,440,000 ordinary shares, taking into
consideration the effect of share split and the capitalisation issue
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015 were the same as the basic earnings per share as there
were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in existence during both
years.

© BE-T-MEER-T-RF+-A=t+—AL
FEZEREARBF LA R #SRREAE
5 B B 3 BB AR T 49 1 81,440,008 (&5t
BRBE-F—LF+-A=+—BILFERN
BAD M R E A BITZ BT E

HE-_Z-—NEK_Z—AF+-_A=+—AH1t
FEZERETRFNASRERNZFER - AR
BFERNGTIFEEESHTL R -
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